ISO Parkway/ Fibertex Pump Station Upgrade
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American Rescue Plan (ARP)
INFRASTRUCTURE GRANT APPLICATION

Application Release: 02/14/2022
Application Due: 04/01/2022
Application Review Closes: 04/29/2022

Laurens County is now accepting applications for infrastructure projects to be funded through the
American Rescue Plan (ARP). Laurens County will receive $13.1 Million in ARP funds, of which up to
$2.5 Million will be made available to agencies for eligible public service, housing, and infrastructure
projects from the County’s first appropriation of ARP funding. ARP funds are authorized under the
American Rescue Plan Act.

This ARP funding round will focus on infrastructure projects. Specifically, proposals for water, sewer,
and broadband improvement projects will be accepted for this solicitation. Infrastructure projects
funded through this program should primarily benefit residents of unincorporated Laurens County.

Required Notices of Intent, describing the project, number of project beneficiaries, tentative timeline,
and preliminary budget, are due via email ARPA@co.laurens.sc.us, mail or hand delivery no later than
04/01/2022 at 5 PM to be eligible for funding consideration. Notices of intent that do not arrive by
the deadline will not be considered.

Awards for a funded project, if selected, will be provided on a cost reimbursable basis for eligible
activities undertaken after execution of a grant agreement with the subrecipient. Work that is
contracted for prior to the execution of the agreement with the County or that has not been
competitively procured cannot be paid with ARPA funds. All items purchased with ARPA funds must
be competitively procured, whether by bid or quote, as specified in the grant agreement.

Applications can be downloaded at www.laurenscounty.us. Complete infrastructure applications
(PDF Format preferred) are due via email at ARPA@co.laurens.sc.us, mail or hand delivery no later
than 04/01/2022 at 5 PM.
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LAURENS COUNTY
APPLICATION

ARP INFRASTRUCTURE

Scoring Matrix: Applications will be evaluated based on the criteria below.

Impact of Project and Clientele Served 20 points
Organizational Capacity and Experience 20 points
Budget 20 points
Feasibility 10 points
Protection of Public Health 20 points
Project Evaluation 10 points
Total 100 points
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LAURENS COUNTY ARP INFRASTRUCTURE
APPLICATION

A. APPLICANT INFORMATION

Laurens County Water and Sewer Commission
Applicant:

PO Box 1006 Laurens, SC 29360
Address:

030103519
DUNS #

Jeff Field Executive Director
Contact: Title:

864-682-6516 864-682-3260
Phone #: Fax #:

, jfield@lcwsc.com
Email:

Applicant Type: [J Local Government
B Special Purpose District
[ Public Works Commission

[J Joint Municipal System

[J Applicant is submitting on behalf of a not for-profit water/sewer/broadband

company or other eligible entity (provide name)
Name:

Please list below the information for any partner organizations that will be involved in the
implementation of this grant.

Laurens County Development Corporation

Firm/Organization Name:

Jon Coleman President/CEO
Contact Person: Title:

864-939-0580
Phone #: Fax #:

Email jecoleman@GrowLaurensCounty.com
mall:

Firm/Organization Name:

Contact Person: Title:
Phone #: Fax #:
Email:
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LAURENS COUNTY ARP INFRASTRUCTURE
APPLICATION

B. GENERAL INFORMATION

1. Project Name and Location:

ISO Parkway / Fibertex Pump Station Upgrade

Name:

ISO Parkway, Gray Court SC

Location:

2. Infrastructure project type (please select category and subcategory)

] Water

Energy conservation

Water conservation

Non-point source

Treatment

Transmission and distribution

Transmission and distribution: Lead remediation
Drinking water source

Drinking water storage

oooooooad

Other water infrastructure (Please specify, )

B Sewer
Centralized wastewater treatment
Centralized wastewater collection & conveyance

Decentralized wastewater

OO0 md

Combined sewer overflows

]

Other sewer infrastructure (Please specify, )
[J Broadband

[] Broadband infrastructure (Please specify, )

3. Has the applicant applied for Federal funds (FEMA, CDBG, etc.) for this specific project or
project phase before?

O Yes B No

Page 4 of 17



LAURENS COUNTY ARP INFRASTRUCTURE
APPLICATION

a. Ifso, please list dates and amounts.
Date Amount Requested

4. If thisis a phased project, please list prior phases and funding amounts received.

Project Phase Date Funding
Amount Received:
JYes J No
Amount Received:
U Yes 1 No

Amount Received:

[J Yes [0 No

5. Exhibit A — Project Implementation Schedule — A list of required exhibits is provided at the end
of this document. For Exhibit A, please provide a detailed schedule for project implementation.
All projects must have 50% of the construction completed by June 30,2023.

C. Organizational Capacity and Experience

C-1. Please describe your organization's history, mission, year established, and services provided.

The mission of the Laurens County Water and Sewer Commission is to ensure that our customers are provided with
a sustainable supply of safe, quality drinking water and to provide environmentally sound wastewater collection and
treatment services. Our dedication to our industry, customers and community are evident through our operations,
outreach initiatives and efficiency of services while maintaining a continued focus on supporting the infrastructure
for effective economic growth.

On July 1, 1993, Laurens County Water and Sewer Commission (LCWSC) became the successor by reason of
| consolidation of Rabon Creek Rural Water District and the Laurens County Water Resources Commission; both
chartered in July 1972. Through the consolidation, Laurens County Water and Sewer Commission became the
owner and operator of both the water supply system, the sewer system, and Lake Rabon. The consolidation allows
for greater efficiency and economy in the provision of water and sewer services to the residents of Laurens County.

Services Provided:

-Collection System: provides collection and transportation of sewer for treatment to the LCWSC Wastewater
Treatment Plant or to various other treatment providers.

-Wastewater Treatment Plant: is a source of sewage treatment for the City of Clinton, communities of Joanna,
Lydia Mill, and local industry, including the Laurens County Hospital and Laurens County Detention Center.

-Water Distribution System: acquires, treats, and distributes fresh water for industrial, agriculture, and domestic use.
Currently there are approximately 15,500 residential homes (approximately 34,500 people) and 148 businesses
serviced by the system.

-Lake Rabon Water Supply System: serves as one (1) source of water supply for Laurens County, primarily for the
| City of Laurens; as well as recreation and flood control reservoir.

-The Lake Greenwood Water Treatment Facility: began serving as the main location for water supply provided by
Laurens County Water and Sewer Commission. The facility provides the highest quality of drinking water due to the
advanced treatment process and the incorporation of ozone, which has become the water treatment of choice for
taste and odor.
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LAURENS COUNTY ARP INFRASTRUCTURE
APPLICATION

C-2. Who will be the person responsible for the overall oversight of the proposed project? Please
describe their experience with the project and length of service in their position. Additionally, please
describe their experience managing grants.

Jeff Field,P.E. Executive Director LCWSC.

Served in this position since February 2005.

Oversees administration and operation of the organization, including all projects and
grants.

C-3. Who will be the person(s) responsible for the day-to-day operations and management of the
proposed project? Please provide no more than two individuals. Please describe their experience
with the project and length of service in their position. Additionally, please describe their experience
managing grants.

Damas Mattison Regulatory Compliance and Operations Manager LCWSC.

Served in this position since 2013. Assists in the needs assessment for water and
sewer projects. Works with engineers on projects to ensure plans and specifications
conform with LCWSC standards. Manages staff the operate the LCWSC water and
sewer system.

Steve Griffin Construction Manager LCWSC.

Served in this position since 2014. Assists in the needs assessment for water
projects. Works with engineers and contractors on projects to ensure construction
standards are adhered too. Manages staff that maintained and construct system
improvements.

C-4. Please describe your organization’s experience and major accomplishments in providing services
to LMl residents and/or communities.

Since 2012, LCWSC has received five (5) Community Development Block Grants
(CDBG) for the Joanna Community totaling around $2.3 million which provided
services to 234 LMI residential water customers and 263 LMI residential sewer
customers.

Since 2015, LCWSC has received two (2) CDBG for the Lydia Mill Community totaling
around $1.1 million which provided services to 204 LMI residential sewer customers.

In addition, LCWSC was recently awarded a CDBG for approximately $1.0 million
which will replace a sewer line that serves approximately 2,500 LMI customers in the
Citv of Clinton
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LAURENS COUNTY ARP INFRASTRUCTURE
APPLICATION

C-5. Please describe your organization's overall experience managing grants.

From fiscal year 2012 to 2021, Laurens County Water and Sewer Commission has
received and managed approximately $12.5 million in grant funding from various
organizations including Community Development Block Grant program, Department
of Parks, Recreation and Tourism, Economic Development Administration, Federal
Emergency Management Division, South Carolina Rural Infrastructure, State
Revolving Fund Program, and United States Department of Agriculture Rural
Development.

In the current fiscal year, 2022, Laurens County Water and Sewer Commission has
already received and managed about $4.3 million in grant funding.

C-6. Has your organization carried out or attempted this project before, with or
without grant funds? If yes, what were the results? ] Yes = No
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LAURENS COUNTY ARP INFRASTRUCTURE

APPLICATION

D. APPLICANT RISK ASSESSMENT

Note: All applicants must complete this risk assessment. Please answer all questions. Failure to complete

this risk assessment will result in your program not being funded.

MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS
D-1. Has your organization had any changes to key staff or positions in the past 12
; [(JYes | H No
months? If yes, explain.
D-2. Has your organization had any changes to business systems in the past 12
. ] Yes = No
months? If yes, please explain.
D-3. Does your organization have policies and procedures for the following items?
Procurement B Yes | [No
Drug Free Workplace B Yes | [JNo
Conflicts of Interest mYes | [INo
Financial Management B Yes I No
Property/Equipment Management and Disposition mYes | [No
Retention of Records B Yes | [No
Civil Rights mYes | [JNo
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LAURENS COUNTY ARP INFRASTRUCTURE

APPLICATION

AUDIT REPORTS AND MONITORING
D-4. Did your organization expend $750,000 or more in Federal grant funds in the
. : B Yes | [No
previous fiscal year?
D-5. Has your organization had a Single Audit or other financial audit in the last 12
months? If so, please attach the full audit report, including corrective actions | B Yes [J No
as applicable.
D-6. Has your organization had any monitoring visits by a funding agency within
the last 12 months? If yes, please complete the table below indicating the | B Yes ] No
results of the monitoring activity.
Awarding Entity Result Corrective Action Plan Status
(Finding(s) - Yes/No) Required? (Open or Closed)
SC Rural Infrastructure No No Closed
Authority
SC Dept of Commerce No No Closed
(CDBG)
FINANCIAL STABILITY
D-7. Does your organization have an accounting system in place to segregate
: : B Yes | [No
expenditures by funding source?
D-8. Does the accounting system produce a budget vs. expenditures report? B Yes I No
D-9. Does your organization maintain central files for grants, loans, or other types
: : : B Yes |[No
of financial assistance?
D-10. Does your organization have a time and effort system that:
a) records all time worked, including time not charged to awards? B Yes 1 No
b) records employee time specifically by cost objective/activity? B Yes |[INo
c) is signed off by the employee and a supervisor? B Yes |[INo
d) comp/{'es With the established accounting policies and practices of the B Ves O No
organization?
D-11. Does your organization allocate expenses, either directly or indirectly by
. B Yes | [INo
means of a cost allocation plan?
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LAURENS COUNTY ARP INFRASTRUCTURE
APPLICATION

D-12. Does your organization have a Negotiated Indirect Cost Rate? If yes, and if
indirect costs will be applied to this grant, please attach a copy of your | [1Yes No
indirect cost rate agreement.

PERFORMANCE HISTORY

D-13. /s your organization currently debarred or suspended? O Yes No

D-14. Has your agency received other federal funds in any of the past four fiscal
years? If yes, what was the project, timeframe, funding source, and funding | = Yes | [J No
amount?

Including the current fiscal year, Laurens County Water and Sewer Commission has
received approximately $10 million in federal funds and they are as follows:

-Whitten Center Sewer Lift Stations, FY18-FY20, State Revolving Fund Program for
$662,252

-Lake Rabon Trails Phase lll, FY18-FY19, Department of Parks, Recreation, and
Tourism for $52,614 -Mogul Sewer Lift Station, FY18-FY19, Economic Development
Administration for $1,223,660

-Joanna Mill Village Sewer Upgrade Phase V, FY18-FY19, Community Development
Block Grant for $512,771

-Lydia Mill Sewer Upgrade, FY20-FY21, Community Development Block Grant for
$659,780

-Stagecoach Road Waterline and Milam Road Tank, FY20-present, Economic
Development Administration for $2,820,053

-Water Treatment Facility and Distribution Lines, FY21-present, United States
Department of Agriculture Rural Development for $4,068,245

D-15. Has your organization been defunded or had a reduction in a grant, loan, or
other type of financial assistance in the past 12 months? If yes, please | [1 Yes = No
explain.
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LAURENS COUNTY ARP INFRASTRUCTURE
APPLICATION

E. PROJECT BENEFICIARIES

Infrastructure projects MUST consist of water, sewer, or broadband improvements. All projects
MUST principally benefit low and moderate-income persons.

Service Area

Include a street map showing the location of the project and the area of primary benefit (service
area).

Project Benefit
Total Customers/Taps (existing and new) to be served by the project:

) 323 ) 10
Residential Business

Benefits to Low and Moderate-Income (LMI) Persons
Benefits will be available to all residents in a particular area where a majority of the residents are
low and moderate-income persons (LMI) (check the statement that applies - check only one):

0 Theareais Census Tract(s), Block Group(s) that is
Percent LMI (minimum 51%); OR

[J Benefits a low to moderate income service area, as evidenced through surveying
Note:

The requested LMl information can be found via the following link, through which applicants can
search by address:

https://hud.maps.arcgis.com/home/item.htmI?id=ffd0597e8af24f88b501b7e7f326bedd

Urgent Need

B Project addresses a critical public health need. Please describe below.

As growth continues in this area of the County, this project will allow for existing and
future customers to benefit from public sewer as opposed to private septic systems.
Septic systems are prone to failure over time and are not typically repaired or replaced
when necessary. This can lead to back ups at people's home or businesses,
particularly during extended periods of wet weather. If the problem persists for a long
period of time it can eventually effect the quality of ground water in the area.
Additionally the Fibertex expansion is not possible without funding, reducing the
potential jobs in the Gray Court community.
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LAURENS COUNTY ARP INFRASTRUCTURE
APPLICATION

COVID-19 impacts

Describe how the community to be served by this project has suffered disproportionate negative
impacts due to the COVID-19 pandemic.

F. PROJECT COSTS

Provide the financial data requested below. Costs should be based on the best information
available. More exact figures will be requested, if needed. When preparing this data,
consider the following:

« A project should be completed in one phase if feasible;
» Cost estimates must be as detailed as possible; and

* A project timeline

1. Total Project Costs: (Note: a + b must =c)

a. Amount of ARP Funds Requested:  $346,250

b. Amount of Non-ARP Funds (Match): $3,451,750

c. Total Project Cost: $3,798,000
2. Breakdown of Non-ARP Funds (Match):

Fund Type Fund Name Amount
Grant Economic Development Admin $2,000,000
Grant SC Rural Infrastructure Authority $150,000
Utility Tax Credits Duke Energy/LEC $300,000
Project Funds LCDC $250,000
Cash Fibertex(Industry) $500,000
Cash Lcwsc $251,750+

Exhibit B — Letters of Commitment - Letters of commitment for any matching funds contributed to
the project should be included as Exhibit H.
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LAURENS COUNTY ARP INFRASTRUCTURE

APPLICATION

Project Budget:

Exhibit C — Project budget - Provide a project budget including a detailed line-item construction

estimate.

C.

d.

It is recommended that a copy of the preliminary plans and specifications be
submitted with the Construction Cost Estimate.

Construction Estimate (prepared within last 12 months):

Source of Estimate:  ex: Engineering Firm

Date of Estimate:

G. PROJECT NARRATIVE AND OBJECTIVES

Please include a narrative on separate pages as Exhibit D

(not to exceed 5 pages, single spaced, exclusive of exhibits).

1 Definition of the Problem and Need:

a.

Explain the need for this project including summary of current condition, capacity,
and deficiencies of existing systems. Provide detailed specific information on the
urgency and severity of the need for this project such as health and safety
problems, substandard conditions, public facility problems, lack of essential
services, etc.

Explain why the proposed project cannot be undertaken without ARP funds.

2. Project Description

a. Scope of Work — Include a description of the specific project activities that will

be undertaken.

Service Area - Include the exact street location, the geographical boundaries,

characteristics and nature of the neighborhood/community of the project.

Exhibit E — Location/Service Area Maps - Provide maps showing the

location of the project and boundaries of the service area.

Exhibit F — Project Team - Provide a list of any and all partners whose

participation in project implementation is required for successful project
completion. Specify the role(s) of each partner in project
implementation. Commitment letters and budgets (if required) for all

Page 13 of 17



LAURENS COUNTY ARP INFRASTRUCTURE
APPLICATION

partners and subrecipients participating in the project must be included
as Exhibit F.

e. Feasibility — Identify how the project will solve the problem or improve conditions.
If the project does not completely solve a systemic or area-wide problem, indicate
plans and proposed funding for the remaining need and timeframe. Address the
proposed project schedule and any anticipated or potential delays. Provide a plan for
project sustainability, including the applicant’s ability to operate and maintain system
improvements.

f. Evaluation — Provide a plan to measure the success of the project and service
provided to local clientele.

H. ENGINEERING REQUIREMENTS

1. List all applicable federal, state, and local permits or approvals required for this project
and list the current status of each permit or approval in the space provided.

Permit or Approval Required Application Date Status

2. List all applicable federal, state, and local permits or approvals required for this project
and list the current status of each permit or approval in the space provided.

Permit or Approval Required Application Date Status

3. If the need for permits or approvals has not been identified and/or if the application
submission process for permits has not been started, please explain why not. If application
for permits has not begun, provide a schedule for application.

Page 14 of 17



LAURENS COUNTY ARP INFRASTRUCTURE
APPLICATION

Permits necessary for this construction project will include:
- SCDOT Encroachment Permit

- SCDHEC Permit to Construct Wastewater Facilities

- SCDHEC Land Disturbance Permit

- Railroad (Private) Encroachment Permit

- ReWa Industrial Wastewater Discharge Permit

These permits will be applied for after project design is completed.

. BUDGET

1. Provide a Budget Summary to include:

a. Annual Budget
b. Capital Improvements Budget
c. Anticipated Operating Reserve

2. Exhibit G — Current Year Budget - All applicants must submit a current-year budget.

3. Exhibit H— Most Recent Audited Financial Statements - All applicants must submit a
copy of their most recent audited financial statements

J. APPLICANT CERTIFICATION

THE APPLICANT CERTIFIES THAT:

To the best of its knowledge and belief, the data and statements presented in this application are
true and correct; the governing body of the applicant has duly authorized the document; and the
applicant will comply with the certifications listed above if the application is approved.

Certifying Representative
Name: Jeff Field

P
Title: [2xétutive \D 2 CToun

Signat@ b

/) o

Date: 3- 2% 2oz 2
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LAURENS COUNTY ARP INFRASTRUCTURE
APPLICATION

List of Exhibits

EXHIBIT A - PROJECT IMPLEMENTATION SCHEDULE

Task/Activity Completion Date
1. Submit Preliminary Plans and Specs April 19, 2022
2. Publish Notice to Bidders August 18, 2022
3. Public Bid Opening September 22, 2022
4. Award Construction Contract September 29, 2022
5. Preconstruction Meeting October 27, 2022
6. Issue Notice to Proceed October 27, 2022
7. Start Construction November 7, 2023
8. Project Construction Must be 50% Completed June 30, 2023
9. Project Construction Must Be 100% Completed December 31, 2024
10. Complete "Punch List" Items June 16, 2023
11. Submit Final Change Order and Final Invoice July 14, 2023
12. Execute Certificate of Acceptance for Project July 28, 2023
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LAURENS COUNTY ARP INFRASTRUCTURE
APPLICATION

EXHIBIT B — FUNDING COMMITMENT LETTERS

Please provide any letters of funding commitments received.

EXHIBIT C - COST ESTIMATE

Please provide a cost estimate prepared within the last 12 months.

EXHIBIT D — PROJECT NARRATIVE

Please answer all questions in Section G.
Please do not exceed 3 pages.

EXHIBIT E — LOCATION/SERVICE AREA MAPS

Attach a map of the entire County showing the general project location.

Attach a map showing the specific project location.

Attach at least one map showing the boundaries of the service area. All street names
and reference points must be clearly labeled. If the project will be constructed in
several phases, both the overall service area and individual service area for each phase
of the project must be described and identified.

EXHIBIT F — PROJECT TEAM INFORMATION, COMMITMENT LETTERS, AND BUDGETS

Provide a list of any and all partners whose participating in project implementation
Specify the role(s) of each partner in project implementation.

Please provide commitment letters and budgets (if required) for all partners and
subrecipients participating in the project .

EXHIBIT G - CURRENT YEAR BUDGET

Please provide the current year budget for your organization.

EXHIBIT H - MOST RECENT AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Please provide a copy of your organization’s most recent audited financial
statements.

EXHIBIT | — ADDITIONAL SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION

Attach documents and current data including such items as surveys, reports,
feasibility studies, letters, traffic/pedestrian counts, well/on-lot sewage disposal
system test data, newspaper articles, petitions, preliminary  site
plans/drawings/technical  specifications, zoning/tax maps, inter-municipal
agreements, letters from residents, letters of support from organizations, and other
descriptive information.

Attach photographs that will help visually show the problem and need.

Please provide all preconstruction documentation including water, sewer, DHEC,
Army Corps of Engineers, local building code approval, planning, zoning, and
permitting if necessary for the project.
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August 18, 2021

In reply refer to:
EDA Control No. 117563

Mr. Jeff Field

Executive Director

Laurens County Water and
Sewer Commission

3850 Highway 221 South

Laurens, South Carolina 29360

Dear Mr. Field:

The Economic Development Administration (EDA) is pleased to inform you that your
application has been selected for further consideration. Please note that this notification of
further consideration is intended to inform you of EDA’s competitive preliminary selection of
your project, but does not guarantee final approval or legally bind EDA to make an
award.

Subject to the appropriation and availability of FY22 funds, the proposed project, estimated
to cost $2,735,000 will be considered for $2,000,000 in EDA funding under the Public Works
program, authorized under section 201 of the Public Works and Economic Development Act of
1965, as amended (42 U.S.C. Section 3121 ef seq.).

By acceptance of this letter, you agree to provide all additional information requested below, and any
other additional information that may be requested subsequently. You also acknowledge that final
approval and the timing of such an approval are subject to EDA's acceptance of the information and the
availability of funding.

Additional Information: Provide the following information to Robin Cooley by September 17, 2021:

1. Certificate of Eminent Domain and Attorney Verification on property to be improved. A
suggested certification format is enclosed;

2. Revised SF 424, SF 424C, and match commitment reflecting an EDA request of $2,000,000,
match of $735,000 and a total project of $2,735,000;

w

Cover letter confirming that the scope will be revised to proposed sewer improvements only;

4. Proof of Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy (CEDS) Compliance. A letter from
the regional organization that prepared the CEDS certifying that the proposed project is consistent
with the CEDS is considered to be acceptable;

5. Legal opinion that the applicant is properly organized and able to enter into contracts and EDA
grant award;

6. Resolution from the applicant’s Board authorizing submission of the application and acceptance
of award;



10.

11.

12.

14.

Estimated useful life of the proposed improvements;

Updated status relative to any necessary easements or acquisition;

Status of any necessary funding for acquisition of property;

Comments from the State Clearinghouse to comply with Executive Order 12372;

Public Notice — NEPA: To comply with the public participation requirements of the National
Environmental Policy Act of 1969, as amended (NEPA), EDA requires applicants to provide
notice to the local public regarding the project and the availability of NEPA

documents. Enclosed is a template for public notification. Provide proof of public notification
including dates of publication and the notice. Contact Keith Dyche, EDA Regional
Environmental Officer at kdyche@eda.gov if assistance is needed prior to publication.

Copy of your request for comments from the State Historic Preservation Officer (SHPO). Please
initiate this process promptly to avoid delays. Provide SHPO with information regarding the
EDA project and the proposed beneficiary property and facilities so that SHPO may confirm the
appropriate area of potential effect. Please consult the SHPO website for information on contents
of the submittal. Do not insert a deadline for comments; the regulations set a specified time limit
from the date received. Provide EDA with a copy of SHPO’s response immediately upon receipt
(whether before or after the deadline listed in this letter);

. Copy of your request for comments from the Tribal Historic Preservation Officer (THPO) of the

Catawba Indian Nation. Please initiate this process promptly to avoid delays. Provide the THPO
with information regarding the EDA project and the proposed beneficiary facilities so that THPO
may confirm the appropriate area of potential effect. Do not insert a deadline for comments; the
regulations set a specified time limit from the date received. Provide EDA with a copy of
THPO'’s response immediately upon receipt (whether before or after the deadline listed in this
letter);

Copy of your request for comments from the Tribal Historic Preservation Officer (THPO) of the
Eastern Band of Cherokee Indians. Please initiate this process promptly to avoid delays. Provide
the THPO with information regarding the EDA project and the proposed beneficiary facilities so
that THPO may confirm the appropriate area of potential effect. If SHPO has commented, include
a copy of these comments. Do not insert a deadline for comments; the regulations set a specified
time limit from the date received. Please email the submittal to syerka@nc-cherokee.com and cc
to kdyche@eda.gov. Please request that the THPO send any comments to: Keith Dyche,
Regional Environmental Officer, via email to kdyche@eda.gov

. Copy of your request for comments from the Tribal Historic Preservation Officer (THPO) of the

Muscogee (Creek) Nation. The request should be submitted via email to section106@mcn-

nsn.gov. Please initiate this process promptly to avoid delays. Provide the THPO with




information regarding the EDA project and the proposed beneficiary facilities so that THPO may
confirm the appropriate area of potential effect. Do not insert a deadline for comments; the
regulations set a specified time limit from the date received. Provide EDA with a copy of
THPO’s response immediately upon receipt (whether before or after the deadline listed in this
letter);

16. Copy of your request for comments from the US Fish and Wildlife Service (FWS) on the
proposed EDA project and the beneficiary's project. Your request for comments should clearly
state that EDA is considering providing federal funding assistance and comments are requested
per Section 7(a)(2) of the Endangered Species Act. Do not insert a deadline for comments; the
regulations set a specified time limit from the date received. Provide EDA with a copy of FWS’s
response immediately upon receipt (whether before or after the deadline listed in this letter);

17. Contact information on the person who will be responsible for GPRA over a nine-year period,
and mechanism to track private beneficiary jobs and investment data and standard additional
information as listed in the application that has not been previously submitted; and

18. Any additional material as requested.

The information requested above will supplement your application and enable EDA to proceed with
processing your application. Failure to meet this deadline, or the submission of incorrect or incomplete
information, will jeopardize approval of your application. If you cannot meet this deadline, please advise
Robin Cooley, Economic Development Representative, as soon as possible.

EDA will assess the information provided upon receipt. EDA’s assessment of this information may
determine one of the following:

1. No additional information is necessary;

2. Additional information is required, because the submission is incomplete, inaccurate, or
otherwise unacceptable to EDA, and the applicant(s) must revise the submission before EDA
will consider processing the application further; or

EDA will discontinue considering the application for funding, because the information
submitted does not present a project that complies with applicable law(s) or EDA’s
regulations or policies.

(V%)

Your organization must comply with EDA’s regulations (see 13 C.F.R. chapter III
https://www.eda.gov/pdf/EDAs regs-13 CFR_Chapter IIL.pdf), as well as the Federal Funding
Opportunity announcement FY 2020 EDA Public Works and Economic Adjustment Assistance Programs
including CARES Act Funding Notice of Funding Opportunity, which was updated effective May 7, 2020
(see https://www.eda.gov/funding-opportunities/ )

Final approval of an award is conditioned upon EDA’s assessment of the additional information
requested, project feasibility, funding priorities, and the availability of FY22 funds for obligation.

EDA’s mission is to lead the Federal economic development agenda by promoting innovation and
competitiveness, preparing American regions for growth and success in the worldwide economy. EDA



assists states, units of government, and community nonprofit organizations in economically-distressed
areas by supporting regional economic development efforts that emphasize innovation and
entrepreneurship as the essential elements of regional and national competitiveness in the worldwide
economy. If you have questions regarding the requested information or status of your application, please
do not hesitate to contact Ms. Cooley at rcooley(@eda.gov

Sincerely,
H. Philip Paradice, Jr.
Regional Director, Atlanta Regional Office

Enclosure: Certificate of Eminent Domain
NEPA Public Notice Template - 15 day



Harry M. Lightsey 111 Bonnie Ammons

Chairman Executive Director

South Carolina
Rural Infrastructure Authority
November 4, 2021

Mr. Jeff Field

Executive Director

Laurens County Water & Sewer Commission
Post Office Box 1006

Laurens, South Carolina 29360

RE: Grant #R-22-3049
Dear Mr. Field:

Congratulations on your successful application for funding from the South Carolina Rural Infrastructure
Authority (RIA). Enclosed is a copy of the grant agreement, which must be executed in order for Laurens County
Water & Sewer Commission to accept the Economic Infrastructure Grant approved for the Wastewater
Infrastructure to Support Expansion of an Existing Business project as described in the grant application.

It is necessary that an official with legal authority to execute such contracts sign the two enclosed originals of
the grant award (Signature Page of the Grant Award) and return one of these originals to this office within 45
days from the date of award.

Acceptance of the grant requires that you comply with all of the terms and conditions as outlined in the Grant
Agreement attached herein. RIA funds may not be obligated or expended until a Notice to Proceed has been
issued by RIA and the construction contract has been reviewed by our office. For all activities funded in whole
or in part by the RIA, it will be necessary to follow procurement procedures that are equivalent to the SC
Consolidated Procurement Code and to submit contractual agreements to the RIA prior to execution. You will
be required to submit a progress report on the first day of each calendar quarter. The first reporting date for this
grant is April 1, 2022, Timely submission of reports will ensure the processing of requests for payments from
your grant award. Include the grant number on all reports, requests for payment and correspondence. RIA Grant
Project Management Procedures and forms which must be used in the administration of the grant are located on
our website at www.ria.sc.gov. Please take time to review these procedures before beginning your project.

We are available to assist you throughout the implementation of your project. If you have any questions or
need assistance, please do not hesitate to contact your RIA Program Manager, Liz Rosinski at 803-737-6804,

or lrosinski@ria.sc.gov.
Sincerely,
K . W
Bonnie Ammons
Executive Director

Enclosures

ce: RIA file
Wendy Medlock, Finance Director, Laurens County Water & Sewer Commission

1201 Main Street, Suite 1600, Columbia, SC 29201 I P: 803-737-0390 | F: 803-737-0894



LAURENS COUNTY

Development Corporatlon
V , SOUTH CAROLINA, USA

March 28, 2022

Mr. Jeff Field, Executive Director

Laurens County Water and Sewer Commission
P.0O. Box 1006

Laurens, SC 29360

Dear Jeff,
The Laurens County Development Corporation is excited to partner with LCWSC on the FiberTex sewer

project. We are willing to contribute $250,000 towards the completion of the project to go along with
the requested ARPA funds from Laurens County, and other grant dollars that have been acquired.

Thank you for your consideration of this project and please do not hesitate to contact me if | can help
further.

Sincerely,

2 )
)
’ i I
e

J6hathan A. Coleman
President & CEO



POST OFFICE BOX 1006
LAURENS, SOUTH CAROLINA 29360

(864) 682-3250
FAX (864) 682-3260

WWW.LCWSC.COM

March 25, 2022

Thomas R. Higgs, Il

County Administrator, Laurens County
100 Hillcrest Square

P.O. Box 445

Laurens, SC 29360

RE: ISO Lift Station Upgrade

Dear Mr. Higgs,

Laurens County Water Sewer Commission (LCWSC) is committed to providing $251,750 match
for the completion of the ISO Lift Station Upgrade project. In addition to this match
commitment, we are prepared to cover any additional funds needed for change orders, etc. to
complete the project. Laurens County Water and Sewer Commission has the staff and sufficient
income to own, operate and maintain this infrastructure after construction.

Sincerely,

Field, P.E.
Executive Director, LCWSC

TED DAVENPORT, CHAIRMAN ¢ BILL TEAGUE, VICE CHAIRMAN ¢ JURELL BYRD, JR., SECRETARY ¢ SUSAN CURRY, TREASURER
PHIL O’DELL ¢ JOHN McMURRAY ¢ JIMMY YOUNG ¢ DIME HOLLINGSWORTH



Exhibit C

COST ESTIMATE



Item
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17

Notes:

Quantity Unit

1 LS
4 EA

3 AC

1 LS
2,400 LF
4200 LF
9,250 LF
1 LS

1 LS
20,000 LF
5 EA

5 EA

1 LS

1 LS
200 LF
1 LS

4 AC

Preliminary Cost Estimate

New ISO Parkway Pump Station and Force Main Replacement

Sanitary Sewer Improvements
(See Exhibit 1)

i
=
1)
=

Mobilization

Construction Entrance

Clearing & Grubbing

350 GPM Pump Station

8" HDPE DR-17 Force Main Installed by HDD Method
8" PVC C900 DR-18 Force Main

8" PVC C900 DR-18 Force Main to Replace Existing 4" Force Main
Pump and Haul/Bypass Pumping

Erosion & Sediment Control

Silt Fence

Air Release Valves in Manhole

8" Plug Valve

Traffic Control

Construction Staking

18" Steel Casing Installed Via Jack & Bore

Railroad Insurance/Flagging

Grassing

Sanitary Sewer Infrastructure Subtotal:
Contingency:
Topographic Surveying/Easement Plat:
Geotechnical Exploration/Material Testing:
Engineering Design, & Permitting:
Railroad Permitting:

Bidding & Award:

Construction Observation/Administration:
Permit to Operate/Record Drawings:

Sanitary Sewer Infrastructure Total:

1. Quantities are estimated based on line lengths from aerial photography.

. Topographic survey of utility alignments needed prior to any design.

. Pipe sizes shown are subject to change pending industry requirements.

. Cost above does not include impact/ capacity fees to local utility.

. Cost above does not include property or easement acquistion.

. Improvements listed above sized to serve 350 homes, an average daily flow from Fibertex of 140,000 GPD,
Gray Court Owings School and a 15-Acre Commercial Tract.

AN L AW N

Unit Price

90,000
5,000
4,000

750,000
125
100
120

85,000

25,000

4.50
10,500
400
25,000
17,000
800

25,000
3,500

1/28/2022

Total
90,000
20,000
12,000

750,000
300,000
420,000
1,110,000
85,000
25,000
90,000
52,500
2,000
25,000
17,000
160,000
25,000
14,000

3,197,500
254250
12,500
30,000
136,250
12,500
15,000
115,000
25,000

3,798,000

Prepared by:

P THOMAS & HUTTON
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CONNECTION FOR EACH CUSTOMER, EXISTING AND. FUTURE.

i &
OEPIH TO BE —1

SUFFICIENT 10 EXTEND
L 10 DWELLING

% GRADE WITH A

oar une ron stcx—/
o pvC e

o 1% i
ASTM D-3034, SOR-26 ol
PAC GASKEIED ADAPTER

ASTM A-48 CLASS 30 CAST
IRON ASPHALTIC_PAINT
COATED

24 " FACTORY APPLIED EPOXY
IYPE C-304L STANLESS
STEEL T-BOLTS.

TYPE C-304 SIANLESS
STEEL NOT & WASHER

CA TYPE C-304
SIANLESS STEEL
STRAP.

EXISTING GRAVIY  ——
SEWER PIPE
SIEPS SHALL BE PLACED INTO WET
N CONCRETE. WALL. DURING
MANUFACTURE, OR HAND ORIVEN INTO
PHEFORMED HOLES AFTEK CONCRETE

ONNECTION TO EXISTING SANITARY PIPE HAS' CURED.

SANITARY SERVICE
CONNECTION DETAIL

NOT 10 SCALE

HOMAS 6 TTON THOMAS & MUITON
i ANGINHRING ¢

7 — W'— —_H.J/r

MANHOLE STEPS SHALL BE MA
1-PF OR AN APPROVED EQUIALENT

MANHOLE STEP DETAIL

INDLINC. MODEL NO. PS 1, PS

\
@
U

POLYPROPYLENE PLASTIC W/
1/2° GRADE 60 STEEL KEINFORCEMENT

NOT 10 SCALE.

03.451.6789

THO£4AS
HUTTON

Main Street ¢ Suite 760
www fhomasandhution com

i

1501
Columbia. SC 29201

GRAVITY SEWER DETAILS

C

SEWER COMMISSION
NEW ISO PARKWAY PS/FM REPLACEMEN

ENS COUNTY,

LAUR!

LAURENS COUNTY WATER &

TG J70T08 0007,
OA1E 01 04, 3022
oA
CESGRED! WAL
icvimo
APPROVED) PR

=50

C3.2
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2° ASPHALIIC CONCRETE
SUACE COunE

e
WATERPROOF
. RECEPTACLE
1 REDUCED

RE

PRINCIPAL ASSEMBLY
BACKFLOW PREVENTER

TYPL 6 ASPrA

g i e
s
M=

2° ASPIALTIC CONGRETE
ASE COURSE
G RS

" STABIZED AGGRECATE
BASE. COURSE

SELECT MATERAL
BACKALLED W & LaveRs
COMPACTED T0 90%

T LEAST 67 OF PROPER PIPE
BEDDING BELOW THE INVERT

M=M=

TYPICAL SEWER
PR MaveD
LAURENS COUNTY (OLD LAURENS RD.)

APPLY ADHESIVE
BETWEEN FRAME &
ABLSTHENY s
(TvP

OR EQUIVALENT

PROTECIVE
ENCLOSURE.

8" MANHOLE
FRAME AND COVER

SLOPE GRADE AWAY
/_ FROM MH COVER

LEAVE ADEQUATE CLEARANCE
FOR TESTING AND REPAR OF DEVICE

BACKFLOW PREVENTER DETAI
NOT 10 SCALE

BACKFILL WITH vl

aGES sTome —
SOLID CONCRETE:
BRICK OR BLOCK

STAINLESS STEEL
PRESSURE GAUGE
(DIAL 4 1/2" MIN.
DIAMETER) READING IN
FEET (0-100 FEET)
BOURDON TUBE AND CASE
FILLED WITH GLYCERIN

8'x2" TAPPING SADDLE
OR 8"x2" TEE (M)

DIAPHRAGM  SEAL

AR BLEED

QUICK~CONNECT

STAINLESS STEEL BALL
SHUT OFF VALVE

1/2" SCHEDULE 80
PIPE STAINLESS STEEL

SIDE MOUNTING TO EXCLUDE
AR, GRIT OR SCUM

HOT 10 SCALC AIR_RELEASE VALVE INSTALLATION
DETAlL .
3/4

|

[ 1% s -

- ; il

SPOOL PIECE WITH PRE-DRILLED TAP

| PRESSURE GAUGE DETAIL

NOT TO SCALE

4" SHORT RADIUS

90" BEND

(rvp)

0.125 INCH MESH
TYPE 316 STAINLESS

STEEL BUG SCREEN
HELD IN PLACE WITH
4 DJP\ FLANGE FILLER
CORE DRILL 8" 1D,
HOLE mm INS]ALL W CONCRETE WETWELL TOP
K SEAL
LS>4‘0-‘S-5\S-—\0 N
ANNULAR SPACE |
‘ SRRy B
TAA__. 1

WET WELL VENT PIPE

NOT TO SCALE

L COMR L0CAGN.
i v o

CAST oW PHAUE & cOMR

4" FUNGED PLUG VAWVE

FLOW. 4" PVC FORCE MAN

—SECTION
PLUG VALVE IN MANHOLE
NOT 10 SCALL
NOZZLE TO BE
3/4" OR 17
(CONHRM 5|z£
WITH OWNER
BEFORE
ORDERING)
ww WM’ /—CROUND LINE
x
2o
]
ol
-
SUPPLY PIPE
" UNION

KUPFERLE NO. 1 TOTAL ECLIPSE YARD HYDRANT

YARD HYORANTS SHALL BE TOTAL ECLIPSE #1 YARD HYDRANTS AS MANUFACTURED BY
JOHN C. KUPFERLE FOUNDRY CO., ST. LOUIS, MO. OR EQUAL APPROVED BY ENGINEER.
YARD HYDRANTS SHALL BE SELF-DRAINING, NON-FREEZING, COMPRESSION TYPE. INLET
CONNECTION SHALL BE 1" IP. OUTLET SHALL BE 3/4" IP OR GHT, OR 1" IP.

YARD HYDRANTS SHALL HAVE A STEEL PIPE RISER WITH A CAST IRON CASING GUARD.
PRINCIPAL INTERIOR OPERATING PARTS SHALL BE BRASS AND REMOVABLE FROM YARD
HYDRANT FOR SERVICING WITHOUT EXCAVATION.

YARD MYDRANTS SHALL BE SET IN 4 CUBIC FEET OF CRUSHED STONE TO ALLOW FOR
PROPER DRAINAGE. RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE AWWA AND MANUFACTURERS SHOULD BE
FOLLOWED WHEN INSTALLING THE YARD HYDRANT.

CRUSHED STONE FREEZE—PROOF YARD HYDRANT
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EXISTING GRADE

200" 6

~6" R.O.C.

1
§

&
258
2

e

—,

L 9 205
s ONE

=]

—— |
= \18" COMPACTED SUBGRADE

PUMP_STATION ACCESS ROAD

NOT TO SCALE

®
¥
0|z 2z &
<0 4 ¢
2, %73
GiE ;. §
1:‘:) H
FIX 23 8
g2 2
$o £
KL :
“3
8

10'-0" Mox

SEL IHL SILWORK SPECIHCAI 0K
FOR THE 5i7E. TYPE, AND GUAGE

UHK FENG

_CHAIN_LINK FENCE_

NOT 10 SCALE

W

LAURENS CO

NEW I1SO PARKWAY PS/FM REPLACEMENT

3
o
e
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20
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o
2k
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xun
2
3

PUMP STATION DETAILS




ot R RN PR\ - 5 W e 18 3

SIANDARD FEAIURES; NUTRAL
+AUTO-LOGK 12310 STANLESS STECL (WO SIES)
HOLD OPEN ARM Wik REEASE. rAN

By o K
316 AN S5 SITEL MAGES. AN ATACIING TG
+T-310 STAMESS SIEEL SAN LOCK Wilk HEMOVAILE (@ELOW. ol
wor COVER) 3|
+STANESS SILL COUPRESSON SPRNG KSS51 H
+BuL (HHEHHI |
Nun~umn[ ummc IOMNOS CoAnG cover | |
Uin CowTucTo ook [ “PHHHHIE |
S8 P T LD | "
{1464 %G pon 50 TR L0AD ") TS SIOE
ATRUOLD AL UMMM T
HEGESSED LFTING WANDLE.
ALMINUM FALLPROTECTION GRATING GRATING.
O U EE PADLOCK
UAHACTURLD 0 b, DO, it
e deviitativg
SAM LOCK --\ [ UFG v conc. opng| (152 M)
Yy i L. POSITVE
¥ GRATING LOCKING
e —— 1 At
! cover
- dB OPEN

OVERALL

TSATGH AN OPEND

5"~ GuEnsons 10 Bt

(76 ) SUBMITIED 10 5350
Yo RN APPROVAL

IUMINOUS
"eonwe

S 1 S—

FALL-PROTECTION GRAIING.
——

PUNE SIATION 1HOIES,

2. ALL ELECTRICAL ENCLOSURES SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED OF 316 STNLESS STEEL.

AL PIPNG SHAL BE PUESSURE CLASS 300 OUCILE IKON PIPE AND A NITNGS S, U
UNNG. PIRCAND FITINGS. VAT ARE LOCATED ABOVE GRADE OR AR INSOE OF THE W
RIED SHALL NAVE A BITUMASTIC EXTERNAL COATING. SANDBLAST ABOVE -GROUND PIPE 10

4 EACH DISCHARCE NE SHLL BE COUBPED WITN FITTNGS, PETGOCK AND A FOUR INCH (4 DINETER GLYCERN-FILLED RESSURE GAUGE
FALL IN THE MIDOLE OF THE. MEASUREMEN

NORMAL® OPERATING. PRESSURE FOR THE PUMPS SHALL
5. ALL WETWELL NAROWARE SHALL BE MOUNTED SUCH THAT ANY COMPONENT MAY BE REMOVED,

AL HINGES, GUIDE RALS, CHAIN HOLDERS, CHAN, CABLE, NUTS, BOLTS, WASHERS, OTHER FASTENERS, AND ANY EQUIPMENT THAT MAY ENTER THE WETWELL SHALL BE 316 STANLESS STEEL

CLASS 160 DUCTILE IRON.  ALL PIPE AND FITTINGS SHALL CONFORM 10 PROTECIO 401 FOR INTERNAL
TWELL SHALL BE PANIED, CONFORMING 10 INEMEC SPECIICATONS. ALL PIPE AND FTTINGS THAT AR
SSPC-SP6 BEFORE PANTI

GE. THE GAUGE SHALL MAVE READINGS IN PSI AND THE
WTIINGS, PETCOKS, AND CAUGE SMALL BE EITMER SIANLESS STEEL OR BRASS

6 ALL EXPOSED CONCRETE WITHIN THE WLTWELL SHALL KECENE A HYOROGEN SULFIDE INWIBITNG COATING, RAVEN 403 OR APPROVED LQUAL

7. THE ELECTRIC METER SHALL BE INSTALLED WITH A FUSED DISCONNECT AND IN SUCH A MANNER THAT THE METER MAY BE READ WITH OUT ENTERING THE FENCEQ AREA

B, THE CONTROL PANEL SHALL BE FREE STANDING, CONTROL PANEL SHALL BE NEWA 4X.

9. A WEATHERPHOOF DREAKER PANEL SWALL BE PROVIDED, THE PANEL SHALL HAVE SPACE FOR 6 SINGLE POLE BREAKERS.

10, AN EXTERNAL ORY TRANSFORMER SHALL UE PROVIOLD FOR 400V STATIONS, 10 PROVIOE POWEK 10 NOTE 9 AUOVE.

11, SEE ELECTRICAL DRAWINGS AND SPECH
12, SEE ELECTRICAL ORAWINGS AND SPECIICATIONS FOR DESCRIPTION OF SCADA CONTROLS.

ICATIONS FOR DESCRIPTION OF SITE LIGHTING,

13, ALL GHOUND KOD CONNECTIONS SHALL BE CAD WELDED. ALL GROUND ROD CONNECTIONS ARE TO BE INSPECTED BY LOWSC PHIOR 10 BURAL AND SHALL BE BURIED,

14, A HCH WATER AUDIBLE AND VISIBLE ALARM SHALL BE INSTALLED, THE HIGH LEVEL ALARM SHALL BE ACTUATED BY A FLOAT AND HAVE (1S OWN 12VDC BATIERY BACKUP AND CHARGER
15, THE POWER CABLE IS T0 OE WIRED NONSTOP FROM THE PUMP MOTOR TO THE MOTOR STARTER WITN NO JUNCTION BOXES OR SPLICES.

16, STANLESS STEEL KELLUMS GRIPS SHALL BE INSTALLED ON POWER CABLES FOR THE PUMPS.
17, PUMPS SHALL BE ABS OR APPROVED EQUAL BY LCWSC.

16, PUMPS AND MOTORS SHALL HAVE STANLESS SIECL Gl FOR LFTIG. | THE LENGIH OF THE CHAN SHALL REAGH THE. 0P OF THE WETWELL PLUS SIX FEET (6). A COMBINATON OF S5 CrAW

55 WIRE KOPL MAY OE UTILIZED AS LONG AS THE BOTTOM THREE FEET (3) IS Cru

19, AL METAL STRUCTURES SHALL BE GROUNDED, INCLUDING BUT NOT LMITED 1O THE HOIST, CONTROL PANEL, AND GENERATOR,

20 A METAL PLATE SIGN SHALL BE PROVIDED THAT DISPLAYS THE EMERGENCY PHONE NUMBERS
21 SPRAY HERBICIOE PRIOR 10 PLACEMENT OF ROG

AND FACLITY NUMBER, A METAL PLATE SIGN SHALL BE PROVIDED THAT DISPLAYS THE SITE ADDRESS.

22 CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSILE FOR COORDINATING LOCATION WITH ELECTRIC PROVIDER AND ALL CONOUITS / WIRES NECESSARY FROM TRANSFORMER 10 CONTROL PANEL

23 AR RELEASE VALVES 10 BE AR MODEL #D-0251.

24, WHERE IN DUPLICATE OR CONFLICT, INFORMATION PROVIDED 1N ELEGTRICAL
SHEETS MO SPECICATIONS SHALL SUPERSEDE INFORMATON PROVIDED
N This.

LLECIRCA. NOIES

1 CLLCTRCAL WORK SIALL DC PLRFORWCD 0T A LCINSCO
FIFCTRCA CONTRACTOR WITH A 10GA. BUSINFSS ICFH:

2. CLECTRCAL PLAMITS SIALL L OUTAINCD TROM AND FLCS
FAD 10 THE AUTHORITY HAVING. JURSDIGTION

3 HUESTHCAL CONTROLS SIALL B MOUNTCD A00VE 1 10
YEAR FLGODF1 FVATION

4 AL CONOUTS INTO THE CONIROL PANCL MUST DL SCALCD

5 LLECIKCAL CONIKOLS 10 e LAELED WilK 1*
FLACARG Wit 172+ LCTTERS (O LABEUNG A CaNTRLS.

6 ALL TERMAATIONS SHALL BE WITH LUGS.

1 O S RESPONSIBLE FOR APPLYING 10 REGULATORY
SO M0 SERCE PROIOH Fon et Sy
B COMRACION < RESPONSIBLE 10 CSIABLIN ANO PROWDL
mm«w G sthace 10
RACIOn ShAL. PAY YO LLECIKIL SLCe UNIL
SEETRION 3 cclTes Tor St ol e

9 CONTRACIOR 15 KLSPONSISLL 10 VENINY SIZL ) GENERAIGH PAD,
AND LOCATION. OF CONDLIT_ ENTRANCE PLi GENERATOR  SUPP.IE
CONTRACTOR SKALLAL50 ENCARGE GENERATOR PAD 1 NEEOED 10
LUSUKE A MIN| GF 157 01 CONCKLIL AVGUND IHE GENERATON. EHCLOSURE

T0MOIOK SIAKILIES SimLL UL 011 ia

SPUT WINDING, 7D OTHER REDUCED VOLTAGE

SikiTRs ARt NGt ACCEFIAD E

TVAUTOMATIC TRANSFER SWITCH SHALC BE MOUNTED ON THE GENFRATOR.

12CONTRACTOR 1O PROVIOE ONE 194, 2P, 480V GPEAKER 10 FECO
XILKHA. IRANSHORMER
IS 1 OUPLICAIL OK ORI, 10N
A SR Ao
ieeT

1O PHOVIDLD 11 ELECIMIAL
SHALL' SUPFRSEDE INFORMAT O1 PROVIDID

CONIKACIOR 10 INSIALL LK SEAL OK LOUIVALENI A DISCHANGE. LINE PLILIKATIONS OF
10P SLAD. THE UNK SCAL SIALL OC SUPFLICO WTH 316 STANLESS STCCL |AROWARC

PANT ALL ALUMINUM SURFACES (N CONTACT W/ CONCRETE WITH ASPHALTIC PANT (BITUMASTIC),
CONTRACTOR SMALL SUBMT COMPACTION TEST RFSULTS INSIDE PUMB STATION FENGE ARFA
AND AT LEAS| LN 1E51 KESULTS INMEDIATELY ADJAGENT 10 CONCHEIE SLA PRIOR 10
INSTALUING KOG

PROVOC DUAL 500 WATT METAL 1ALIOE LIGHT TO ILLUMINATC CONTROL PANCL. WCT WELL,

AND GENERATOR WITH SWITCH CONTROL (12 FT AFG).

WIILRC 1N DUPLICATE O CONFLICT, INFORMATON PROVDEO M CLLCTRGAL

SAFETS AND SPECIFIGATIONS. SHALL SUPFRSFOF INFORMATION. PROVIDED
O THIS SHEET
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I. SITE DESCRIPTION

A

c

o

[

PROJECT OESCKIPTION
Al PROICTAREA
AZ. AREADISTURI

A3 PEKCENT i
A4, RUNGFY COEFPKIENT BEFORE CONSTRUCTION
Ab. PERCENT IMPERVIOUS AKEA AFTER CONSTRUCTION e
A6, KUNOFF COEFFICIENT AFTER CONSTRUCTION
OESCRIPTION OF CONSTRUCTION ACTMTY.
WORK CONSISTS OF oo

KUNOFF OATA

€. 5OI CLASSIFICATIONS

G LANDUSE(S)

RECENING WATERS.

D). CLOSEST RECEMNG WATERS. "
02, ULTIMATE RECENING WATERS "
oow

E1 FEMAFLOGD ZONE(S)

£2 FEMA FLOOD INSURANCE MAPIS)

0ACKES

W00
"

CONTROL MEASURES

2

3

EROSION AND SEQIMENT CONTROLS.

PAIGH TO STAKT OF GONTHUCTION.ALLEXTERION SLTFENCE WiL B NSTALLED A3 SHOWN
ONTHE P
L cleakmo

111, AS CLEARING 5 COMPLETED. ADDITIONAL SILT FENCE WILL BE INSTALLED WHERE
NEGESSAKY SUGH AS FONTS WHERE LOWS BECOME CHANELLED, D OTHEN PONTS
SANERE EXCESAIVE RUNOHE VELOCITIES WAY !
2
193 Coustiucnion SELAYS MY NEAREA GREATER THAK 14 DAYS PRIGR To START o

ACCEPTABLE METHODS OF

stauzATN 'WEAUDE MG AND TEMPORARY SEEDN.
104, MAINTAR LAISTING VEGETATION WHENEVER POSSIBLE AUD MIIIMIZE THE AREA OF
URGANGE, HETARAD PROTEGT TRELS 1O LNNANGE FUTUNE LANDSCAPING EFFORTS

AND REDUCE RANDRGP INPAGT
105, INSTALL ALL SEDIMENT CONTHOL PRACTICES PRIOK TO ANY UP-SLOPE SOIL DISTURBING
CTVITES.
0. PASE
Wit

TOMINMIZE THE ONE TIME THIS
570 BE

1, WASTE DISPOSAL
3,01, NO 50D MATERIALS. INCLUDING BUILONG MATERIALS, SHALL BE DISCHAKGED TO ANY
RECEIING WATERS,
3,02, GFFSITE VEHICLE TRAGKING GF SEOIMENTS AND THE GENERATION OF DUST SHALL BE
MIIMIZED.
3.1, THIS PLAN SHALL COMPLY WATH STATE ANDIOK LOCAL WASTE DISPOSAL, SAUITARY SEWEK
O SEPTIC SYSTEM KEGULATIONS.
14, ULT CONTHOL
ON CONSTRUCTION SITE AHD HAUL ROUTES. THE PURPOSE GF THE MEASURE I5 TO REDUCE.
THE PESENCE OF AIKBOKNE SUBSTANCES WHICH WAY BE HARMFUL OR BAURIOUS TO
HUMAN HEALTH, WELFARE OR SAFETY. OR TO ANIMALS OK PLANT LIFE,
MAINTENANCE
1. MARTENANCE

THE SITE msuwmuw R HISMER REPRESENTATIVE, SHALL MAKE VISUAL INGPECTIONS
o ALL MECHACA

STORMWATER POLLUTION PREVENTION PLAN

4 PROVIOE SLTF

ENCE ANOIOK OTHER CONTH

EFORE BEING PUMPED TG ANY WATERS OF THE STA

5. ALLEROSION CONTROL DEVICES SHALLBE PROPENLY MANTANEO DURKG ALL PYASES OF
‘CONSTRUCTION UNTIL THE CMPLETION O

(DER TO CONTH
CONTROL DEVICES SHALL BE AENOVED GHCE CONSTRUCTION 1+ COMFLETE AN
THE SITE I3 STASILZED.

CONTHAGTON MUST TAKE HECESSANY AGTIGN TO MIIMZE TNE THAGKKIG OF MU0 ONTO
M BAVED NOROWAY F KON CONSTHUCTI AKGAS AU THE GLNERATICN OF DU T T
CONTARCTOR SHALL OALY REMOVE MUDISOL FAOM PAVEWENT A5 WA S REGUIK

7. AEIOENTIAL SUBDIISINS REQUIRE LRGSI CONTHOL FEATUALS FOR HFRASTIUCTUNE AY
L1 A5 FOR IDIVIOUAL LOT CONSTRUCTION. IDIVIDUAL PROPERTY OWNER SHALL FOLLOW

BASIS, ESPECIALLY

INSORE TUAT ALLCOMNOLE ARE 'AND PRGPELY FUNCTIONING, ANY DAMAGLD
CONTROLS SHALL BE REPAIRED PRIOR TO THE ENO OF THE WORK DAY HCLUDING RE-SEEDING.
(0 MULCHING OK KE-SODDING IF HECESSARY,

T ALL TIMES. IF FULL
Ve

HESE PUANS GURK CONSTRUC Tt O OBTABY APPROUAL O A HONIDUAL P
REG, 3

8. TEMPORARY OIVERSION BERMS AUDIO DITCHES WL UE PROVIOED ASHEEOED OUKING
OHSTRUCTION TO PROTECT VIORK AREAS FROM UPSLOPE KUI
CREH WATER TO APFRPRIATE TRAPS O STABLE GUTCETS:

S ALLWATELS OF THE STATE (05) HCLUDMG WETLANDS AKE TO BEFLAGGED OK OTHERWISE

O THE APPROVED PLA DOE S NOT PROVIDE FO EFFECT ADDITIGHAL
e 0 CouTOL O
THEAT THE SEDMENT SOURCE ALL SRAKAQE SWALEG, POCKETS, DEPREGTION, LoW L
QUTLET DITCHES & TIMES,
TMAT UAYCCUR SHALL € REPAED B THE EOHTARCTO, unmmv«uu( “tenoveo

FENCE WHEN IT REACHES 113 THE HEIGH
UM«(DMNLCUSAKV G MARTAN AN EFPECTVE BARRIER
CONSTRUCTION EXIT I A COn PREVENT MUD OR SEOIMENT FROM
LEAVNGTHE GTE.THG Y REGURE BEMODK 106 DRESSHOWITH ADOTIOAL STONE
WASHED OK TACKED ONTO.

ENCE. THE

PUBLEC ROAL ok
WHERE ERosoN Geuks: PRCTECT #ROM TAAFFC AG WUCH AS FOSGBLE NGPECT ALl
yiiy G

FARURE, I WASHOUT OCCURS, REPAR THE SLOPE GRADE, RESEEDAND AEWSTALL MoXCH,

FOLLOW THE CONSTRUCTION SEGUENGE THROUGHOUT THE PROJEGT DEVELOPMENT. WHEN
NEEDLD, AMEND 1

ADVANCE TO MAVTAI! MANAGEMENT CONTROL. IF MAJOR

GOPY OF THE MODVIED SGHEDULE TO THE ENGHEER SEOMENT D Eoxi koL
WERSURES WL HCHAR W PLACE AND OE HANTAMED ONTI THE OISTURDED AREAS AKE
STABIIZED.

2 ST FeNcE

SILT FENCES WILL BE MONITORED DURING CONSTRUCTION, ANY
OPERLY WL UE PROMPTLY REPAIIED GLE 00T TNE ST HEGE Wi
REAGHES 173 THE HEKGHT 'KEPLAGE WM FUNCTIONAL SILT FENCE VATHI 24
HOURS. usswnas:smnmmwnu.«mzszmumrwruw STORM INLETS 15
b

SILT FENCE WHICH IS HOT

SEDIMENTATION BASING WHICH ARE AT 50% USED GAPACITY OR APPROACHING SUCH CAPAGITY
SHALL BE RE-EACAVATED TO GRIGINAL DIMENSIONS AND THE SILT PKOPERLY DISPOSED OF.

SITES, THE NEEO FOR MEASURES
EROSION FUNCTIONING |
(0L MEASURES WHEN THE FINAL GRADE I5 ATTAINED.
117, MARTA AND PROTECT ALL RATURAL WATERVWAYS, KETAI AT LEAST A 35.F00T
G ATERWAYS TO FILTER QUT UNACCEPT
SEOMEN 5 st
SENSITIVE WAT
1, NSTALL flnvmnuo« 10 ROLLENOCK SOCK PRODUCTS) ON THE DOMYSLOPE
PERIMETER OF
INCLUDAG OLEARMG AND GRUBBIG). ST PENGE . AMAXINUM OF 100 50UAKE 4 G 0LuENT LOGGMOLLS
FEETPER LNEAL FOOT O FENCE WOTALL ST FENCE N HORTEN REACHES O THE
SHoULD

50 6 PROTECTED Wil SITFENCE BIO ROLLS O ROCK S0CKS,
119, WAKEAS GF STRAW BALE CHECK:
TANGULAN IKES, 80 KoLL BLAKETS, Ok ROEK SOCKS T SLOW RUNCHE AND TRAP

11,10,USE TEMPORARY SLOPE DRAINS OR KOCK CHUTES TO MOVE WATER DOWN STEEP SLOPES,

1.CONSTRUCT SEDIMENT BASINS FOR DRANAGH THAN 10 ACRES

12 KOUGH ORADNG.

21

e
GREATER THA! 14 DAYS PRIOR TO START OF NEXT ACTIVITY WILL MANDATE STABILIZATION
PKOCEOUKES, ACCEPTABLE METHODS OF STADILIZATION ICLUDE MULCHING AND.

RAKY SEEOIN

122 ALUAREAS NOT SUBJECT 10 FURTHER COUSTRUCTION (ORAINAGE, SANITARY SEWE,

KOADS SYSTEMS OK 5TORM WATEK BE R

VWITH A PERMANENT COVER

1.2, COVER AUY STOCK PILED TOPSOIL WITH PLASTIC (OR OTHER IMPERVIGUS COVERING) O
USE A TEMPORARY SEED MIX. USE STOCKPILED TOPSOIL AS EARTHEN BERMS TO SERVE AG
TEMPORAKY SEOIMENT BASING

13 ORARAGE
1

132, CONSTRUCTION DRAINAGE WILL BE KCAITED THROUGH LAKES WHICH WILL ACT AS
SEOMENT BASHS OR OIHEN ACCEPTADLE SEDIENT ASNITRAPS

133, SHEET SHALL BE W5
URD NLETS, STONM ORAI MAHOLES, JUNCTIN BOKES. AND GRATE
CEOUKES, ACGEPTABLE METHODS OF
STABILLATION HCLUDE MOLOHING AND TEMPORARY SEEONG
1.3, ALL STORM UNES HOT I STREETS OR OTHEK PAVED AREAS AKE TO BE MULCHED AND
SEEDED WITHIN § DAYS AFTER BACKFILL
14, WASTE DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM INSTALLATION

THE WATER

rad AL ot
OISTRIBUTION 5YSTEM.

DELAYS OF GREATER THAN 14 DAYS PRIOK TO START OF NEXT ACTIVIT { WILL MANOATE
STAILZATION PROCEOURES. ACCEPTABLE METHODS OF STABILZATION IHCLUDE
MULCHING AND TEMPORARY SEEONG,

15 WASTEWATER COLLECTION SYSTEM INSTALLATION

10, AL oe
YSTEM
162, DECAYS OF GREATER THAN 14 DAYS PRIGK TG STAKT OF NEXT ACTII (Wil MANDATE

STABILZATION PROCEQURES. ACCEPTABLE METHODS OF STABILATION ICLUDE
MULCHING AND TEMPORARY SEEOIO,

5. CONSTRUGTION OF KOADS.

161

62 DELAYS OF GHEATEN T 14 AYS PRIOK T START OF NERT ACTMIY WL MANDATE
STABILZATION PROCEDURES, ACCEPTABLE METHOOS OF STAUILZATION WCLUDE
MULCHBIG ANO TEMPORARY SECORG.

17, OKASING

12
172,

Al e
AIY AREAS THAT EROOE OR WHERE GRASS DOES NOT ESTABLISH ITSELF SHALL BE
KEGRADED ANO RE-GRASSEO,

STORM WATER MANAGENENT

UNOFE FAOM 3 PROIECT WL DISCHARGE WTC A STOIM WATEK MANAGEMENT $151EM
TREATHENT WL CCUR I STORMWATER DETENTION POND:
OTHER CONTHOLS.

SEDIMENT LOGHIR

O I THE HELD. ADOUBLE R
UALEKE ASOL0OT LUITCH CANOT
G Ao

BE MAITAINED BETWEEN THE DISTURBED AKEA AND AL

0-F 00T BUFFER SHOULD BE MAINTAINED BETWEEN THE LAST ROW G SILT FENGE AND

10, LITTER. CONSTRUCTION DEBRI3 OILS FUELS AND BUILOING PKOOUCTS WITH SIGNIFICANT
FOTENTIALFOR MPACT GUCH AS STOCKFILEG OF FREGHLY TREATED LMt A
IWAT COULD B P03
RCE

E PREVENTED.

11, ACOPY OF THE SWPPP. INSPECTION RECORDS AND RAINFALL DATA MUST BE RETAIED AT THE.

L DEVICES. AS MAY BE KEGUIRED. 10 CORTROL SOIL

W
TER SHOULD BE FILTERED T0 REMOVE MY SEOIMENTS
it

JNOFF ANDIOR TO OIVERT SEOIMENT

FENCE I5 TO BE INSTALLED IN AL AREAS.

e AL Exts AISTING
QTLITIES AREALL unuuzs THAT EXIST Ot T PROJECY it A0 ORIGHAL RELGEATED OF NEWLY
s THE CONTRACTON SHALL G HELD RESPOUSIBLE FOR THE COST OF NEPAS
DAMAGEO UNDENGH S o
STE DEVELOPMENY PLAS. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL GONTACT THE LGYAL UTLIT

OTECTIoN CENTCH 10 COONDNATE THE MAKKIG OF EXISTIG UTITY CHES A MBWON Of 08
NS PRIOR TG COMMENGEMENT GF ANY Wo!

5. PESTICIOES. REDUCE THE AMCUNT GF PESTICIOES AVAILABLE FOR CONTAGT WITH STORM WATER.
51, GTORE NAOKY COVERLD AREA
52 ISTALL CURBS OR DIKES ARGUND STORAGE AREA TO PROTECT AGARIST SPILLS
53 STRICTLY FOLLOW KECOMMENDED APPLICATION RATES.

KEOUCE THE AMGUNT OF FEKTILIZEKS AND DETERGENTS

EMOVE E0LTAND OEONIS, T CLERVIG AND FLUSHNG OF LTS AND PIE (S TIG AND
PROPOSED) SHALL O CONSIDERED PAKT F THE COST FOR THE PROJECT.

12, EGRESS FKOM THE SITE SHALL BE CONTROLLED SUCH THAT VENICLES LEAVING THE 5
TRAVERSE CONSTRUCTION EXITS TO REMOVE MUD FROM TIRES,

aime wusT

. O MINIMIZE THE
EXPOSURE, IN SCHEOULING, TAKE INTO ACCOUNT THE SEASON AND THE WEATHER FORECAST,

14, EROSIN CONTROL MEASURES AKE THE MINIMUM KEQUIKLD, THE CONTRACTGR SHALL PROVIDE.
AL CONTROL NEAGURES AG DICTATEO B ACTUAL FIELD CONOTTIGHS AT TNE IME OF
CALSTRUCTIG N ORGLH TG PRCUET EOIMERT. EROS
SEDIENT COUTROL MEASURES WL REWARY I LACE AND BE HATAED UNY I THE ENTIRE
PRONET 5 TENMMATED N SUEPENOED LR WD WEELPMITE LEnCTn OF TWE. ALL GISTURGED
AREAS SHALL BE PLANTED WITH PERMANENT VEGETATION,

19 IHE CATA TOGETMEN I AL OIEW HFORMATION SHOUM ON THESE PLAS R
OICATED THEREUY WIETHER 81 DIANMGS CRNOTLS, OR MANY OTHER MAMNER 15 3ASED
ATIGNS AND 15 BELIEVED 70 B WOICATIV OF ACTUAL GOt
E SAME 15 SHOWN A LY I NOY GOARMTEED AD GOEE NOT 81D
THIONAS § LTGRO THE OACH

K8 ANY WAY.

(CONTRACTOR SHALL MAWTAI SITE ON A DAILY BAS13 TO PROVIOE FOK POSITIVE DK
CONTHACTOR ATMIS CGGT SHALL GUADE STC AND PHOVIOE NECESARY TEMPORAKY Skanisce
SWALES TO ISUKE 5TORM WATEK DOES:

17, SITE DRAINAGE SHALL BE ESTABLISHED TO PREVENT ANY PONOED WATER CONDITIONS WITHIN
THE TO FACIUITATE

10 THE ESCAPE oF SEDINENT FOM T STE SHALL BE PHVENTED 81 1€ WSTALLATION OF

GONSTHUCTION SITE OR ANEAVBY LOGATION EASILY AGCESSIOLE
HOURKS. FROM THE DATE OF COMMEN
AL STABLEATION 1 HEACHED,

12, BTIATE STABLUATION MEASURES Q1 Y EXPOSED STEED SLOPE (31 11
ACTIVITICS MAVE PR O TEMPORAKILY CEASED. AND WILL HOT
KESUME OR A PERIOD OF 1 CALEHOA DAYS.

13, MINIMIZE SOIL COMPAGTION IN AREAS NOT UNDER s

IGEMENT OF CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES TO THE DATE THAT

R GREATER) WHERE

EOIMENT GOt
ARG GISTURBHG ACTITIES.

19, UME RATES AND ANALY:
01, AGHICULTURAL U SHALL BE APPIED AT THE RATE Sriow 4 HE

AVAILABLE FOR CONTACT WITH STORM WATER.

1. UMIT APPUICATION OF FERTILIZERS TO THE MIKIMUM NEEDED
02 APRLY CUENTLY BUT AT LONER APPLICATION e
63 UM U5t OF DETERGENTS Ot
ISCHANGE YA WATER HITO STORM WATER $YSTEM
PITAW STRUCIOAAL AND VEGETATIE DUFS
PPLY ACCONDRIG 10 501 TEST AECOMMENDATIONS PRIGR T0 SEEONIG,

1X. GRASSING NOTES

o

500 SHALL BE NURSERY GROWN AS CLASSIFIED It THE ASPS GS5, MACHINE CUT 50D AT A

MPOSITION Ad VAT WHICH 13 EXIS TG I NO 500 T FE EXIST. THEN THE

COMPOSITIGH SHALL BE USED,
2. SODUING SCHEDULE

15 FOR. SEPTEMBER 15 T0

wy )
NGVEMBER 1 FOR FALL PLANTING.
3 seeo

ALL SEED SHALL CONFORM TO ALL STATE LAWS AUD TO ALL KEQUIREMENTS AND REGULATIONS.
9F,THE SOUTH CAKOLHUA DEPAKTHENT OF AGRICULTURE, I SEVERAL VARICTES o SECD
SHALLBE HOMIDUALLY PACRAGLD GR DAL 0 SHOW NAME OF SEED NET

f EHMBATION, LOT IMBER. A0 OTHER P ORMATIGH REGUINED 81 THE
DEPARTHENT OF AGHICULTORE

uness sol e ATION.IF
S APPLICD WITNN S MONTIS Of PLANTRIG PLRMATEN EGETATIOH.
Auul‘rlmu LM 5 NOT REQUIRED. AGAKULTUNAL UMC APPLIGATION SALL B WA THE
e

UHLESS INFEASIBLE PRESERVE TOPSOIL

14, MINIMIZE THE DISCHAKGE OF POLWUTANTS FROM EGUIPENT AND VEHICLE WASHING WHEEL
WASH VATER AND THER WASH WATERS, WASH WATER ' WUST BE TREATI

15, MIIMIZE THE DISCHAKGE OF POLLUTANTS, FROM DEVIATERING OF TKENCHES AND EXCAVATED.

AREAS, THESE DISCHARGES ARE TO 8 ROUTED THROUGH APPROPRIATE BMPS (EOIENT BASK

FILTER 5AG.

16, THE FOLLOWING DISCHARGES AKE PROIBITED

10, WASTEWATER OF CONCKETE UNLESS APPROPKIATE

162 WASTEWATER OF OF GTUCCO, PAWT, ons
CURIIG COMPOUNDS AND OTHER CONSTRUCTION MATERIALS,

193, FUELS, OPERATION AND.

oL
FUNCTION INEFFECTIVELY SHALL BE PROMPTLY KEPLAGED,
5 VEGETATION COVER

ANY VEGETATION COVER SERVING TO STAVILZE DISTURBED S01L5 WHICH 15 ITSELF DISTURBED
SHALL IMMEOIATEL'( BE REPLACED,

6. CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE

MAINTAIN KOCK CONSTRUGTION ENTRANGE AND CLEAN ADJACENT KOADS OF ANY MUD.
THAGKED ONTO THEM

IV. INSPECTIONS

‘GUALIFIED PEKSONNEL WILL INSPECT DISTURBED AREAS OF THE GONSTRUCTION SITE AREAS.
USED FOR STORAGE OF MATERIALS THAT ARE EXFOSED 10 PRECIPTATION AT HAVE OY BEe
FINALLY STABILLZED, STRUCTURAL CONTROL MEASURES, AND LOCATIONS WHERE Vt

ENTER OR EXIT T SITEATLCAGY OUCE EVENY SEVLH CALENOAT OhvS, e smmm
BEEN FINALLY STABILLIED SUCH L BE CONOUCTED AT LEAST ONGE EVER

I DU THE WAKRANTY PERIGD.

DISTUNEDAREAS N3 AL AS USLO O STGRAGE OF WATERIALS AT KL ERPOSLO I
ECIPITATION SHALL BE INSPECTED FOR EVIDENCE OF. OR THE POTENTIAL FOR
ENTERPLC T ORANAGE SYETEM. EROSON AD SEOIMENT COUTHOL MERSUNES DENTIED B
THE PLAN SHALLBE OBSEAVED TO ENSURL THAT IMEVARE OPCRATIIG CORREGTLY. WHERE
OISCHARGE LOCATIONS OR PORY CESSIBLE THEY SHALL BE INSPECTED TO ASCERTAN
WETIER EROsION cmmmuuwxssusw[cwewplzvemmu SRNCAN PACTS
EXIT THE SITE SHALL BE

BISPECTED FON EVIOENCE Of OFFSITE SEOMENT TRACKNG.

MANTENANGE. AND
164, S0APS OK SOLVENTS USED I VENICLE AND EQUIPMENT WASHING.

V7. AFTER CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITICS BEGH NEPECTIGNS WJST UE COUOUGTED AT A il
VERY CALENDAR WEEK
REACHED ot AL AREAS OF THE CONSTRUCTION T

ED I A SEOIMLNT BAGH
0K ALTERNATIVE COUTROL THAT PROVIOES EUAL OK BETTEK TREATMENT PRIOK 10 DISCHARGE.

TED AT A MININUM OF
AHD WUST BE CONDUGTED UNTIL FIRAL STABILZATION 15

AGRICULTURE.
20, MULGHIG.

MULCHING 1S REQUIKED FOK ALL PERMANENT VEGETATION APPUCATIONS, HULCH APPLIED TO
SEEOED AREAS SHALL AGHIEVE 75% SOIL COVER. SELECT THE MULCHING WATERIAL FROM THE
FOLLOVING AHD APPLY AS IOIGATED,

201, DRY STRAVW Ot DKY HAY OF GOGD QUALITY AND FREE GF WEED SEEDS CAN BE USED,

STRAWSHALLDE APPLIED AT THE RATE OF TWO TOS PEK AGKE. DRYHAY SALL 0 oo
AT THE RATE OF 2 112 TONS PER

22 ML SHAL
T ShALL BE APPLIEDAT ARATE OF 200 PCUMOS PER AGE. DRY STRAW OF ORYHAY S4ALL BE
APPLIED (AT THE RATE INDICATED ALOVE) AFTCK M (ORAULIC SEEORG,

203, one WWOOD CELLULUS!

ACKIFIER. SHALL DE USEQ WITH HYDRAULIC SEEOING Off SLOPES i 1 OK STEEPER
GENICEA LESPEDEZA NAY CONTAINING MATURE SEED SHALL BE APPLIED AT A RATE OF 3 TONS

204,

PERACKE
205 PUIE STRAW OK PINE BARK SHALL BE APPLIED AT A THICKNESS OF 3 WCHES FOR BEODING.
RPOSES, OTHER SUITAULE MATERIALG IN SUFFICIENT GUANTITY MAY BE USED WHERE.
PLANTED, TH15 16 HOT

SEEDED AREAS.
205, VA{EN USIG TEMPORAKY EKOSION CONTROL BLANKETS OR BLACK 500, MULCH 15 NOT
el

e s L e 07, SLORESGAEATU k10 LET UGN A 4 ORSTELPA Ut I LA
e QUi bEFNE L COUTOLBLKETS THATHAVE B e
PKAUI(,AIILE IF M-lmmum BEFORE THI ENEXY .A‘UKIA EVENT 15 IMPRACTICABLE. T) ACRORTRIG TOTHE MAMIEAGTURER'S INSTRUETIONS;
LTI B GGELMEATLO e SubP A ALTERIATME i ST EAENTED

SO0 A REASUADLY POLEILE ' xer xer

" ENCE MUST 0 smewm
ALPRGUED OLSITE et »klan o T INFLLMETATION O CONSTAUC TN ACTY
AR PHOUECTS THAT OIZTURD 10 ACKES ON MORE THiS COM EREHCE WOST BENELD
GRS GHLESS THE OEPARTMENT NAS APPRGVED OTHERWSE

VII. EROSION, SEDIMENTATION & POLLUTION CONTROL NOTES

1. THE IMPLEMENTATION OF THESE EROSION SEOIMENT CONTROL (ESC) PLANS AND T
CONETHGCTION, MARTENNICE KEPLACEMENT AND UPORADIG OF TESE L5C IACIITIES
KESPONSIBILITY OF THE CONTRACTOR UNITIL ALL CONGTRUCTION 15 COMPLE'

AND VEGETATIONILANDSCAPING 15 ESTABLISHED,

2

SEOIMENT LADEN WATLR 0GHIOT ENTER THE ORAWAGE 5YSTEM, KCADWAYS. O VLA
APPLICABLE WATE

AWRITTEN REPOKT SUMMARLZING THE SCOPE OF THE INSPECTION, NAME(:
OF PENGOUNEL MAYHIG THE BISPECTION THL OATE(S O THE HSFECTION WEATHER

BUCHMATION TOR THE PERIOD SHGE e 10K (O SHCE COM)

CoNsTRUCTION

EVENT OURATION OF

DEQUAT OCATION
i mouovm m mz it nispECTION 1D iy CORRECTVE ACTIO REGUIRED
SARY

4. DIE AEPORT SHALL BE MANTANED AT LEAST THACE YEARS FHOM THE DATE THE SIT 5 ALY
. THE IGHED A

KEPRT MUST BE SIGHE L CONTAI A CERTIFICATION Th
FLIAICE W THE STORM WATER POLLUTIGN PIEVENTION PLAM AND THE
FERENCED ABOVE. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL MATAR THIS REPORT. THE

KEPOKT SHALL BE SUBMITTED TO THE ENGIEER AND OWNES
V. LONG TERM MAINTENANCE OF DRAINAGE AND STORM WATER
MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

e SYSTEMWILL BE
CONSTAUCTION 15 COMPLETE

VI. SC DHEC STANDARD NOTES

IFNECESSANY. SLOPES WHIH EXCEEO EIGHT 1 (RTICAL FEET SHOULD BE STABKZED it

GRASSING / H TDKOSEEDING. IT MAY.
NECESSARY TOWNSTAL 13500 ORARS DURMG CONBTRUCTION. TEMPORARY
'BERMS MAY BE NEEDED UNTIL THE SLOPE 15 BROUGHT TO.

IR O TAOCTION ACTWITES NAVE TEMPORARKY, OK PERNANENTLY CASED. WUT B
NO CASE MORE THAN FOURTEEN (14) DAYS. AFTER WORK HAS CEASED, EXCEPT AS STATED

VWHERE STABILZAT
22 \HERE CONSTRUCTIGACTIVITY Gt A PORTION OF THE SITE 15 TEMPORAKILY GEASED, AND
EARTH.OISTURBING ACTIVITIES WILL BE RESUMED WITHIN 14 DAYS TEMPORARY
STABILIZATION MEASURES DO NOT HAVE 1O BE INITIATED ON THAT PORTION OF THE SITE.

THE 1474 DAY

soAw DEVICES SHALL
WEEK, IF PERIOOIC WISPECTION R OTHER INFORMATION IDICATES THAT A GMP HAS BEEN USEO
WAPPROPRIATEL ( OR WCORRECTLY. THE PERMITTEE MUST ADDRESS THE NECESSARY
REPLACEMENT OR NODIFICATION KEGUIRED TO CORRECT THE BMP WITHI 46 HOUKS OF
IDERTIFICATION

3. HEESC EACIITICS o o THISPLANAKE THE MIIMUM KEGUIEUENTS 10K ATICPATEO

THE COSTRUCTION PEIOD. THESE E5C
LCEOED O UNEXPECTED STO
'SEDIMENT LADEN WATER 0O NOT LEAVE THE

FAGILITICS SHALL b

4. THE ESC FACILITIES SHALL ¢
NECESSARY TO ENSURE THEIR CONTIUED FUNCTIONING.

Per
THE 24 HOUKG

5 Meesc ALL BE iEP

6, ATNO TIME SHALL MORE THAN ONE FOOT OF SEOIMENT BE ALLOWED TO ACCUMULATE WITHIN A
(E5 SHALL BE CLEANED PRIOR TO PAVING.
EARG GPERATION SHALL NOT FLUSH SEOIMENT LADEN

‘CATCH BASIN ALL CATCH BASINS AND CONVE YANCE LI
AND PRIOK TO FIAL INSPECTION, THE CLL
WATEK INTO THE DGWHSTREAM SYSTEM,
7. STAUILIZED CONSTRUCTION ENTRANGES SHALL BE INSTALLED AT THE DEGINNING OF
‘COUSTRUCTION AUD MAINTAIED FOR THE DUR
MAY BE REQUIRED TO ISURE THAT ALL PAVED AREAS ARE KEPT CLEAN FOR THE DURATION OF
THE PROJECT.

. BEFORE COMMENGIG ANY LAND DISTURBING ACTIVITY., THE EXISTING STORM WATER INLET(S)

THAT RECEIVING KUNGFF FROM THE PROPOSED WORK AKEA SHALL BE PROTEC
TENPORARY INLET PROTLCTION MUST REMAUN I PLACE UNTIL THE CONSTRUCTION ACTITY 15
COMPLLTED, THE STREET HAS b 5015 ARE STABI

INSTALLED. AFTER ALL DISTURBED AREAS ARE STABILIZED, TEMPORARY PROTECTION OF THE.
IHLETS MAY BE ACCOMPLISHED bY OHE OR MORE OF THE FOLLOVING.

1, USE OF GRAVEL BAGS TO FILTER THE SEOIMENT FKOM ANY KUI

GR 14 INCH PEA GRAVEL

LOCAL ERO3ION CONTROL SUPPLIERS)
83, USELOF AL
ANY RUNOFF (AVAILABLE THROUGH EROSIOH COUTROL SUPPLIERS)

9. WATEK WAY NOT BE

LOGDIG ON THE SITE. ON DOWNSTRE
STORM WATER WILET, WHEN SITE DEWATERING, WATEK PUMPED FROM THE SITE NCLUOIG
TRENCHES, SHALL BE TREATED BY GHE OF THE FOLLOWING

0.1, TEMPORARY SEOIMENTATION BASKS.
92, SEDIMENT FILTEKING BAGS,

15 THE
TED AND APPROVED

MITH AL
CUEAWRG AN GRAOIO ACTMITIES. 1O SUH A HAMNER A5 TO RSURE THAT SEOMENT AHD
i

14 EVENTS AND TO ENSURE THAT SEOIMENT AND.
e,

1014 OF THE PROJECT. ADDITIONAL MEASURES:

(OFF. TO MAKE A GRAVEL BAG,
USE A BAG MADE OF GEOTEXTILE FABRIC (NOT BURLAP) AND FILL VITH EITHER 34 BICH ROGK
®

USE OF SEDIMENT LOGS TO FILTER THE SEOIMENT FKOM ANY KUNOF F (AVAILABLE THROUGH
)

JOVE K UNDER-GRATE FILTEK BAGS OK DEVICES TO FILTEK THE SEOIMENT FROM

ok
AM PROPERTIES, 1 THE RECEIVING CHANNELS. OR I ANY

« 31 SLOPES OR STEEPER -WOOD OK 5 TRAV BLAKET WITH NET OH BOTH SIES
+ 41 SLOPES O FLATTER - WOOD OK STRAW MULCH BLANKET WITH NET ON GHE SI0E

VIIl. HOUSEKEEPING

THESE PERFORMANCE STANDARDS APPLY TO ALL SITES,

1. PETHOLEUM PRODUCTS ICLUDING O, GASOLINE, LUBKICANTS AND ASPHALTIC SUBSTANCES,

1.0, HAVE EQUIPMENT TO CONTAIN AND GLEAN UP PETROLEUM SPILLS I FUEL STORAGE AREAS.
TENANCE AND FUELING VEHICLES
12, STORE IN COVEKED AKEAS PROTECTED WITH OIKES.

SPILLS. PREVENTION AND RESPONSE
21, STORE AN NANIDLE MATERIALS TO PREVENT SPILLS

22 TIGHTLY SEALED COHTAWERS. HEAT AND SECUKE STACKING.ETC.
2

(UP MATERIALS SHOULD BE KEADILY AVAILABLE
STOP THE SOUK
CONTANN THE SPILL

3. NOW-5TORM WATER DISCHARGES

e
POLLUTION OK EKOSION

31, DISCHARGES FROM FRE FGHTNG ACTMTES

32, FIRE HYORANT FLUSHIt

33 VATERSUSEO To WA VEHIGLES WHERE DETERGENTS AKE NOTU3ED

s R USED TO CONTROL DUST

35 vuumiwAvmM.wnimum.muwulzbmlukunimnnnas

30, KOUTIE EXTERNAL BUILOWG 7 DOES NoT UsE DETERGENTS

DAVEUENT WASH WATERS AHERE SPWL5 OR \EAKS OF Toxk. O RAARDOVS MATERIALS
VAVENOT GCCURNED (UNCESS ALL SPILLED MATEWIAL S BEEW REMOVED) AD WHERE

DETERGENTS AKE NOT USED

3,

30, UNCONTAMIATED GROUND WATER GR SPRING WATER

MATERIALS SUCH A5 SOLVENTS
UNCONTAMNATED EXCAVATIN DEVATERNG
LANDSCAPE IRRIGAT

DECHLGRWATED SWHMING POOL DISGHARGES,

SUPPLIES, ETC.

41 SELECT ADEGIONATED WASTE COLLECTION AREA
42, PROVIOE LIDS FOR WASTE GO

4. VINEN POSSIBLE LOCATE G W COVERED AKEA
431 ANTAN CONSISTENY REWCUAL SCHEDULE FOR WASTE

MLen) PukITY
GERMINATION

32 PUkIT wTIoH
33 DOMESTIC ITALIAN RYE TESTIO bs FEHCENT PURITY AND 96 PERCENT GERMPATION

4 MISCEULANEOUS

AL PERMANENT CovER ALL
LANDSCAPE PLANTING BEDS, STRUCTURE OR PAVEMENT
42, SEEDALL BED AKEAS WITH) IAYS OF HINAL GRADING AND TEMPORARY

AKEAS THAT WALL BE LEFT IIACTIVE FOR MORE THAN FOURTEEN (14) DAYS.

ALL PERMANENT GHAGG PLANTIGS GHALL Bl MULCHED

GHHIPEDL 500 CAN UE UGEDAS PEIANGIT COVEA AT EACEP JUHE 1WA OC108EH

F GRASEIIG OSCURG DURING A MOUTH RiG! MPORARY COVER. THE CUNTRACTON

AL APPLY PLRMALENT EOVR 1 ADBTON T THE EMPORM COVEN, AT THE APHOPATE
T

AN AT LEAST VR, BARG SPOTS G WOY BE MORE Tl 1 G SGUMRE W ANY

X. PERMANENT STABILIZATION

ot TAPH ExcEzave
PEDESTRIAN THAFFIC TABLISHED. IF
NECESSARY. AREAS WJST BE REWORKED mum.smmuw , ceRMATION 5 SpARSE, T
COVERAGE 13 5POTTY WOKE

APPLY TO THE SITE.

41, SEEDEDAREAS

FOK SEEDED AKEAS. PERMANENT STADILZATIGN MEANS A 00% COVEK OF THE DISTURBED
MEALTHY e
TOPSON.

42 S0DDED AKEAS

FOK SODDED AREAS PERMANENT STABILIZATION MEANS THE COMPLETE BINOIG OF THE 500
KOOTS INTO THE APPKOVED MULCH MATEKIAL

43 PERMANENT MULCH

FOR MULCHED AREAS, PERMANENT MULGHING MEANS TOTAL COVERAGE OF THE EXPOSED.
AREA WITH AN APPROVED MULCH MATERIAL

aa RPRA

¥ PERMANENT THAT SLOPES.
STABILIZED VATH KIPRAP HAVE AN APPROPRIATE BACKING OF At APPROVED GEOTEATICE TO
(OIL MOVEMENT FKOM BEWID THE KIPRAP,

OITCHES, CHANNELS AND SWALES

THE CHANNEL 15
MATURE Wit

m TIHKEE

REUANCE. 3 . THEKE

MUST BE NO EVIDLNGE OF SLUMPING GF THE LINING, UNDERCUTTING OF THE BANKS. O
DOWN CUTTING OF THE CHANNEL,

XI. FERTILIZER REQUIREMENTS

1. TEMPORARY SEEONG FERTRIZEK

H

ALY AMIIAJM OF 400153 PLIACHL OF ACOMPLETE 161810 FERTIIZER 11 POUNDS PER
R EQUIVALENT Oul SEEO

NE TOP &4 ICHES OF 1 (SKING OR OTHER MEANS WHERL C: 15 AL
150U KEQUIKED FOR TENPORALY SECORIGUIILES3 ASOIL TESY SHOWS THAT THE SOL P 12
. 1715 DESIKAGLE TO APPLY LIME DURKIG THE TEMPORARY SEEONG OPERAT)

BENErT e LONG.TEAM PERMAUENT SLEOR. APPLY A HIMAJM OF 1 TONS OF UNE 1AGKE
(T0L85,11060 50, ¢

2 PERMANENT SEEOMG FERTIIZER

APPLY A MINIMOM
1000 SCUARE F S0l
TEBTMOCATEE A DI FERENT RECUREMENT mw!vonnumvln.mAwuuf i UEE0ITO
THE TOP 46 INCHES OF THE 501 BY DISKING OK GTH

T Mk THE LM AND THE FERTILEEN FRION 16, THE FIELD APPLCATI, UNLE2S A LPECH
SOILTEST INOICATES GTHERWISE. APPLY 1 & 112 TONS GF GROUND COARSE TEATURED
AGRICULTURAL LIMESTONE PER ACRE (70 LBS. / 1000 SQ.FT .

OF AGOMPLET

XII. SWPP PREPARER CERTIFICATION

IMAVE PLACED MY SIGNATUKE AND SEAL ON THE DESIGN DOCUMENTS SUBMITTED SIGNIFYING THAT |
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ACCEPT RESPONSIBLITY FGR TNE DESGN OF THE SYSTEM,FURTHEN, 1 CERTIFY TOTHE BEST OF WY
KNOWLEDGE AND BELIEF THAT THE DESIGH t CONGISTENT WITH TLE 4y
CHNAPTER b4 OF THE COUE OF LS OF 5, 191643 AWENDED, PORSUANT 10 REGULNTION 12500 &
(UF APPLICABLE) AHO I ACCOKOANCE WITH THE TERMS AO CONDITIGNS OF 5CK 100000

BT T I00. 00
OATE, T 01,04.2022
oA Al
CES GNED. MAL

CVCWD.
APPROVED PR
CAL o N/A

ECO.
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TEMPORARY SEEDING - COASTAL

STORMWATER POLLUTION PREVENTION PLAN

EROSION CONTROL LEGEND

EROSION CONTROL LEGEND

EROSION CONTROL LEGEND

SPECIES [ tBs/iAC_[ AN [Fes [maAR APR MAY [JUN Touc [AuG Tser [ocTTnov DEC
SANDY, DROUGHTY SITES DESCRIPTION. PLAN_SYMBOL DESCRIPTION. QESCRIPTION. BLAN_SYMBOL
—ewEmE ] @ | | — — | | | g
Gi S I’ = - EROSION CONTROL BLANKET OR TURF
RYE, GRAIN o) | i * sur rence [ — Eroson coutrol o ook rEcK o > > E E
RYEGRASS | % = 3 | .
WELL DRAINED, CLAYEY/LOAMEY SITES
T [ ; S— . e Godinme ) - M
JAPANESE MILLET 40 | ;"'
RYE GRAIN £ {
St s . DIvERSION DIKE =0p=> HONDED FIBER ATHIX BFM STALIZED CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE E‘
RYEGRASS N ———— I S o
— S
J— — - © S— |
PERMANENT SEEDING - COASTAL STOKM OKAW INLET PROTECTION - TYPE b i
[svecies [osac [w  Jres  [ww  [r |wa [an e [ae [se Joor  [vov o — == p— @ o oo s A 8
! 1 1 T— -
‘ SANDY, DROUGHTY SITES = 5
BROWNTOP MILLET | w0 S 1 Tre
| ! STORM DRAIN INLET PROTECTION = TYPE
| B | o | PERMANENT DIVERSION —=PD—= STAKED 500 A
[ Seoment upe
i BROWNTOP MILLET 0| [ B
| BAHIAGRASS o | 1 — STAED 500 ARGOD WET - STORM ORAMN INLET PROTECTION - TYPE ;
| e | "
| seRIcEA LESPEDEZA w | | | HAROWARE. FABKIC AND STONE
I erownToR MILLET [0 i
ATLANTIC COASTAL LI STORM ORAI INLET PROTECTION — TYPE e 4
| s s 1| VEGETATED CHANNEL [=m—=C] RIPRAP LC] | @
‘ PANICGRASS s | Buock anD caAvEL HoeH H
| erownropmuier | a0 | *
| SWITCHGRASS | e | STORM ORAI INLET PROTECTION ~ TYPE
I RIP RAP UINED. CHANNEL QUILET PROTECTION ~ P kAP
| (ALAMO) | s | RGO INLET ALTER
Il UITTLE BLUESTEM ‘ 4 i |
| SERICEALESPEDEZA | 20 STORM ORAIN INLET PROTECTION ~ TYPE =x {
[ : . £CO OR TRM LINED CHANNCL [ QUILLT PROTECTION = £CB OR TRM |
[ erownToP MLLET w0 SURTAGE COURSE CURD INLET FILTER Ll
I WELL DRAINED, CLAYEY/LOAMEY SITES . STOKM ORAM INLET PROTECTION - TrPE
It . PAVED CHANNEL PCmm DUST CONTROL P
BROWNTOP MILLET AL INET TUBE
[ satnrass o | § :
I T i STORM DRAM INLET PROTLCTION ~ TYPE @
RYE, GRAN 1 TREE PROTECTION { POLYACKTLAMOE (PAV) 0% ¢
| BAHIAGRASS. 40 LY IMPERVIOUS AREA n|Z <z 5
| g 0
| CLOVER, CRIMSON (ANNUAL) | & |0 2z ¢
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ISO Lift Station Upgrade

Exhibit D
Project Narrative and Objectives

Need:

Fibertex, one of Europe’s leading manufacturers of nonwoven textiles, has two facilities in
North America. One is in Ingleside, Illinois and the other is in Gray Court, Laurens County, South
Carolina. The Gray Court facility produces material used in various products such as baby wipes,
face masks, footwear, bedding, and furniture. Currently, they have one production line with an
annual capacity of 14,000 tons of nonwoven textiles.

The Gray Court Fibertex Facility is adding a second production line, slated to be operational in
the fourth quarter of 2022. Three (3) more lines are tentatively planned for the years 2025,
2027 and 2032.

Wastewater from the Fibertex is collected in the ISO Parkway Pump Station (IPPS) adjacent to
the current facility on ISO Parkway. The pump station is owned and operated by the Laurens
County Water & Sewer Commission (LCWSC). Currently, flow to this station, approximately
40,000 gpd, is exclusively from Fibertex.

In addition to Fibertex, these infrastructure improvements are necessary to accommodate the
anticipated future increase in flow from Fibertex expansion(s), the Gray Court Owings School
(currently on a septic system), potential neighboring residential and commercial tracts, and
portions of the Town of Gray Court along Main Street.

The LCWSC has received preliminary approval for $3,221,000 in funding, see Section F., Project
Costs. LCWSC is requesting $346,250 in ARPA funds from Laurens County to complete
construction of the project. This will allow the LCWSC to maintain its current limited reserve fund
balance for other needed projects in the County and minimize the potential for future rate
increases to our customers.

Project Description:

LCWSC owns and operates an existing sanitary sewer collection system in the vicinity of the
Fibertex property. Wastewater from this system flows to the ISO Parkway Pump Station. The
pump station, originally constructed in 2017, consists of two (2) 15-HP submersibles with a duty
point of 95 GPM at 180 feet TDH. Analysis of pump run times show a current average daily flow
to the ISO Parkway Pump Station of approximately 40,000 GPD. Flow from the station is
through a 4-inch, 16,000 LF force main that discharges into a receiving manhole located
approximately three miles to the north, in Owings Industrial Park. Flow from this manhole is
through a 12-inch gravity sewer line to the Owings Industrial Park Pump Station. The Owings
Industrial Park Pump Station (OIPPS) transmits flow north via a series of force mains, gravity
mains, and pump stations to its eventual treatment at Durbin Creek Wastewater Recovery
Facility (DCWWRF) owned and operated by Renewable Water Resources (ReWa).
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ISO Lift Station Upgrade

Projected average daily flow to the ISO Parkway Pump Station is 405,000 gpd. Therefore, the
existing pump station is currently undersized to accommodate the expected future flow.

This project will consist of the construction of a new duplex pump station to replace the existing
station. The station will be equipped with a stand-by generator package to maintain operability
in the event of power loss. Pumps will be sized to handle flow from the anticipated Fibertex
expansion, Gray Court Owings School, a 15-acre commercial tract, a 61-acre residential tract
and the “commercial” district of the Town of Gray Court. The 350-GPM pump station will be
designed to be easily upgradable as growth increases. The 4-inch force main to the Owings
Industrial Park will be replaced with a new 8-inch force main.

The proposed improvements will also decommission the existing ISO Parkway Pump Station. If
possible, parts from the existing pump station will be removed and stored as spare parts for other
similar sized pump stations with compatible equipment. LCWSC will also evaluate the feasibility
of trailer mounting the existing generator so it can be used as a portable generator for other
compatible pump stations. The total construction cost of the ISO Lift Station upgrade is
$3,798,000, which includes engineering.

The project schedule will take place over approximately 440 days. It is anticipated that the
Engineering Design will take 60 days, Agency Permitting will take 50 days, Bidding and Award
will take 60 days, and Construction will take 270 days. A more detailed project schedule table
can be found in an Appendix to this application.

Feasibility:

Preliminary analysis of topography along the proposed force main alignments indicates typical
construction conditions. High points exist along the 16,000 LF force main route, which will
require air release valves (ARV) and manholes. The planned pump station and approximately
2,870 LF of the 16,000 LF of the force main will require property and easement acquisition from
Fibertex, as these will be located off public right-of-way (ROW). All other pipeline routing will be
installed within public ROW, thus minimizing the time and legal efforts required for property
acquisition.

From available National Wetlands Inventory database information, there appear to be no
wetlands or waters of the state along the proposed route, minimizing the environmental
permitting efforts required prior to construction.

The force main, where crossing road intersections and railroad spurs, will be installed by the
trenchless horizontal directional (HDD) drilling method. All other construction will be installed
per typical open cut construction techniques.

Construction methods for this project will be typical. No extraordinary depths are anticipated.
At the completion of design and successful permitting, the project will be developed into a
single competitive bid package. The bid package will then be procured through LCWSC and
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ISO Lift Station Upgrade

South Carolina procurement procedures. Bid competition will be based on price, bidder
experience, competence, and other LCWSC curriculum typical with South Carolina procedures.

Once a successful bidder is identified, a single contract award will be issued, and construction
will commence on the project as designed. When construction is complete, project testing,
startup and closeout will be conducted per LCWSC and SCDHEC protocols, at which point
LCWSC will take ownership and maintenance responsibilities for the pump station and force
main.

Evaluation (Benefits):

Successful completion of this project will allow Fibertex Industries to complete their
expansion(s) plans at their Gray Court facility. Creating much need jobs in the community which
is paramount in ensuring that Laurens County can quickly recover from the hardship and
adversity that COVID-19 has caused the communities.

Laurens County demographics further demonstrate the need for this project. Though the
County is in a prime location for industrial development, situated in the heart of Upstate SC,
many residents have been unable to take advantage of the industrial growth in the upstate.
Lack of good transportation can make it hard for many to make the commute.

This project will encourage and allow the residential, commercial, and industrial development
to continue in this part of Laurens County and around the Town of Gray Court.
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LOCATION/SERVICE AREA MAPS
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Fibertex Sewer Upgrade
Lift Station and 15,850 ft of 8" FM
Project Cost: $3,798,000




Exhibit F

Project Team:

The Laurens County Water and Sewer Commission (LCWSC) will be responsible for the
administration and construction of this project. After construction, the LCWSC will be solely
responsible for ownership, operations, and maintenance of the life of the project.
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Sewer Collection Budget Summary

In FY2022 the annual budget included operating income for Sewer Collection of $669,360
and operating expenses for Sewer Collection of $616,545. The net revenue of $52,816 plus
expected capacity and tap fees of $120,475 along Sewer Collection reserve funds are used
to pay for annual capital improvements totaling $242,675.



Collection Budget

OPERATING BUDGET
INCOME
Volume Fees LCWSC
Volume & Base Fees (Billed by City of Clinton)
Monthly Base Fee ($9/account)
O&M Surcharge
Industrial Repair Surcharge
Underused Operational Surcharge
Grease Trap Fee
Pump Station Maintenance / Surcharge (cost plus 10%)
Origination Fees
TOTAL OPERATING INCOME

EXPENSES

PAYROLL

Gross Salaries (Includes Temporary Help)
Overtime / On Call

FICA/Medicare

S.C. Retirement

Employee Uniform Expenses

Employee YMCA Membership

S.C. Unemployment

Insurance Health/Dental/Long-Term Disability
Insurance Disability (Short Term)

Insurance Workers Compensation

Employee Accrual Cost for Other Retirement Benefits
Employee Drug Test / Background Checks
Employee Health Services

TOTAL PAYROLL

ADMINISTRATIVE
Administrative Fees

WD Billing Admin Fee

Employee License Renewal/Testing
Employee Reimbursement (Mileage)
Computers/Software Maintenance
Mission Controls Service/Repair
Phone Mobile (Usage/Purchase)
Training Conferences / Seminars
Training Safety

Railroad R/W Fee

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE

OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE
C Root & Grease Control

Chemicals (Herbicides / Pesticides)

E Backhoe CAT 420D

E Camera and Trailer

E Oil and Lube

E Other Equipment Maintenance

E Pressure Washer Harbin

E Tractor/loader 2012 M8540 Kubota

E Trailer Maintenance

Section 4

, . PROPOSED  INCREASE / .
FY21 BUDGET | S8 i [DECEEASE) %OF BUDGET
$ 457297 $ 469,338 S 12,041 70.12%
$ 67.200 $ 81.600 $ 14,400 12.19%
$ 78,948 $ 92,880 $ 13,932 13.88%
$ 6.120 $ 4560 $ (1.560) 0.68%
$ - 28 . 3 . 0.00%
$ 16,792 $ 16792 $ - 2.51%
$ 1.200 $ 1,100 $ (100) 0.16%
$ 1,470 $ 1470 $ - 0.22%
$ 1.620 $ 1620 $ - 0.24%
S 630,647 S 669,360 S 38,713 100.00%
$ 151,442 $ 156.106 $ 4,664
$ 15.025 $ 15218 $ 193
$ 12,735 § 13,106 $ 372
$ 25458 $ 27.883 $ 2,426
$ 4260 $ 4260 $ -
$ 900 $ 900 $ -
$ - $ - $ -
$ 31417 $ 34972 $ 3,553
$ 1322 $ 1383 § 60
L 4750 $ 5600 $ 850
$ 7,873 8 B (7.873)
$ 400 $ 400 $ -
$ 800 $ 800 $ :
S 256,382 S 260,628 S 4,246 42.27%
$ 174,163 ' $ 223924 $ 49,761
$ 4410 $ 4410 $ -
$ 600 $ 600 $ =
$ 650 § 650 $ .
$ 1,250 § 1250 $ =
$ 6,986 $ 6,986 $ .
$ 2,660 $ 2,175 $ (485)
$ 2570 °$ 1995 $ (575)
$ 3,19 $ 3,19 $ -
$ 2902 $ 2902 $ 5
S 199,387 § 248,088 S 48,701 40.24%
$ 3250 $ 3075 S 23
$ 1,004 $ 1.045 $ 41
$ 625 $ 625 $ =
$ 750 $ 250 $ (500)
$ 200 $ 250 $ 50
$ 500 § 500 $ -
$ 750 $ 880 $ 130
$ 1,000 $ 1,000 $ -
$ 600 § 600 $ g



Collection Budget

E Polaris Rangers (2)

Fittings & Supplies

Pump Station Maintenance / Surcharge

LS Maintenance

LS Force Main Maintenance

LS Portable Generator

M Portable Pump

Enoree Septic

Right of Way

Tools & Supplies

Maintenance Tools & Supplies

Tools Safety Equipment

Utilities Connexial Blvd

Utilities Country Fresh

Utilities Gray Court A

Utilities HWY 356

Utilities HWY 235

Utilities HWY 385

Utilities HWY 76

Utilities ISO Parkway

Utilities Jail

Utilities O'Dell

Utilities Owings Industrial Park

Utilities Reedy Creek

Utilities Sullivan Rd

Utilities Woodfield

Utilities Owings #2

WW Gasoline/Diesel

WW Off Road Fuel

WWO07 Maintenance - 2 ton Dump Truck
WW11 Maintenance - Collection F450 4x4
WW 13 Maintenance - Collection Dodge Ram
WW 14 Maintenance - C\J F450 Boom Truck
WW135 Maintenance - C\J F150 4x4

WW 18 Maintenance-Collection New 250
WW19 Maintenance - Gene

WW20 Maintenance - Barry

TOTAL OPERATION & MAINTENANCE

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSE
NET CASH FOR CAPITAL PROJECTS

CAPITAL BUDGET
INCOME
Revenue
Reserve Funds
Interest Income
New Account Fees (Capacity Fees)
Capacity Fees Owings
Tap Fees
Assets Sold

TOTAL CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL INCOME

Section 4

. ; PROPOSED INCREASE / .
FY21 BUDGET FY22 BUDGET (DECREASE) %OF BUDGET
$ 500 $ 500 $ -
$ 1.000 $ 500 $ (500)
$ 2,400 $ g $ (2,400)
$ 15.000 § 15,000 $ -
$ 3,600 $ 3,600 $ -
$ 438 $ 438 $ E
$ 213§ 213 % s
$ 400 § 200 $ (200)
$ 19.200 § 18,600 $ (600)
$ 1,500 $ 1,500 $ .
$ 350 $ 350 § -
$ 2,730 § 2,730 $ -
$ = $ 2,184 § 2,184
$ 1.920 $ = $ (1.920)
$ 2,520 $ 2472 § (48)
$ 1,644 $ 1.644 $ .
$ 2436 $ 2436 $ -
$ 756 § 660 $ (96)
$ L.176  § 1,140 $ (36)
$ 1,680 $ 4,176 $ 2,496
$ 2244 $ 1.812 § (432)
$ 2,088 § 2,088 $ -
$ 3,960 $ 3,732 $ (228)
$ 6,720 $ 6.852 § 132
$ 5,112 8 5472 $ 360
$ 1.368 § 1,932 $ 564
$ 1,728  $ 2388 § 660
$ 10.560 $ 11,363 $ 803
$ 3.200 $ - $ (3.200)
$ 600 $ 600 $ -
$ 650 $ 650 $ -
$ 625 § 625 $ -
$ 1,000 $ 1,000 $ -
$ 650 § 650 $ -
$ 600 $ 650 $ 50
$ 650 $ 650 $ -
$ 600 § 600 § -
S 110,496 $ 107,829 § (2,667) 17.49%
S 566,266 $ 616,545 S 50,279 100.00%
S 64,382 § 52,816 S (11,566)
$ 64,382 $ 52,816 $ (11,566) 21.76%
$ 48,446 $ 69,384 $ 20,938 28.59%
$ B $ 2 $ = 0.00%
$ = $ 1,975 $ 1,975 0.81%
$ - $ -~ $ - 0.00%
$ . $ 118.500 $ 118.500 48.83%
$ 10,000 $ - $ (10,000) 0.00%
N 122,828 § 242,675 S 119,847 100%



Collection Budget

EXPENSES

SHORT TERM ASSETS

Vehicle Purchase

Equipment Purchase

Tool Purchase

Computer/Phone/ Software
TOTAL SHORT TERM ASSETS

LONG TERM ASSETS
New Taps
Owings Capacity Reserve Fund

Laurens County Sewer Service Master Plan Study

CDBG Grant - Lydia Mill

[SO Parkway / Fibertex Pump Station Upgrade
Pump Station Rehabilitation

Force Main Rehabilitation

Manhole Rehab

Gravity Sewer Line Rehab Projects

Sewer Meter Rehab & New Installation
Deprecation

TOTAL LONG TERM ASSETS

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENSES

TOTAL EXPENSES
NET CASH FOR RESERVE FUNDS

Section 4

B PROPOSED  INCREASE/ .
FY2I BUDGET |00 BUDGET (DECREASE) °OF BUPGET
$ 16,000 $ B (16,000)
$ 37,500 $ 36,950 $ (550)
$ 825 $ 5,000 $ 4,175
$ 750 $ 350 $ (400)

S 55075 S 42,300 S (12,775) 17.43%
$ . . B -

$ - & = s -

$ - = 12375 $ 12,375

$ 40,000 $ B (40,000)

$ - 8 100,000 $ 100,000

$ 17,753 $ 13,000 $ (4,753)

$ - 5 - B -

$ - i B -

$ - B 65,000 $ 65.000

$ 10,000 $ 10,000 $ -

$ - % B .

S 67,753 S 200,375 S 132,622 82.57%
S 122,828 $ 242,675 S 119,847 100.00%
$ 689,094 § 859220 S 170,126

$ 08 ©) $ o)



Collection Budget Section 4

Collection Budget

$800,000 — o
$700,000 -

$600,000
$500,000
$400,000
$300,000
$200,000
$100,000

Collection System
1. Overall Budget: $859,220 (Increase of $170,126)
2. Operating Budget: $616,545 (Increase of $50,279)
3. Increase in income by $38,713
e Increase in volume fees LCWSC and monthly base fee due to Winterbrook phase 2 and
part of Winterbrook phase 3 coming online
e Adjustment in volume & base fees (Billed by City of Clinton) to correct allocation
between collection and treatment for Lydia Mill charges
4. Payroll and Benefits increased by $4,246
e Includes a 1.0% increase in South Carolina Retirement System
e Includes a 2.6% increase for the State Health Insurance Plan starting in January 2022
o Includes various merit increases for employees
5. Administrative increased by $48,701
e Increase in Administration Fee Allocation — See Administration Budget
6. Operation and Maintenance decreased by ($2,667)
e Decrease in pump station maintenance / surcharge
e Increase in utilities
e Decrease in off-road fuel due to utilizing fuel cards
7. Capital Budget: $242,675 (Increase of $119,847)
e Revenue from operations: $52,816 (Decrease of $11,566)
e Reserve funds: $69,384 (Increase of $20,938)
e To cover ISO Parkway / Fibertex Pump Station upgrade engineering
e Increase in capacity fees and tap fees due to Winterbrook phase 2 and phase 3
e Decrease in assets sold




Collection Budget Section 4

8. Short Term Assets decreased by ($12,775)
e No vehicle purchase
e Decrease in equipment purchase but still includes a new backhoe
e Increase in tool purchase to include a new camera and smoke machine; split cost with
Clinton / Joanna (Wastewater Treatment)
9. Long Term Assets increased by $132,622
e Increase for Laurens County Sewer Service Master Plan Study
e Decrease in CDBG project local match for Lydia Mill — completed in FY21
e Increase for ISO Parkway / Fibertex Pump Station upgrade engineering
e Decrease in pump station rehabilitation
e Increase in gravity sewer line rehabilitation
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LovE Il BAILEY

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Honorable Board of Commissioners
Laurens County Water and Sewer Commission
" Laurens, South Carolina

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Laurens County Water and Sewer Commission,
Laurens, South Carolina, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2021, and the related notes to the financial
statements, as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly,
we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Laurens County Water and Sewer Commission as of June 30, 2021, and the changes in financial
position and cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
As discussed in Note 12 to the financial statements, Laurens County Water and Sewer Commission recorded a
prior period adjustment related to a management estimate regarding depreciation.

218 W. Laurens Street Laurens, SC 29360 Phone: 864.984.2698 Fax: 864.984.2874 lovebaileycpa.com



Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis, pension plan schedules and other postemployment benefit plan schedules as listed in
the table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although
not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the
required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information
and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We
do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not
provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Laurens County Water and Sewer Commission’s basic financial statements. The combining and
individual nonmajor fund financial statements and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented
for purposes of additional analysis as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, and is also not a
required part of the basic financial statements.

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and the schedule of expenditures of federal
awards are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves,
and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America. In our opinion, the combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and the schedule
of expenditures of federal awards are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial
statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 13, 2021,
on our consideration of the Laurens County Water and Sewer Commission’s internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed
in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Laurens County Water and Sewer
Commission’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

loe. Biley b fesociates, Lil

Love Bailey & Associates, LLC
Laurens, South Carolina
December 13, 2021



LAURENS COUNTY WATER AND SEWER COMMISSION
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30, 2021

This section presents management’s analysis of the Laurens County Water & Sewer Commission (the
“Commission”) financial condition and activities for the year. This information should be read in
conjunction with the financial statements.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS AND HIGHLIGHTS

The accounts of the Commission are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is considered a
separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are self-supporting and are thus accounted for
with a separate set of accounts. The opinion of management and the supporting facts presented in this
discussion are based on the combined financial statement of all the funds.

The Commission’s financial condition is stable with a 3% increase in operating revenue and a 11%
increase in net position. This stability can be contributed primarily to continued increases in water sales,
water tap fees and wastewater treatment revenues. Management believes consumption is slightly
increasing in water sales and that the recently adopted rate plan for sewer collection and sewer
treatment will result in sufficient operating revenue. The following are key financial highlights:

¢ Total assets did increase by $42.7 million or 35% from the previous fiscal year, primarily from an
increase in cash and capital assets. At year-end total assets were $165.7 million which exceeded
total liabilities by $57.5 million. The Commission’s Net Position is still strong at $58.3 million, an
increase of $5.6 million or 11% from the previous fiscal year.

e Unrestricted cash and cash equivalents to support short-term operations were $7.9 million
compared to $5.9 million the prior year.

e Operating revenues for fiscal year 2021 increased 3% or $376 thousand, compared to the
previous fiscal year.

e Operating expenses for fiscal year 2021, before depreciation, decreased 7% or $529 thousand,
compared to fiscal year 2020.

e Total operating income for the year was $1.6 million compared to an operating income of $1.9
million in the prior year.

e Ratios of operating income to total operating revenues are at 13% for 2021 compared to 16%
for 2020.

e Long-term debt increased from $59.7 million in 2020 to $96.8 million in 2021; an increase of 38
percent however Series 2020 Anticipation bonds of $42.7 million were paid in full subsequent to
yearend.

OVERVIEW OF ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) serves as an introduction to the basic financial
statements and supplementary information. The MD&A represents management’s examination and
analysis of the Commission’s financial condition and performance.

The financial statements report information about the Commission using full accrual accounting
methods as utilized by similar business activities in the private sector. However, rate-regulated
accounting principles applicable to private sector utilities are not used by government utilities.



LAURENS COUNTY WATER AND SEWER COMMISSION
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30, 2021

The financial statements include a statement of net position; a statement of revenues, expenses and
changes in net position; a statement of cash flows; and notes to the financial statements. The statement
of net position presents the financial position of the Commission on a full accrual historical cost basis
and provides information about the nature and amount of resources and obligations at year-end. The
statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position presents the results of the business
activities over the course of the fiscal year and information as to how the net position changed during
the year

The statement of cash flows presents changes in cash and cash equivalents, resulting from operational,
financing and investing activities. This statement presents cash receipts and cash disbursement
information, without consideration of the earnings event, when an obligation arises, or depreciation of
capital assets.

The notes to the financial statements provide required disclosures and other information that are
essential to a full understanding of material data provided in the statements; the notes present
information about the Commission’s accounting policies, significant account balances and activities,
dependencies, obligations, and commitments, if any.

The financial statements were prepared by the Commission’s external independent auditors from the
detailed books and records of the Commission. The financial statements were audited and adjusted, if
material, during the independent external audit process.

ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK

The Commission operates in all of Laurens County and portions of southern Greenville County with the
exceptions of areas inside the municipal boundaries of Laurens, Clinton and Gray Court, and agreed
upon areas contiguous thereto.

Customer growth rate within the Commission’s service area continues to increase and there are no signs
that this growth is slowing, quite the opposite. Several sites in the upper part County, were public sewer
is available, are being considered for large residential developments in excess of 2000 lots. Additionally,
because South Carolina is known as an extremely pro-business State, it is anticipated the Upstate of
South Carolina, including Laurens County, will continue to see robust growth as the U.S. economy starts
to recover from the pandemic. The County has already seen more industrial RFI’s (Request for
Information) that it did all last year.

The three Clinton Corporate Industrial Parks and associated hotel/restaurant development continues to
draw interest from companies looking to locate to the region. The Clinton-Adiar Industrial Park, located
near the intersection of 1-385 and I-26, is home to General Electric and a “Spec” building being consider
by another prospective industry. = The Pharmacy school and Physicians Assistance Curriculum at
Presbyterian College has brought in new faculty members and increased enrollment at the college. This
has led to new housing in the form of several apartment complexes and many renovations to existing
housing that was formerly unoccupied. The college has adopted a new strategic plan for the next
decade that will lead to continue growth in enrollment and engagement in the community. These
activities indicate that the Clinton area is poised for growth which will help sustain if not slightly increase
sewer revenue moving forward.



LAURENS COUNTY WATER AND SEWER COMMISSION
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30, 2021

Just over 14 years ago the Commission constructed significant water and sewer infrastructure, including
a 1,000,000-gallon elevated tank, in the northern part of its service area to provide enough water and
sewer service for both large and small manufacturing facilities that were anticipated to locate in this
part of Laurens County. Shortly thereafter, construction of the German owned ZF Transmissions facility
in Phase | of Owings Industrial Park was complete. The 1,200,000-square foot manufacturing facility and
the associated research and development facility employ over 2,200 people and manufactures some of
the most advanced transmissions for automobile suppliers all over the world. Inteplast Group, a plastic
company, located in Phase Ill of the Owings Industrial Park, currently employees 350 employees. A new
industrial park, the Connexial Center, is being developed near the Owings Industrial Park. The 500-acre
park is almost complete and is home to a 150,000 square foot Spec that was recently purchased by
company relocating to the area. Finally, in FY 2018 the Commission installed a $1.5 million sewer
collection system to extend sewer service to an existing industrial park just over two miles south of the
Owings Industrial Park. This sewer collection system, funded by the Economic Development
Administration (EDA), serves an existing industrial building that has been purchased and repurposed by
Fibertex Nonwovens (Fibertex). Fibertex has since decided to locate their North American headquarters
at this site and further expand the production lines. As a result, LCWSC has received another $2.0
million in grant funds from the EDA and an additional $500 thousand in grant funds from the SC Rural
Infrastructure Authority to upsize this entire sewer system to serve Fibertex expansion and other
adjacent industrial and residential sites. Industrial prospects continue to look in this area of the County
as an attractive location given its proximity to interstate 1-385 and Greenville County. For this reason,
management anticipates that the industrial/commercial/residential population in the northern part of
the Commission’s service area will substantially increase over the next 20+ years.

With northern and southern Laurens County primed for industrial development and the residential
growth associated with these developments and the development of Lake Greenwood, the
Commission’s financial outlook for the future continues to look very strong. To better encourage this
growth, the Commission will continue to play a leadership role in economic development for Laurens
County.



LAURENS COUNTY WATER AND SEWER COMMISSION

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TOTAL NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2021

The following schedule is a summary of Commission’s net position for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2021 and the amount and percentage differences in relation to the prior year net position. The

Commission’s net position improved 11 percent over the prior fiscal year or $5.6 million.

Total Net Position

Increase Percent
(decrease) increase
FY 2021 FY 2020 from FY 20 (decrease)
Assets
Total Cash S 7,938,040 5,992,064 1,945,976 32%
Restricted Cash for Debt Service 866,420 829,852 36,568 1%
Restricted Cash? 44,973,813 31,514,849 13,458,964 43%
Due from Gray Court 127,293 155,580 (28,287) -18%
Net Receivables 1,133,579 2,166,256 (1,032,677) -48%
Other Assets 169,941 156,746 13,195 8%
Capital assets 110,548,058 82,232,752 28,315,306 34%
Total assets 165,757,144 123,048,099 42,709,045 35%
Deferred Outflows/Inflows
Deferred Outflows - Pension 788,975 642,415 146,560 23%
Deferred Inflows - Pension (17,284) (120,397) 103,113 -86%
Loss on Refunding of Debt 7,863 15,454 (7,591) -49%
Total Deferred Outflows 779,554 537,472 242,082 45%
Liabilities
Current liabilities 48,348,373 5,689,140 42,659,233 750%
Long-term liabilities 51,922,025 58,337,221 (6,415,196) -11%
Other Non-Current Liabilities 7,955,586 6,925,125 1,030,461 15%
Total liabilities 108,225,984 70,951,486 37,274,498 53%
Net Position
Net invested in capital assets 56,182,434 52,379,436 3,802,998 7%
Restricted for Debt Service 866,420 829,852 36,568 1%
Restricted for Future Capacity 2,160,075 1,788,599 371,476 21%
Unrestricted (898,215) (2,363,802) 1,465,587 -62%
Total net position S 58,310,714 S 52,634,085 5,676,629 11%

Note 1: Restricted cash consists of Construction Funds and Capacity Fees



LAURENS COUNTY WATER AND SEWER COMMISSION

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

REVENUES

JUNE 30, 2021

The following schedule presents a summary of Commission’s revenues for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2021 and the amount and percentage differences in relation to prior year revenues.

Operating Revenues
Sewer Collection Revenues
Wastewater Treatment Revenues
Water Sales
Tap Fees and penalties
Other Operating Income

Total Operating Revenue

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)
Property Tax Collections
Interest Earned
Insurance Proceeds
Interest Expense
Bond Administration Expense
Gain on Sale of Assets
Capacity Fees
Miscellaneous Income (Expense)
Sale of Service Area
Non Cash - State Retirement
Non Cash - Post Employment Expense
Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)

Increase Percent
Percent (decrease) increase
Amount of Total from FY 20 (decrease)
S 625,586 5% S 38,564 7%
1,826,845 15% (83,545) -4%
8,627,868 70% 80,492 1%
905,627 7% 294,203 48%
368,240 3% 35,062 13%
S 12,354,166 S 364,776 3%
Increase Percent
Percent (decrease) increase
Amount of Total from FY 20 (decrease)
S 375,920 -50% (13,010) -3%
14,736 -2% (98,960) -87%
42,113 -6% 42,113 100%
(1,419,779) 187% (999,081) 237%
(30,609) 4% (23,820) 351%
9,560 -1% (60,997) 62%
435,375 -57% 165,905 62%
43,083 -6% 266,835 -119%
1,203,161 86% 1,203,161 100%
(263,796) 35% (76,366) 41%
(516,990) 68% (358,023) 225%
S (107,226) (602,980) -31%




LAURENS COUNTY WATER AND SEWER COMMISSION
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30, 2021

EXPENSES
The following schedule presents a summary of Commission’s expenses for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2021 and the amount and percentage differences in relation to prior year expenses.

Increase Percent
Percent (decrease) increase

Expenses Amount of Total from FY 20 (decrease)
Salaries and Employees’ Benefits S 3,003,814 28% S (24,540) -1%
Liability Insurance 93,505 1% 5,649 6%
Water Purchase 2,343,452 22% 201,732 9%
Contract Plant Operations 187,205 2% 36,156 24%
Utilities 415,972 4% 45,256 12%
Telephone and Other Communications 84,547 1% (2,442) -3%
Vehicle and Equipment 269,504 3% 54,012 25%
Repairs and Maintenance 702,289 7% 104,389 17%
Audit and Legal Fees 113,317 1% 47,794 73%
Engineering Fees 38,500 0% 5,910 18%
Depreciation 2,715,727 25% 206,972 8%
Flow Monitoring 18,900 0% 16,200 600%
Economic Development 35,710 0% (141) 0%
Billing 86,550 1% (10,180) -11%
IVR and Merchant Fees 118,925 1% 14,080 13%
All Other 494,315 5% 26,390 6%
Total Expenses S 10,722,232 S 727,237 7%

CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL

Capital Contributions for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021 were $4,151,920. This is a decrease of 6
percent or $402,692 from the prior fiscal year’s capital contributions. Capital contributions to the
Commission are detailed in Note 4.



LAURENS COUNTY WATER AND SEWER COMMISSION
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30, 2021

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

CAPITAL ASSETS

At the end of 2021, the Commission had invested $110.5 million in capital assets. This amount
represents an increase (including additions and deductions) of $28.3 million from the prior year. More
detailed information about the Commission’s capital assets is presented in Note 3 to the financial
statements.

Increase Percent

(decrease) Increase
Capital Assets FY 2021 from FY 20 (decrease)
Land & Right of Ways S 1,602,073 S 25,748 2%
Buildings, Furniture & Fixtures 4,295,979 67,668 2%
Mains, Pumps & Accessories 14,720,007 2,059,362 16%
Water Distribution System 56,528,656 1,840,991 3%
Water Capacity Rights 4,342,243 - 0%
Sewer WWTP and Lines 23,226,429 177,143 1%
Dam, Intake Tower & Other 4,038,145 - 0%
Equipment 1,343,126 85,190 7%
Vehicles 886,635 71,112 9%
Recreation Park 1,323,485 - 0%
Construction in Progress 47,852,888 26,596,217 125%
Accumulated Depreciation (49,609,558) (2,606,075) -6%
Net S 110,550,108 S 28,317,356 34%

LONG-TERM DEBT AND CAPITAL LEASES

At year-end, the Commission had $96.87 million in bonds, notes and capital leases outstanding; a
increase of 38 percent or $41.3 million from the prior year. More detailed information about the
Commission’s long-term liabilities is presented in Note 5 to the financial statements.

Increase Percent

(decrease) Increase
Outstanding Debt FY 2021 FY 2020 from FY 20 (decrease)
Bonds and Notes $96,878,373 $59,708,184 S 37,170,189 62%
Capital Leases - - - 0%
Total $96,878,373 $59,708,184 S 37,170,189 62%

CONTACTING THE COMMISSION’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, customers, and creditors with a general
overview of the Commission’s finances and to demonstrate the Commission’s accountability for the
money it receives. If you have questions about this report or need additional financial information,
contact Jeff Field, P.E., Executive Director, Post Office Box 1006, Laurens, South Carolina 29360.



LAURENS COUNTY WATER AND SEWER COMMISSION
COMBINED STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2021
(with summarized comparative totals for June 30, 2020)

Total assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES
Pensions
Loss on refunding of debt

Total deferred outflow of resources

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable
Accruals
Due to other governmental entities
Accrued interest
Customer deposits
Deferred revenue
Current portion of bonds payable

Total current liabilities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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2021 2020
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents S 7,938,040 S 5,992,064
Restricted cash for debt service 866,420 829,852
Accounts receivable, net 906,783 1,055,443
Contributed capital receivable 226,796 1,110,813
Inventories 72,119 69,222
Prepaid expenses 97,822 87,524
Total current assets 10,107,980 9,144,918
Non-Current Assets
Restricted cash - capacity funds 2,160,075 1,788,599
Restricted cash - construction funds 42,813,738 29,726,250
Due from Gray Court 127,293 155,580
Capital assets, net 110,548,058 82,232,752
Total non-current assets 155,649,164 113,903,181

165,757,144

123,048,099

788,975 642,415
7,863 15,454
796,838 657,869
2,793,994 3,708,057
163,191 222,479
65,741 36,002
300,989 284,314
50,826 50,825
17,284 16,500
44,956,348 1,370,963
48,348,373 5,689,140




LAURENS COUNTY WATER AND SEWER COMMISSION

COMBINED STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2021

(with summarized comparative totals for June 30, 2020)

Non-Current Liabilities
Bonds payable

Net pension liability
Accrued other post employment benefits

Total non-current liabilities

Total liabilities

Pensions

NET POSITION

DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES

Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for debt service
Restricted for future capacity

Unrestricted

Total net position S

2021 2020

51,922,025 58,337,221
4,570,539 4,057,069
3,385,047 2,868,056
59,877,611 65,262,346
108,225,984 70,951,486
17,284 120,397
56,182,434 52,379,436
866,420 829,852
2,160,075 1,788,599
(898,215) (2,363,802)
58,310,714 S 52,634,085

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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LAURENS COUNTY WATER AND SEWER COMMISSION
COMBINED STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
(with summarized comparative totals for the year ended June 30, 2020)

2021 2020
OPERATING REVENUE

Collection revenue S 625,586 S 587,022
Wastewater treatment revenue 1,826,845 1,910,390
Water sales 8,627,868 8,547,376
Penalties 253,695 250,778
Tap fees 651,932 360,646
Reinstate, reconnect and delinquent fees 153,393 137,551
Origination fees 56,570 49,825
Other operating revenue 158,277 145,802

Total revenue 12,354,166 11,989,390

OPERATING EXPENSES

Salaries 2,074,079 2,101,595
Payroll taxes 157,848 150,807
Group insurance 384,944 374,351
State retirement 322,516 329,096
Worker's compensation 38,390 30,627
Employee health/safety expense 6,931 5,527
Employee memberships 6,925 6,100
Employee training, conferences and seminars 13,056 30,251
Uniform expense 30,057 29,907
Dues, subscriptions and licenses 15,870 14,707
Commissioners & legislative expense 38,581 35,488
Water purchases 2,343,452 2,141,720
Chemicals 96,904 92,935
Contract plant operations 187,205 151,049
System maintenance 523,127 406,506
Vehicle and equipment maintenance 225,847 215,492
Buildings and grounds maint 86,660 90,466
Software and office equipment maintenance 156,856 100,928
Property and casualty insurance 93,505 87,856
Depreciation 2,715,727 2,508,755
Utilities 415,972 370,716
Telephone and mobile communications 78,277 86,989
DHEC licenses and fees 33,279 32,651
Tools and supplies 36,127 54,982
Flow monitoring 18,900 2,700
Right of way maintenance 56,526 58,207
Billing fees 86,550 96,730
Office expense 73,185 51,448
Professional fees 113,317 65,523
Engineering and consulting 38,500 32,590
Economic development 35,710 35,851
Community outreach 62,467 82,198
Entertainment expense 15,951 17,797
IVR and merchant service fees 118,925 104,845
Miscellaneous expense 20,065 (2,396)

Total operating expenses 10,722,231 9,994,994

Operating income 1,631,935 1,994,396

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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LAURENS COUNTY WATER AND SEWER COMMISSION
COMBINED STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
(with summarized comparative totals for the year ended June 30, 2020)

2021 2020
NON-OPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSES)

Property tax collections 375,920 388,930
Interest earned 14,736 113,696

Insurance proceeds 42,113 -
Gain on sale of assets 9,560 70,557

Sale of service area 1,203,161 -
Capacity fees 435,375 269,470
Bond administration expense (30,609) (6,789)
Miscellaneous non-operating rev(exp) 43,083 (223,752)
Interest expense (1,419,779) (420,698)
Non cash - state retirement (263,796) (187,430)
Non cash - post employment expense (516,990) (158,967)
Total non-operating revenue (expense) (107,226) (154,983)

Change in net position before capital

contributions 1,524,709 1,839,413
CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS 4,151,920 4,399,965
Change in net position 5,676,629 6,239,378
Net position, beginning of year 52,634,085 45,694,851
Prior period adjustment (Note 12) - 699,856
Net position, beginning of year, restated 52,634,085 46,394,707
Net position, end of year S 58,310,714 S 52,634,085

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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LAURENS COUNTY WATER AND SEWER COMMISSION
COMBINED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

(with summarized comparative totals for the year ended June 30, 2020)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers
Payments for supplies for goods and services
Payments for labor and related services
Payment for employee benefits

Net cash provided by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Property tax collections
Capital outlay
Capital contributions
Proceeds from sale of assets
Interest paid on bonds
Bonds proceeds, net
Bond administration fees
Property lease fees
Sale of service area
Bond issuance savings
Capacity fees

Net cash provided by capital and related
financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest income

Net cash flows provided by investing activities
Net increase in cash
Cash, beginning of year

Cash, end of year

RECONCILIATION TO STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash - debt service funds
Restricted cash - capacity funds
Restricted cash - construction funds

Total cash and cash equivalents

2021 2020
$ 13,444,500 $ 11,126,918
(6,045,615) (1,280,343)
(2,250,416) (2,116,357)
(746,474) (721,133)
4,401,995 7,009,085
375,920 388,930
(29,196,783) (20,569,759)
2,421,174 4,015,693
(9,560) (44,415)
(1,412,589) (408,864)
37,170,165 41,302,736
(30,609) (6,789)
81,792 86,400
1,203,161 -
(55,382) (310,452)
435,375 269,470
10,982,664 24,722,950
14,736 113,696
56,849 113,696
15,441,508 31,845,731
38,336,765 6,491,034
$ 53,778,273 $ 38,336,765
7,938,040 5,992,064
866,420 829,852
2,160,075 1,788,599
42,813,738 29,726,250
$ 53,778,273  $ 38,336,765

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financials statements.
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LAURENS COUNTY WATER AND SEWER COMMISSION
COMBINED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
(with summarized comparative totals for the year ended June 30, 2020)

2021 2020
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH
PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating income S 1,631,934 S 1,994,396
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net
cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation 2,715,727 2,508,755
Gain on sale of assets (9,560) -
Changes in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable 921,262 (935,422)
(Increase) decrease in inventory (2,897) 2,439
(Increase) decrease in prepaids (5,768) (8,057)
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable (881,633) 3,201,687
Increase (decrease) in due to other governmental entities 94,028 (153,008)
Increase (decrease) in accrued expenses (61,098) 398,295
Total adjustments 2,770,061 5,014,689
Net cash provided by operating activities S 4,401,995 S 7,009,085

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financials statements.
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LAURENS COUNTY WATER AND SEWER COMMISSION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Reporting Entity

Pursuant to an Ordinance enacted on November 24, 1992, as amended on March 23, 1993, by the
Laurens County Council and by an Ordinance enacted on March 2, 1993, by the Greenville County
Council, respectively, Rabon Creek Rural Water District and the Laurens County Water Resources
Commission were consolidated effective July 1, 1993. The consolidated district is known as Laurens
County Water and Sewer Commission (the “Commission”). In enacting the Ordinances, the County
Councils determined that the Water Resources Commission and Rabon Creek should be consolidated in
order to obtain greater efficiency and economy in the provision of water and sewer services to the
residents of rural Laurens County. The consolidation created a unified water supply and distribution and
wastewater collection and treatment system for the unincorporated areas of the county. The
Commission sells on credit to customers in this rural area of Laurens County and two small areas of
Southern Greenville County.

The consolidated district is governed by the Commission, which comprises nine members, each of whom
is either an individual user in the service area operated and maintained by the consolidated district or a
resident of the service area of the consolidated district. The Commission succeeded to all the rights,
powers and privileges and obligations of Rabon Creek Rural Water District and the Laurens County
Water Resources Commission as set forth in the acts creating each, including the debt obligations issued
by such entities.

The Commission’s eight members as appointed by the Governor of South Carolina are as follows:

Name of Member Beginning of Term Expiration of Term
John S. Peden 07-01-19 06-30-23
Philip O’Dell 07-01-17 06-30-21
Jurell Byrd, Jr. 07-01-17 06-30-21
William Teague 07-01-19 06-30-23
Susan Curry 07-01-19 06-30-23
John L. McMurray 07-01-17 06-30-21
Thomas E. Davenport 07-01-17 06-30-21
Doug Hendrick 07-01-19 06-30-21
Vacant

Notwithstanding the consolidation of Rabon Creek and the Water Resources Commission, the
Commission continues to operate the Water Distribution System, the Water Supply System and the
Sewer System as separate “systems” and maintains separate books of account for each. In addition, at
present, improvements to each system are financed independently and such financing is secured by
pledges of the revenues of the applicable system. The Commission is authorized to fix rates for service
without any supervision or regulation by the state or county. The Commission is further authorized to
build, construct, maintain and operate reservoirs, water treatment facilities, and water distribution
systems to sell water on a retail and wholesale basis for domestic, industrial and agricultural uses.

(Continued)
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LAURENS COUNTY WATER AND SEWER COMMISSION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued

The Commission may also construct sewage treatment facilities and sewage collection facilities to
collect and treat sewage on a retail and wholesale basis.

The Commission is independent of any other governing body. There are no significant continuing
relationships between the Commission and Laurens County for carrying out the day to day functions.
The Commission hires management and prepares budgets independently. The Commission is
responsible for its own debt. It is not financially accountable to Laurens County. Consequently, the
County is not entitled to the surpluses of the system and is not obligated for its deficits or debts.

The Commission operates five funds under a Board-Manager form of government.

The accounting policies of Laurens County Water and Sewer Commission conform to generally accepted
accounting policies as applicable to governments. The following is a summary of the more significant
policies:

Fund Accounting

The accounts of the Commission are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is considered a
separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of self-
balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, net position, revenues and expenditures.
Government resources are allocated to and accounted for in individual funds based upon the purposes
for which they are to be spent and the means by which spending activities are controlled. The various
funds are grouped in the financial statements as follows:

Proprietary Funds

Enterprise Funds — Enterprise funds are used to account for operations (a) that are financed and
operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises — where the intent of the governing body is
that the cost (expense, including depreciation) of providing goods or services to the general public on a
continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges; or (b) where the governing
body has decided that periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred, and/or net
income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability, or
other purposes. The following are brief descriptions of the four enterprise funds presented in this
report.

Collection System — The Collection System provides collection and transportation of sewer for treatment
by the Clinton/Joanna Wastewater Treatment Plant or by various other treatment providers.

Clinton/Joanna Wastewater Treatment Plant — The plant is a source of sewage treatment for the City of
Clinton, Communities of Joanna, Lydia Mill, and local industry.

(Continued)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued

Lake Rabon Water Supply System — The watershed is comprised of three dams forming Lake Beulah,
Lake Stoddard and Lake Rabon. The Commission owns and operates Lake Rabon which serves as a water
supply for Laurens County as well as recreation and flood control. The Commission of Public Works of
the City of Laurens also purchases raw water from the watershed.

Water Distribution System — The water distribution system acquires, treats and distributes fresh water
for industrial, agricultural, and domestic use. There are approximately 15,263 residential homes and
148 businesses serviced by this system. Included in those numbers are the Town of Gray Courts 392
residential customers (see Note 11).

Internal Service Fund — Internal Service Funds are used to account for the financing of goods and
services provided by one department or agency to other departments or agencies of the Commission on
a cost-reimbursement basis. The following is a brief description of the Internal Service Fund presented
in this report.

Administrative Fund — The Administrative Fund provides the management and other administrative
needs required of the other funds for proper execution of their duties. The Administrative Fund is
funded by an administrative fee charged to other funds based on time required by the other funds.

Basis of Accounting

Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures or expenses are recognized in the
accounts reported in the financial statements. Basis of accounting relates to the timing of the
measurements made, regardless of the measurement focus applied.

All proprietary funds are accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting. Their revenues are
recognized when they are earned, and their expenses are recognized when they are incurred. Unbilled
utility service receivables are recorded at year end. With this measurement focus, all assets and
liabilities are included on the Statement of Net Position. Net position is segregated into invested in
capital assets, restricted, and unrestricted.

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

Prior to June 30, the Executive Director submits to the Board of Commissioners a proposed operating
budget for each fund for the fiscal year commencing July 1. The operating budgets include proposed
expenditures and the means for financing them.

All Commission Board Meetings are open to the public. The commission will discuss the proposed
budgets at the public meetings and make changes as necessary. The budgets are passed by the
Commissioners by vote at a public meeting to adopt it. They are always adopted prior to the beginning
of the fiscal year on July 1.

All changes in the budgets are authorized by the Commission in subsequent meetings. The Executive

Director has no authority to make changes in the budget.
(Continued)
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YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued

All funds presented are budgeted. Revenues and expenses are presented in comparison with the
budget.

Budgets for these funds are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles.

Economic Dependency

The City of Clinton is the major source of revenue for the Clinton/Joanna Wastewater Treatment Plant.
The Commission of Public Works of the City of Laurens is the major source of revenue for the Lake
Rabon Water Supply System.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Demand deposits and short-term investments with a maturity of three months or less when purchased
are considered cash and cash equivalents.

Investments
The Commission currently or in the past year has primarily used the following investments in it
operating activities:

e South Carolina Local Government Investment Pool (“LGIP” or “Pool”) investments are invested
with the South Carolina State Treasurer’s Office, which established the South Carolina Pool
pursuant to Section 6-6-10 of the South Carolina Code. The Pool is an investment trust fund, in
which public monies in excess of current needs, which are under the custody of any city
treasurer or any governing body of a political subdivision of the State, may be deposited. In
accordance with GASB Statement No. 31 “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain
Investments and for External Investment Pools”, investments are carried at fair value determined
annually based upon quoted market prices for identical or similar investments. The total fair
value of the Pool is apportioned to the entities with funds invested on an equal basis for each
share owned, which are acquired at a cost of $1.00. Funds may be deposited by Pool
participants at any time and may be withdrawn upon 24 hours’ notice. Financial statements for
the Pool may be obtained by writing the Office of State Treasurer, Local Government Investment
Pool, P.O. Box 11778, Columbia, SC 29211-1960.

® Money market mutual funds are generally open-ended funds that invest in short term debt
securities (including obligations of the United States and related agencies) that generally have a
weighted average maturity of 60 days or less and do not invest more than 5% in any one issuer,
except for government securities and repurchase agreements.

e U.S. Government Agency Bonds are securities that are generally backed by mortgage loans, and
due to their creation from particular corporations that are sponsored by the U.S. government,
they enjoy credit protection based on either an implicit or explicit guarantee from the U.S.
government.

(Continued)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued

Restricted Cash

The Commission is required to maintain debt service funds under the terms of certain bonds (see Note
6). The debt service funds are used to segregate resources accumulated for debt service payments
coming due over the next twelve months. The Commission also established accounts for capacity fees
and construction funds that may only be used for construction purposes. These funds are shown as
restricted cash on the Statement of Net Position because their use is limited.

Accounts Receivable

The Commission renders bills to residential, commercial, and industrial customers on billing cycles that
end on various days throughout the month. The accounts receivable are financial instruments that
potentially subject the Commission to credit risk. If accounts have not been collected within the
designated time, the service is disconnected, and a penalty is required to be paid before the service is
reconnected. Accounts which are not considered collectible are written off as bad debts at various
times during the year.

Collection System customer accounts receivable at June 30, 2021 was $93,187. The accumulated
allowance for doubtful accounts in the Collection System was $39,978 at June 30, 2021. Collection
System bad debt expense for the year ended June 30, 2021 was $21.

Clinton/Joanna Wastewater Treatment Plant accounts receivable due from the City of Clinton for
wastewater services was $153,228 at June 30, 2021. The accumulated allowance for doubtful accounts
in the Clinton/Joanna Wastewater Treatment Plant was $16,713 at June 30, 2021. Clinton/Joanna
Wastewater Treatment Plant bad debt expense for the year ended June 30, 2021 was $13.

Lake Rabon Water Supply System accounts receivable due from the Laurens Commission of Public
Works for sale of raw water was $26,801 at June 30, 2021 and LCWSC $16,307 (eliminated in
consolidation) at June 30, 2021.

Water Distribution System accounts receivable at June 30, 2021 was $1,321,136. The accumulated
allowance for doubtful accounts in the Water Distribution System was $632,977 at June 30, 2021. The
Water Distribution System bad debt expenses for the year ended June 30, 2021 was $3,016.

Inventories
Inventory is valued at cost. Cost is determined by the first-in, first-out method.

Inter-fund Transfers

The inter-fund transfers were the transfers from each of the other four funds to the Administrative Fund
for each fund’s prorated share of the costs incurred by that fund in performing administrative duties for
the other four funds. For the year ended June 30, 2021, the Collection System transferred $171,694, the
Clinton/Joanna Wastewater Treatment Plant transferred $343,386, the Lake Rabon Water Supply
System transferred $128,770, and the Water Distribution System transferred $1,073,082 to the
Administrative Fund.

(Continued)
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LAURENS COUNTY WATER AND SEWER COMMISSION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued

Capital Assets

The accounting and reporting treatment applied to the Capital Assets associated with a fund are
determined by its measurement focus. All proprietary funds are accounted for on a cost of service or
“capital maintenance” measurement focus. This means that all assets (whether current or non-current)
associated with their activity are included on their Statements of Net Position. Proprietary fund type
operating statements present increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in net position.
Depreciation of all exhaustible fixed assets used by proprietary funds is charged as an expense against
their operations. Accumulated depreciation is reported on the proprietary fund Statement of Net
Position. Depreciation has been provided over the estimated useful lives using the straight-line method.
The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Description Useful Life
Dam, Intake Tower 60— 100 years
Plant, Buildings and Improvements 10— 50 years
Sewer Mains and Pump Stations 20—-50 years
Water Distribution System 20-60 years
Equipment 5-7 vyears
Vehicles 5 years

Capitalization of Interest
Amounts incurred for interest costs during the construction phase of fixed assets are capitalized.

Compensated Absences

The Commission has a general leave program which provides employees with annual paid general leave
days. Employees can carry a maximum of ninety days of sick time and twenty-five days of accrued leave.
At June 30, 2021 $129,671 for compensated absences is included in accrued expenses reported on the
Statement of Net Position. No liability is booked for sick pay because it is not payable to the employee at
termination.

Long-term Obligations

If material, bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using
the straight-line method, which approximates the effective interest method. Gains or losses on debt
refundings are deferred and amortized over the life of the new debt or the remaining life of the
refunded debt, whichever is shorted, using the straight-line method, which approximates the effective
interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premiums or discounts. Gains
or losses on debt refundings are treated as deferred inflows of resources and deferred outflows of
resources, respectively.

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the Statement of Net Position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of
resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be
recognized as an outflow of resources (expense) until then. The Commission currently has two

(Continued)
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types of deferred outflows of resources. (1) The Commission reports deferred refunding charges in its
Statement of Net Position. If material, deferred refunding charges, which is the difference between the
reacquisition price and the net carrying amount of the defeased debt, are deferred and amortized over
the life of the refunding bonds, which has the same maturity as the bonds that were refunded.
Amortization of deferred refunding charges is included in interest expense. (2) The Commission also
reports deferred pension charges in its Statement of Net Position in connection with its participation in
the South Carolina Retirement System. These deferred pension charges are either (a) recognized in the
subsequent period as a reduction of the net pension liability (which includes pension contributions
made after the measurement date) or (b) amortized in a systematic and rational method as pension
expense in future periods in accordance with GAAP.

In addition to liabilities, the Statement of Net Position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources,
represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized
as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The Commission currently has one type of deferred
inflows of resources. The Commission reports deferred pension credits in its Statement of Net Position
in connection with its participation in the South Carolina Retirement System. These deferred pension
credits are amortized in a systematic and rational method and recognized as a reduction of pension
expense in future periods in accordance with GAAP.

Net Position

Net position represents the difference between assets and deferred outflows of resources and liabilities
and deferred inflows of resources in the Statement of Net Position. Net position is classified as net
investment in capital assets; restricted; and unrestricted. Net investment in capital assets consists of
capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of any borrowings
used for the acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets. Outstanding debt which has not
been spent is included in the same net position component as the unspent proceeds. Net position is
reported as restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use either through enabling
legislation or through external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or
regulations of other governments.

Pensions
Pensions are required to be recognized and disclosed using the accrual basis of accounting (see Note 7
and the required supplementary information immediately following the notes to the financial
statements for more information). The Commission recognizes a net pension liability for its qualified
pension, which represents the Commission’s proportionate share thereof in the case of a cost-sharing
multiple-employer plan, measured as of the Commission’s fiscal year-end. Changes in the net pension
liability during the period are recorded as pension expense, or as deferred outflows or inflows of
resources depending on the nature of the change, in the period incurred. Those changes in net pension
liability that are recorded as deferred outflows or inflows of resources that arise from changes in
actuarial assumptions or other inputs and differences between expected or actual experience are
amortized over the weighted average remaining service life of all participants in the

(Continued)
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respective qualified pension plan and recorded as a component of pension expense beginning with the
period in which they are incurred. Projected earnings on qualified pension plan investments are
recognized as a component of pension expense. Differences between projected and actual investment
earnings are reported as deferred outflows or inflows of resources and amortized as a component of
pension expense on a closed basis over a five-year period beginning with the period in which the
difference occurred.

Fair Value

The fair value measurement and disclosure framework provides for a three-tier fair value hierarchy that
gives highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1
measurements) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements). The three levels
of the fair value hierarchy are described below:

Level 1 — Inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets
or liabilities in active markets that the Commission can access at the measurement date.

Level 2 — Inputs to the valuation methodology, other than quoted prices included in Level 1, that
are observable for an asset or liability either directly or indirectly and include:
¢ Quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets.
¢ Quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in inactive markets.
¢ Inputs other than quoted market prices that are observable for the asset or liability.
¢ Inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data by
correlation or other means.

Level 3 — Inputs to the valuation methodology that are unobservable for an asset or liability and
include:
e Fair value is often based on developed models in which there are few, if any,
observable inputs.

The asset’s or liability’s fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the
lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement. Valuation techniques used
should maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs.

The valuation methodologies described above may produce a fair value calculation that may not be
indicative of future net realizable values or reflective of future fair values. The Commission believes that
the valuation methods used are appropriate and consistent with GAAP. The use of different
methodologies or assumptions to determine the fair value of certain financial instruments could result
in a different fair value measurement at the reporting date. There have been no significant changes
from the prior year in the methodologies used to measure fair value.

(Continued)

-23-



LAURENS COUNTY WATER AND SEWER COMMISSION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date
of the financial statements and the reported amount of revenues and expenses during the reporting
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Reclassification of prior year presentation
Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified for consistency with the current year presentation.

These reclassifications had no effect on the reported results for the year ended June 30, 2021.

NOTE 2 — DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

Custodial Credit Risk — Financial Institutions

Custodial credit risk is the risk that the Commission’s bank deposits may not be returned to it in the
event of financial institution failure. All of the Commission’s cash deposits are with financial institutions
which are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation up to $250,000.

South Carolina Law requires deposits in excess of $250,000 to be collateralized. Loss would only occur if
the financial institution fails and is seized by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, which would
not be legally obligated on cash deposits in excess of $250,000. At June 30, 2021, all of the
commission’s deposits in excess of the amount insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation
were fully collateralized.

Investment Credit Risk

At June 30, 2021, the Commission has cash equivalent short term investments of $7,367,094 in the
South Carolina Local Government Investment Pool. This investment pool holds investment grade
governmental and corporate bonds and notes with an average maturity of ninety days or less.
Information regarding the underlying security rating of the Commission’s investment in this local
government investment pool is available in the South Carolina Local Government Investment Pool’s
financial statements. This investment pool does not have a credit quality rating assigned. A copy of
these financial statements may be obtained by writing to the state treasurer at the following address:

The State Treasurer’s Office
Local Governmental Investment Pool
Post Office Box 11778
Columbia, South Carolina 29211
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The following is a summary of changes in capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2021:

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases  Decreases Transfers Balance
Capital Assets, Non-Depreciable
Land $ 1,576,325 S 25,748 S - S - S 1,602,073
Construction in Progress 21,256,671 27,827,579 - (1,231,362) 47,852,888
Total Capital Assets,Non-Deprec 22,832,996 27,853,327 - (1,231,362) 49,454,961
Capital Assets, Depreciable
Buildings, Furniture and Fixtures 4,228,311 67,668 4,295,979
Mains, Pumps, and Accessories 12,660,645 1,137,230 (8,882) 931,014 14,720,007
Water Distribution System 54,687,665 1,522,528 - 318,463 56,528,656
Water Capacity Rights 4,342,243 - - - 4,342,243
SS Treatment Plant and Lines 23,049,286 177,143 - - 23,226,429
Dam, Intake Tower, and Other Costs 4,038,145 - - - 4,038,145
Equipment 1,257,936 85,190 - - 1,343,126
Vehicles 815,523 199,557 (100,575) (27,870) 886,635
Recreation Park 1,323,485 - - - 1,323,485
Total Capital Assets, Depreciable 106,403,239 3,189,316 (109,457) 1,221,607 110,704,705
Less: Accumulated Depreciation 47,003,483 2,715,727 (99,897) (9,755) 49,609,558
Total Capital Assets, Depreciable, Net 59,399,756 473,588 (9,560) 1,231,632 61,095,147
Total Capital Assets, Net $82,232,752 $28,326,916 S (9,560) $ - $110,550,108

Construction in Progress consists of $62,404 in improvements to the Collection System, $89,450 in
improvements to the Clinton/Joanna Wastewater Treatment, $21,262 in improvements to the Lake
Rabon Water Supply System and $47,679,773 system improvements to the Water Distribution System.

In 2009, the Commission hired a consultant to perform a water resources master plan. The master plan
determined that current water resources are not sustainable for future growth. On November 14, 2019
the Commission held a ground breaking ceremony at the Raw Water Intake on Lake Greenwood. The
project’s estimated costs is $56,293,923, at June 30, 2021 the Commission has spent $47,544,483 in
construction in progress and has construction obligations of $8,749,440. The Commission has obtained
revenue bonds (see Note 5) for a majority of the construction costs. As of June 30, 2021, the
Commission has also received grant funds of $500,000 from the South Carolina Rural Infrastructure
Authority and of $2,605,421 from the U.S. Economic Development Administration towards the project’s
costs. The Commission will receive an additional $412,457 in grants funds from the U.S. Economic
Development Administration and $5,013,070 from the U.S. Department of Agriculture to cover a portion
of the remaining project’s costs.
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During the year ended June 30, 2021, the Commission received a total of $4,802,657 in capital
contributions. The following is a brief description of the various sources of these capital contributions:

The Commission received $497,370 in federal Community Development Block Grant funds as a sub-
recipient from Laurens County for construction of water and sewer facilities.

The Commission received $1,624,494 from the U.S. Economic Development Administration funds.

The Commission received $159,835 in nonfederal grants.

Other contributions from homeowners and industry toward waterline and sewer facility construction

totaled $2,520,958.

NOTE 5 — LONG TERM OBLIGATIONS

The following is a summary of changes in long-term obligations for the year ended June 30, 2021.

Beginning Ending Due Within
Long-Term Obligations Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year
Bonds:
Series 2013 $ 1,388,000 S - $ 319,000 $ 1,069,000 S 334,000
Series 2013 USDA 4,148,682 - 81,963 4,066,719 84,246
Series 2016 6,725,000 - 475,000 6,250,000 490,000
Series 2017 4,685,000 - 485,000 4,200,000 490,000
Series 2020 BAN 42,761,502 - - 42,761,502 42,761,502
Series 2020 A-F USDA - 39,120,814 589,662 38,531,152 796,600
Total Bonds $59,708,184 $ 39,120,814 $ 1,950,625 S 96,878,373 S 44,956,348

The following is a summary of the long-term obligations at June 30, 2021 operating unit:

Collection System

Series 2013 General Obligation Advanced Refunding Bond

Dated October 31, 2013, due March 1, 2024

Interest rate 2.25% S 1,069,000

Clinton/Joanna Wastewater Treatment Plant
United States Department of Agriculture — Series 2013 USDA Bond
Dated September 26, 2013, due September 26, 2053, at 2.75% S 4,066,719

Water Distribution System

Series 2016 Revenue Bonds

Dated December 7, 2016, due March 1, 2032

Interest rate at 1.90% S 6,250,000

(Continued)

-26 -



LAURENS COUNTY WATER AND SEWER COMMISSION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

NOTE 5 — LONG TERM OBLIGATIONS, Continued

Series 2017 Revenue Bonds
Dated January 26, 2017, due March 1, 2029
Interest rate at 1.90% 4,200,000

USDA Series 2020 A-F Revenue Bonds
Dated October 28, 2020, due September 28, 2060
Interest rate at 1.500% 38,531,152

Series 2020 Bond Anticipation Notes
Dated August 1, 2020, due February 1, 2022

Interest rate at 1.375% 42,761,502
Total Water Distribution System Obligations S 91,742,654
Total Long-Term Obligations of the Commission S 96,878,373

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for all long-term debt at June 30, 2021 are as follows:

Year Ending Total
June 30 Principal Interest Requirements
2022 S 44,956,348 S 1,654,302 S 46,610,650
2023 2,253,223 1,029,964 3,283,187
2024 2,141,848 990,445 3,132,293
2025 1,784,724 956,194 2,740,918
2026 1,814,857 930,306 2,745,163
2027-2031 9,750,582 3,964,509 13,715,091
2032-2036 6,420,188 3,245,140 9,665,328
2037-2041 5,784,538 2,834,670 8,619,208
2042-2046 6,083,395 2,361,176 8,444,571
2047-2051 5,834,156 1,794,622 7,628,779
2052-2056 5,453,790 742,840 6,196,630
2057-2060 4,600,724 145,340 4,746,065

S 96,878,373 S 20,649,508 S 117,527,881

All revenue bonds are secured by pledges of revenue of the applicable system. Therefore, sewer system
revenue cannot be used to service the debt of the water distribution system, or vice versa. The South
Carolina State Budget and Control Board Revolving Fund loan and the United States Department of
Agriculture Rural Development loans are secured by a pledge of sewer revenue and a statutory lien on
the sewer system.

The Series 2020 Bond Anticipation Notes is interim financing for the Water Treatment Plant under

construction (see Note 3). The bond was paid off by the Series 2020 A-F Revenue Bonds subsequent
year-end (see Note 12).

(Continued)
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The general obligation bonds of the Collections System is payable through property tax collections from
the service area (see Note 9).

The Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) in Statement No. 23 requires that the loss on debt
defeasance be amortized in a rational and systematic way as a component of interest expense over the
remaining life of the old debt or the life of the new debt, whichever is shorter. This deferred amount is
shown as a Loss on Refunding of Debt in the Deferred Outflows of Resources section of the Statements
of Net Position. The losses on refunding of debt per system are as follows:

Collection System S 7,591

NOTE 6 — COMPLIANCE WITH BOND REQUIREMENTS — RESTRICTED CASH

The amount of cash or cash equivalents restricted by the bond resolutions is summarized below.

Debt Service Debt Service
Fund Reserve Fund Total
Collection System S 210,178 S - S 210,178
Clinton/Joanna Wastewater Treatment Plant - 155,548 155,548
Water Distribution System 394,086 106,608 500,694
Total Debt Service Funds S 604,264 S 262,156 S 866,420

NOTE 7 — PENSION PLAN

Employee Retirement Systems
The Commission participates in the State of South Carolina’s retirement plans, which are administered
by the South Carolina Public Employee Benefit Authority (“PEBA”).

The South Carolina Public Employee Benefit Authority (PEBA), created July 1, 2012, is the state agency
responsible for the administration and management of the various Retirement Systems and retirement
programs of the state of South Carolina, including the State Optional Retirement Program and the S.C.
Deferred Compensation Program, as well as the state’s employee insurance programs. As such, PEBA is
responsible for administering the South Carolina Retirement Systems’ five defined benefit pension
plans. PEBA has an 11-member Board of Directors, appointed by the Governor and General Assembly
leadership, which serves as custodian, co-trustee and co-fiduciary of the Systems and the assets of the
retirement trust funds. The Retirement System Investment Commission (Commission as the governing
body, RSIC as the agency), created by the General Assembly in 2005, has exclusive authority to invest
and manage the retirement trust funds’ assets. The Commission, an eight-member board, serves as co-
trustee and co-fiduciary for the assets of the retirement trust funds. By law, the State Fiscal
Accountability Authority (SFAA), which consists of five elected officials, also reviews certain PEBA Board
decisions regarding the actuary of the Systems.

(Continued)

-28 -



LAURENS COUNTY WATER AND SEWER COMMISSION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

NOTE 7 — PENSION PLAN, Continued

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows and inflows of resources related
to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the Systems and
additions to/deductions from the Systems fiduciary net position have been determined on the accrual
basis of accounting as they are reported by the Systems in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP). For this purpose, revenues are recoghized when earned and expenses are
recognized when incurred. Benefit and refund expenses are recognized when due and payable in
accordance with the terms of the plan. Investments are reported at fair value.

PEBA issues a Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) containing financial statements and
required supplementary information for the Systems’ Pension Trust Funds. The CAFR is publicly available
through PEBA’s website at www.peba.sc.gov, or a copy may be obtained by submitting a request to
PEBA, 202 Arbor Lake Drive, Columbia, SC 29223. PEBA is considered a division of the primary
government of the state of South Carolina and therefore, retirement trust fund financial information is
also included in the comprehensive annual financial report of the state.

Plan Descriptions

e The South Carolina Retirement System (SCRS), a cost—sharing multiple-employer defined benefit
pension plan, was established July 1, 1945, pursuant to the provisions of Section 9-1-20 of the
South Carolina Code of Laws for the purpose of providing retirement and other benefits for
teachers and employees of the state and its political subdivisions. SCRS covers employees of
state agencies, public school districts, higher education institutions, other participating local
subdivisions of government and individuals newly elected to the South Carolina General
Assembly at or after the 2012 general election.

® The State Optional Retirement Program (State ORP) is a defined contribution plan that is offered
as an alternative to SCRS to certain newly hired employees of state agencies, institutions of
higher education, public school districts and individuals first elected to the S.C. General
Assembly at or after the general election in November 2012. State ORP participants direct the
investment of their funds into an account administered by one of four third party service
providers. PEBA assumes no liability for State ORP benefits. Rather, the benefits are the liability
of the four third party service providers. For this reason, State ORP assets are not part of the
retirement systems’ trust funds for financial statement purposes.

Membership
Membership requirements are prescribed in Title 9 of the South Carolina Code of Laws. A brief summary
of the requirements under each system is presented below.

SCRS — Generally, all employees of covered employers are required to participate in and contribute to
the system as a condition of employment. This plan covers general employees and teachers and
individuals newly elected to the South Carolina General Assembly beginning with the November 2012
general election. An employee member of the system with an effective date of membership prior to July
1, 2012, is a Class Two member. An employee member of the system with an effective date of
membership on or after July 1, 2012, is a Class Three member.

(Continued)
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State ORP — As an alternative to membership in SCRS, certain newly hired state, public school, and
higher education employees and individuals first elected to the S.C. General Assembly at or after the
November 2012 general election have the option to participate in the State ORP. Contributions to the
State ORP are at the same rates as SCRS. A direct remittance is required from the employer to the
member’s account with the ORP service provider for the employee contribution and a portion of the
employer contribution (5 percent). A direct remittance is also required to SCRS for the remaining portion
of the employer contribution and an incidental death benefit contribution, if applicable, which is
retained by SCRS.

Benefits

Benefit terms are prescribed in Title 9 of the South Carolina Code of Laws. PEBA does not have the
authority to establish or amend benefit terms without a legislative change in the code of laws. Key
elements of the benefit calculation include the benefit multiplier, years of service, and average final
compensation/current annual salary. A brief summary of the benefit terms for each system is presented
below.

SCRS — A Class Two member who has separated from service with at least five or more years of earned
service is eligible for a monthly pension at age 65 or with 28 years credited service regardless of age. A
member may elect early retirement with reduced pension benefits payable at age 55 with 25 years of
service credit. A Class Three member who has separated from service with at least eight or more years
of earned service is eligible for a monthly pension upon satisfying the Rule of 90 requirement that the
total of the member’s age and the member’s creditable service equals at least 90 years. Both Class Two
and Class Three members are eligible to receive a reduced deferred annuity at age 60 if they satisfy the
five- or eight-year earned service requirement, respectively. An incidental death benefit is also available
to beneficiaries of active and retired members of employers who participate in the death benefit
program.

The annual retirement allowance of eligible retirees or their surviving annuitants is increased by the
lesser of one percent or five hundred dollars every July 1. Only those annuitants in receipt of a benefit
on July 1 of the preceding year are eligible to receive the increase. Members who retire under the early
retirement provisions at age 55 with 25 years of service are not eligible for the benefit adjustment until
the second July 1 after reaching age 60 or the second July 1 after the date they would have had 28 years
of service credit had they not retired.

The retirement allowance of eligible retirees or their surviving annuitants is increased by the lesser of
one percent or five hundred dollars every July 1. Only those annuitants in receipt of a benefit on July 1
of the preceding year are eligible to receive the increase.

(Continued)
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Contributions

Actuarial valuations are performed annually by an external consulting actuary to ensure applicable
contribution rates satisfy the funding parameters specified in Title 9 of the South Carolina Code of Laws.
Under these provisions, SCRS and PORS contribution requirements must be sufficient to maintain an
amortization period for the financing of the unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) over a period
that does not exceed the number of years scheduled in state statute. Legislation in 2017 increased, but
also established a ceiling for SCRS and PORS employee contribution rates. Effective July 1, 2017,
employee rates were increased to a capped rate of 9.00 percent for SCRS and 9.75 percent for PORS.
The legislation also increased employer contribution rates beginning July 1, 2017 for both SCRS and
PORS by two percentage points and further scheduled employer contribution rates to increase by a
minimum of one percentage point each year in accordance with state statute. However, the General
Assembly postponed the one percent increase in the SCRS and PORS employer contribution rates that
was scheduled to go into effect beginning July 1, 2020. If the scheduled contributions are not sufficient
to meet the funding periods set in state statute, the board shall increase the employer contribution
rates as necessary to meet the funding periods set for the applicable year.

The maximum funding period of SCRS and PORS is scheduled to be reduced over a ten-year schedule
from 30 years beginning fiscal year 2018 to 20 years by fiscal year 2028.

Additionally, the Board is prohibited from decreasing the SCRS contribution rates until the funded ratio
is at least 85 percent. If the most recent annual actuarial valuation of the Systems for funding purposes
shows a ratio of the actuarial value of system assets to the actuarial accrued liability of the system (the
funded ratio) that is equal to or greater than 85 percent, then the board, effective on the following July
1, may decrease the then current contribution rates upon making a finding that the decrease will not
result in a funded ratio of less than 85 percent. If contribution rates are decreased pursuant to this
provision, and the most recent annual actuarial valuation of the system shows a funded ratio of less
than 85 percent, then effective on the following July 1, and annually thereafter as necessary, the board
shall increase the then current contribution rates until a subsequent annual actuarial valuation of the
system shows a funded ratio that is equal to or greater than 85 percent.

Required employee contribution ratesare as follows:
Fiscal Year 2021 Fiscal Year 2020

SCRS
Employee Class Two 9.00% 9.00%
Employee Class Three 9.00% 9.00%
State ORP
Employee 9.00% 9.00%

(Continued)
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Required employer contribution rates (1) are as follows:
Fiscal Year 2021 Fiscal Year 2020

SCRS
Employee Class Two 15.41% 15.41%
Employee Class Three 15.41% 15.41%
Employer Incidental Death Benefit 0.15% 0.15%
State ORP
Employer Contribution (2) 15.41% 15.41%
Employer Incidental Death Benefit 0.15% 0.15%

Actuarial Assumptions and Methods

Actuarial valuations of the plan involve estimates of the reported amounts and assumptions about the
probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future
employment, mortality, and future salary increases. Amounts determined regarding the net pension
liability are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new
estimates are made about the future. South Carolina state statute requires that an actuarial experience
study be completed at least once in each five-year period. An experience report on the Systems was
most recently issued for the period ending June 30, 2019 for first use in the July 1, 2021 actuarial
valuation.

(1) Calculated on earnable compensation as defined in Title 9 of the South Carolina Code of Laws.
(2) Of this employer contribution, 5% of earnable compensation must be remitted by the employer directly to the ORP vendor to be allocated
to the member’s account with the remainder of the employer contribution remitted to the SCRS.

The June 30, 2019, total pension liability (TPL), net pension liability (NPL), and sensitivity information
shown in this report were determined by our consulting actuary, Gabriel, Roeder, Smith and Company
(GRS) and are based on an actuarial valuation performed as of July 1, 2019. The total pension liability
was rolled-forward from the valuation date to the plans’ fiscal year end, June 30, 2020, using generally
accepted actuarial principles.

The following provides a summary of the actuarial assumptions and methods used to calculate the TPL
as of June 30, 2020.

SCRS
Actuarial Cost Method Entry age normal
Investment Rate of Return 7.25%
Projected Salary Increases 3.0% to 12.5% (varies by service)!
Benefit Adjustments Lesser of 1% or $500 annually
YIncludes Inflation at 2.25%

(Continued)
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The post-retiree mortality assumption is dependent upon the member’s job category and gender. The
base mortality assumptions, the 2016 Public Retirees of South Carolina Mortality table (2016 PRSC), was
developed using the System’s mortality experience. These base rates are adjusted for future
improvement in mortality using published Scale AA projected from the year 2016.

Assumptions used in the determination of the June 30, 2020, TLP are as follows:

Former Job Class Males Females

Educators 2016 PRSC Males multiplied by | 2016 PRSC Females multiplied
92% by 98%

General Employees and Members 2016 PRSC Males multiplied by | 2016 PRSC Females multiplied

of the General Assembly 100% by 111%

Public Safety and Firefighters 2016 PRSC Males multiplied by | 2016 PRSC Females multiplied
125% by 111%

Net Pension Liability
The net pension liability (NLP) represents the total pension liability determined in accordance with GASB
No. 67 less that System’s fiduciary net position. SPL totals, as of June 30, 2020, for SCRS is presented
below:

Plan Fiduciary Net

Employers’ Net Position as a
Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Pension Liability Percentage of Total
System Liability Net Position (Asset) Pension Liability
SCRS $ 51,844,187,763 S 26,292,418,682 S 25,551,769,081 50.7%

The TPL is calculated by the Systems’ actuary, and each plan’s fiduciary net position is reported in the
Systems’ financial statements. The NPL is disclosed in accordance with the requirements of GASB 67 in
the Systems’ notes to the financial statements and required supplementary information. Liability
calculations performed by the Systems’ actuary for the purpose of satisfying the requirements of GASB
67 and 68 are not applicable for other purposes, such as determining the plans’ funding requirements.

Long-term Expected Rate of Return

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments is based upon 20-year capital
market assumptions. The long-term expected rates of return represent assumptions developed using an
arithmetic building block approach primarily based on consensus expectations and market-based inputs.
Expected returns are net of investment fees.

The expected returns, along with the expected inflation rate, form the basis for the target asset
allocation adopted at the beginning of the 2020 fiscal year. The long-term expected rate of return is
produced by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target allocation percentage and
adding expected inflation and is summarized in the table on the following page. For actuarial purposes,
the 7.25 percent assumed annual investment rate of return used in the calculation of the TPL includes a
5.00 percent real rate of return and a 2.25 percent inflation component. (Continued)
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LAURENS COUNTY WATER AND SEWER COMMISSION

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

NOTE 7 — PENSION PLAN, Continued

Long-term Expected

Asset Class Total Asset Expected Arithmetic Portfolio Real Rate
Allocation Real Rate of Return of Return

Global Equity 51.0%

Global Public Equity 35.0% 7.81% 2.73%

Private Equity 9.0% 8.91% 0.80%

Equity Options Strategies 7.0% 5.09% 0.36%
Real Assets 12.0%

Real Estate (private) 8.0% 5.55% 0.44%

Real Estate (REITs) 1.0% 7.78% 0.08%

Infrastructure (private) 2.0% 4.88% 0.10%

Infrastructure (public) 1.0% 7.05% 0.07%
Opportunistic 8.0%

Global Tactical Asset 7.0% 3.56% 0.25%

Other 1.0% 4.41% 0.04%
Credit 15.0%

High Yield Bonds/Bank Loans 4.0% 4.21% 0.17%

Emerging Marketing Debt 4.0% 3.44% 0.14%

Private Debt 7.0% 5.79% 0.40%
Rate Sensitive 14.0%

Core Fixed Income 13.0% 1.60% 0.21%

Cash and Short Duration (net) 1.0% 0.56% 0.01%
Total Expected Real Return 100% 5.80%
Inflation for Actuarial Purposes 2.25%
Total Expected Nominal Return 8.05%

Pensions

At June 30, 2021, the Commission reported a liability of $4,570,539 for its proportionate share of the net
pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2020, and the total pension
liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that
date. The Commission’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the
Commission’s long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected
contributions of all participating members, actuarially determined.
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LAURENS COUNTY WATER AND SEWER COMMISSION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

NOTE 7 — PENSION PLAN, Continued

For the year ended June 30, 2021, the Commission recognized pension expense of $586,312. At June 30,
2021, the Commission reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions from the following sources:

Governmental Activities

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of

SCRS Resources Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience S 58,338 S 17,284
Changes of assumptions:
Investment experience changes 336,202 -
Changes in proportion and differences between:
Commission contributions and proportionate share of
contributions 71,627 -
Commission contributions subsequent to the -
measurement date 322,808

Total S 788,975 S 17,284

An amount of $322,808 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from
Commission contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the
net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2021.

The following schedule reflects the amortization of the net balance of remaining deferred
outflows/(inflows) of resources at the measurement date. Average remaining service lives of all
employees provided with pensions through the pension plan at the measurement date was 4.00 years
for SCRS:
Measurement Period
Ending June 30

2021 S 113,869
2022 125,375
2023 123,848
2024 85,791

Net Balance of Deferred Outflow/(Inflow) of Resources S 448,883

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the TPL was 7.25 percent. The projection of cash flows used to
determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from participating employers in SCRS will be
made based on the actuarially determined rates based on provisions in the South Carolina Code of Laws.
Based on those assumptions, the System’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make
all the projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected
rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to
determine the TPL.

(Continued)
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NOTE 7 — PENSION PLAN, Continued

Sensitivity Analysis

The following table presents the collective net pension liability of the participating employers calculated
using the discount rate of 7.25 percent, as well as what the employers’ net pension liability would be if it
were calculated using a discount rate that is 1.00 percent lower or (6.25 percent) or 1.00 percent higher
(8.25 percent) than the current rate.

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

1.00% Decrease Current Discount Rate 1.00% Increase
System (6.25%) (7.25%) (8.25%)
SCRS S 5,664,621 | $ 4,570,538 | S 3,656,965

Additional Financial and Actuarial Information

Information contained in these Notes to the Schedules of Employer and Nonemployer Allocations and
Schedules of Pension Amounts by Employer (Schedules) was compiled from the Systems’ audited
financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, and the accounting valuation report as of
June 30, 2020. Additional financial information supporting the preparation of the Schedules (including
the unmodified audit opinion on the financial statements and required supplementary information) is
available in the Systems’ CAFR.

NOTE 8 — OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

Plan Description

The Commission’s post-employment benefit plan is a single employer plan that pays a portion of the
health insurance premiums of retired employees. Coverage is provided through the Employee Insurance
Program for the State of South Carolina. For current retirees age 65 and over, the Commission pays a
percentage of the insurance premium of retirees’ Medicare supplemental policies and optional dental
insurance. Retirees under age 65 are covered under the same health insurance policy as are active
employees, and the Commission pays a portion of their premiums. The plan was amended for
employees hired after November 2010, whereby eligibility in the plan remains the same, but the
Commission will no longer pay any portion of the health insurance premium when the retiree becomes
eligible for Medicare. The Board of Commissioners establishes plan policies, including benefits and
contribution requirements of the Commission and plan members, which may be amended at its
discretion. The retiree health plan does not issue a publicly available financial report.

(Continued)
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NOTE 8 — OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS, Continued

As of June 30, 2021, the measurement date, there were 44 covered participants, including 38 active
participants (11 hired before November 2010 and 27 hired after November 2010) and 6 retirees. The
percentage of the health insurance premium paid by the Commission for retiree health insurance is
based on the number of years of service as follows:

Continuous Years Percentage Paid
of Service by the Commission
Less than 10 0%
10 20%
15 40%
20 60%
25 80%
30+ 100%

Funding Policy
The Commission’s annual other post-employment benefits (OPEB) cost (expense) is a pay-as-you-go
basis.

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation

Health Insurance Continuation of Coverage — As required by the Consolidated Omnibus Budget and
Reconciliation Act (COBRA), the Commission provides health insurance benefits to eligible former
employees and eligible dependents based upon requirements outlined by the federal government for
this coverage. The premium is paid in full by the insured on or before the tenth day of the month for the
actual month covered. There is no associated cost to the Commission.

Total OPEB Liability — The Commission’s total OPEB liability of $3,385,047 was measured as of June 30,
2021, and was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date.

Actuarial assumptions and other inputs. The total OPEB liability in the June 30, 2021, actuarial valuation
was determined using the following actuarial assumptions and other inputs, applied to all periods
included in the measurement, unless otherwise specified:

Inflation 2.50 percent
Salary increases 3.00 percent
Discount rate 2.16 percent

The discount rate was based on the 20-Bond GO Index.
Mortality rates were based on the July 1, 2017, SCRS valuation (see Note 8).

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2021 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial
experience study with a measurement date of June 30, 2021.

(Continued)
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NOTE 8 — OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS, Continued

Changes in the Total OPEB Liability

Total OPEB
Liability

Balance at 6/30/2020 S 2,868,056
Changes for the year:

Service cost 127,932

Interest 79,307

Economic losses 78,094

Effect of assumptions 260,976

Employer contributions (29,317)

Net changes 516,991

Balance at 6/30/2021 S 3,385,047

Post-Employment and Other Employee Benefits, Continued

Sensitivity of the total OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate. The following presents the total
OPEB liability of the Commission, as well as what the Commission’s total OPEB liability would be if it
were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (2.50 percent) or 1-percentage-
point higher (4.50 percent) than the current discount rate:

1% Discount 1%
Decrease Rate Increase
(1.16) (2.16) (3.16)
Total OPEB liability S 4,004,300 S 3,385,047 S 2,890,050

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB -
For the year ended June 30, 2021, the Commission recognized OPEB expense of $472,919. At June 30,
2021, the Commission reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to OPEB from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred

Outflows of Inflows of

Resources Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience S - S -
Changes of assumptions or other inputs - -
Total S - S -
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NOTE 9 — PROPERTY TAXES

Property taxes are levied against all real and tangible personal property located in the Commission’s
service area in Laurens County. The Laurens County Treasurer and Auditor annually sets the millage in
the Commission’s service area sufficient to service the principal and interest repayment schedules of the
General Obligation Bonds of Laurens County Water and Sewer Commission, South Carolina. The county
treasurer also collects all levied property taxes for the Commission, and makes principal and interest
payments on this debt from the property tax collections.

The Commission reports property taxes actually collected as non-operating revenue. Property tax
collections are kept in a debt service fund which is maintained by the Laurens County Treasurer. The

Commission reports the balance of funds in this account as restricted cash in debt service funds.

NOTE 10 — LITIGATION

The Laurens County Water and Sewer Commission and the commissioners are not a material party as a
defendant or plaintiff in any litigation.

NOTE 11 — UTILITY MANAGEMENT SERVICE AGREEMENT

On January 1, 2020, the Commission signed a three-year utility management service agreement with the
Town of Gray Court (the “Town”) to manage and maintain the Town’s water system. The Commission
provides operation, maintenance and administrative services for the water system and the Commission
collects the monthly water usage fees as payment for these services however the monthly fees cannot
be lower than $3,775. The Town continues to fund certain expenses associated with the water system
such as utilities, rehabilitative and upgrades to the system and non-inventory parts used in system
maintenance.

NOTE 12 — PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT

The Commission has recorded a prior period adjustment to the prior period’s financial statements due
to mistakes in applying management estimates regarding depreciation. The adjustment is summarized
as follows:

Lake Rabon
Beginning net position — Lake Rabon Water Supply
System, as previously reported at June 30, 2019 S 3,165,459
Prior period adjustment — depreciation estimate 699,856
Net position — Lake Rabon Water Supply System,
as restated at July 1, 2019 S 3,865,315

(Continued)
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NOTE 12 — PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT, Continued

Combined
Beginning net position — Combined, as previously
reported at June 30, 2019 S 46,694,851
Prior period adjustment — depreciation estimate 699,856
Net position — Combined, as restated at July 1,
2019 S 46,394,707

NOTE 13 — SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On July 1, 2021, the Commission’s outstanding Water Distribution System Series 2020 Bond Anticipation
Notes were paid off (see Note 5).

The Commission has evaluated events and transactions for subsequent events through the date of the
auditor’s report, the date the financial statements were available to be issued.
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LAURENS COUNTY WATER AND SEWER COMMISSION
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF COMMISSION'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY
SOUTH CAROLINA RETIREMENT SYSTEM
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Only eight years of information is presented as only eight years of data were available.

Year Ended June 30,
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Commission's proportion of the net pension liability 0.017887% 0.017768% 0.017571% 0.017040% 0.016452% 0.015875% 0.015862% 0.015862%
Commission's proportionate share of the net pension liability S 4,570,539 S 4,057,069 S 3,937,170 S 3,835978 $ 3,514,123 S 2,986,494 S 2,730,911 S 2,845,077
Commission's covered-employee payroll S 2074603 S 1,995578 S 1,876,214 S 1,701,032 $ 1,719,245 S 1,476,446 S 1,440,044 S 1,359,813
Commission's proportionate share of the net pension liability

as a percentage of its covered-employee payroll 220.3% 203.3% 209.8% 225.5% 204.4% 202.3% 189.6% 209.2%
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total

pension liability 50.7% 54.4% 54.1% 53.3% 52.9% 57.0% 59.9% 56.4%

Notes to schedule:
The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of June 30th of the
preceding year.
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LAURENS COUNTY WATER AND SEWER COMMISSION
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF COMMISSION'S PENSION CONTRIBUTIONS
SOUTH CAROLINA RETIREMENT SYSTEM
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Only eight years of information is presented as only eight years of data were available.

Year Ended June 30,

2021 2020 2019 2018

2017 2016 2015 2014

Contractually required contribution

Contributions in relation to the contractually
required contribution

Contribution deficiency (excess)

Commission's covered-employee payroll

Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll

322,808 S 310,538 S 273,177 S 230,660

322,808 S 310,538 S 273,177 S 230,660

198,745 S 176,200 S 160,933 S 152,645

198,745 176,200 160,933 152,645

2,074,603 $ 1995578 S 1,876,214 $ 1,701,032

15.56% 15.56% 14.56% 13.56%
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LAURENS COUNTY WATER AND SEWER COMMISION
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
For the last four fiscal years
2021 2020 2019 2018

Total OPEB liability

Service cost S 127,932 S 114,577 S 98,016 S 127,150

Interest 79,307 98,320 99,958 114,533

Economic losses 78,094 (368,801) (1,533) (360,043)

Effect of assumptions 260,976 344,188 348,128 189,481

Employer contributions (29,318) (29,317) (28,530) (27,835)
Net change in total OPEB liability 516,991 158,967 516,039 43,286
Total OPEB liability - beginning 2,868,056 2,709,089 2,193,050 2,149,764

Total OPEB liability - ending

$ 3,385,047

S 2,868,056

$ 2,709,089

S 2,193,050

Covered-employee payroll S 2,074,603 S 1,995,578 S 1,876,214 S 1,701,032
Total OPEB liability as a percentage of
covered-employee payroll 163.2% 143.7% 144.4% 128.9%

Measurement date

Notes

June 30, 2020

June 30, 2019

June 30, 2018

June 30, 2017

(1) Pursuant to GASB 75, a 10-year history of the information shown above is required. However, until a full 10-year history is

compiled, information for those years which are available may be presented.
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ASSETS

Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash for debt service
Accounts receivable, net
Contributed capital receivable
Inventories
Prepaid expenses

Total current assets

Non-Current Assets
Restricted cash - capacity funds
Restricted cash - construction funds
Due from Gray Court
Capital assets, net

Total non-current assets

Total assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES
Pensions
Loss on refunding of debt

Total deferred outflow of resources

LAURENS COUNTY WATER AND SEWER COMMISSION

COMBINING STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2021
(with summarized comparative totals for June 30, 2020)

ENTERPRISE INTERNAL
Clinton/Joanna Lake Rabon Water
Collection Wastewater Water Supply Distribution Administration

System Treatment System System Fund Eliminations 2021 2020
S 367,409 S 1,633,024 S 450,102 S 5,308,259 S 179,246 - S 7,938,040 S 5,992,064
210,178 155,548 - 500,694 - - 866,420 829,852
53,209 136,515 43,108 688,159 2,099 (16,307) 906,783 1,055,443
- - - 226,796 - - 226,796 1,110,813
8,925 49,356 - 13,838 - - 72,119 69,222
- - - 4,530 93,292 - 97,822 87,524
639,721 1,974,443 493,210 6,742,276 274,637 (16,307) 10,107,980 9,144,918
185,248 - - 1,974,827 - - 2,160,075 1,788,599
- - - 42,813,738 - - 42,813,738 29,726,250
- - - 127,293 - - 127,293 155,580
10,946,888 12,847,501 3,592,308 82,526,047 635,314 - 110,548,058 82,232,752
11,132,136 12,847,501 3,592,308 127,441,905 635,314 - 155,649,164 113,903,181
11,771,857 14,821,944 4,085,518 134,184,181 909,951 (16,307) 165,757,144 123,048,099
69,686 79,654 29,762 318,346 291,527 - 788,975 642,415
7,863 - - - - - 7,863 15,454
77,549 79,654 29,762 318,346 291,527 - 796,838 657,869

-44 -



LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable
Accruals
Due to other governmental entities
Accrued interest
Customer deposits
Deferred revenue
Current portion of bonds payable

Total current liabilities

Non-Current Liabilities
Bonds payable
Net pension liability

Accrued other post employment benefits

Total non-current liabilities

Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES
Pensions

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for debt service
Restricted for future capacity
Unrestricted

Total net position

LAURENS COUNTY WATER AND SEWER COMMISSION
COMBINING STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2021
(with summarized comparative totals for June 30, 2020)

ENTERPRISE INTERNAL
Clinton/Joanna Lake Rabon Water
Collection Wastewater Water Supply Distribution Administration
System Treatment System System Fund Eliminations 2021 2020
11,540 32,163 11,808 2,683,703 71,087 (16,307) 2,793,994 3,708,057
12,246 11,439 9,218 68,113 62,175 - 163,191 222,479
- - - 65,741 - - 65,741 36,002
6,016 1,244 - 293,729 - - 300,989 284,314
- - - 50,826 - - 50,826 50,825
- - - 17,284 - - 17,284 16,500
334,000 84,246 - 44,538,102 - - 44,956,348 1,370,963
363,802 129,092 21,026 47,717,498 133,262 (16,307) 48,348,373 5,689,140
735,000 3,982,473 - 47,204,552 - - 51,922,025 58,337,221
403,691 461,435 172,409 1,844,182 1,688,822 - 4,570,539 4,057,069
380,469 339,105 133,860 1,327,408 1,204,205 - 3,385,047 2,868,056
1,519,160 4,783,013 306,269 50,376,142 2,893,027 - 59,877,611 65,262,346
1,882,962 4,912,105 327,295 98,093,640 3,026,289 (16,307) 108,225,984 70,951,486
1,527 1,745 652 6,974 6,386 - 17,284 120,397
9,871,872 8,779,538 3,592,308 33,303,402 635,314 - 56,182,434 52,379,436
210,178 155,548 - 500,694 - - 866,420 829,852
185,248 - - 1,974,827 - - 2,160,075 1,788,599
(302,381) 1,052,662 195,025 622,990 (2,466,511) - (898,215) (2,363,802)
9,964,917 S 9,987,748 S 3,787,333 $ 36,401,913 S (1,831,197) S - $ 58,310,714 $ 52,634,085
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LAURENS COUNTY WATER AND SEWER COMMISSION
COMBINING STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
(with summarized comparative totals for the year ended June 30, 2020)

ENTERPRISE INTERNAL
Clinton/Joanna Lake Rabon Water
Collection Wastewater Water Supply Distribution Administration
System Treatment System System Fund Eliminations 2021 2020
OPERATING REVENUE

Collection revenue S 625,586 S - S - S - S - S - S 625,586 S 587,022
Wastewater treatment revenue - 1,826,845 - - - - 1,826,845 1,910,390
Water sales - - 485,547 8,305,190 - (162,869) 8,627,868 8,547,376
Penalties - - - 253,695 - - 253,695 250,778
Tap fees 134,500 - - 517,432 - - 651,932 360,646
Reinstate, reconnect and delinquent fees 271 34 - 153,088 - - 153,393 137,551
Origination fees 2,070 - - 54,500 - - 56,570 49,825
Other operating revenue 25,458 9,213 32,240 100,396 - (9,030) 158,277 145,802

Total revenue 787,885 1,836,092 517,787 9,384,301 - (171,899) 12,354,166 11,989,390

OPERATING EXPENSES

Salaries 155,324 146,880 97,387 915,306 759,182 - 2,074,079 2,101,595
Payroll taxes 11,799 11,213 7,454 70,602 56,780 - 157,848 150,807
Group insurance 30,257 32,261 9,312 217,374 95,740 - 384,944 374,351
State retirement 24,212 22,952 11,337 143,194 120,821 - 322,516 329,096
Worker's compensation 5,375 5,375 3,455 20,730 3,455 - 38,390 30,627
Employee health/safety expense 740 623 338 4,626 604 - 6,931 5,527
Employee memberships 536 538 300 2,776 2,775 - 6,925 6,100
Employee training, conferences and seminars 871 3,434 - 5,859 2,892 - 13,056 30,251
Uniform expense 4,680 4,555 840 17,613 2,369 - 30,057 29,907
Dues, subscriptions and licenses 255 567 - 661 14,387 - 15,870 14,707
Commissioners & legislative expense - - - - 38,581 - 38,581 35,488
Water purchases - - - 2,506,321 - (162,869) 2,343,452 2,141,720
Chemicals 1,152 60,241 - 35,511 - - 96,904 92,935
Contract plant operations - 187,205 - - - - 187,205 151,049
System maintenance 48,504 54,902 4,230 415,491 - - 523,127 406,506
Vehicle and equipment maintenance and fuel 26,846 50,983 18,949 129,069 - - 225,847 215,492
Buildings and grounds maint - 23,790 12,722 23,897 26,251 - 86,660 90,466
Software and office equipment maintenance 4,291 1,326 318 18,469 132,452 - 156,856 100,928
Property and casualty insurance - - - - 93,505 - 93,505 87,856
Depreciation 354,702 615,649 104,831 1,556,870 83,675 - 2,715,727 2,508,755
Utilities 39,591 210,193 34,677 109,651 21,860 - 415,972 370,716
Telephone and mobile communications 8,625 16,402 1,657 37,192 14,401 - 78,277 86,989
DHEC licenses and fees - 2,205 - 31,074 - - 33,279 32,651
Tools and supplies 4,978 5,365 442 25,342 - - 36,127 54,982
Flow monitoring - - 18,900 - - - 18,900 2,700
Right of way maintenance 18,979 25,477 - 12,070 - - 56,526 58,207
Billing fees 4,515 4,515 - 86,550 - (9,030) 86,550 96,730
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Office expense

Professional fees

Engineering and consulting
Economic development
Community outreach
Entertainment expense

IVR and merchant service fees
Miscellaneous expense

Total operating expenses

Operating income

NON-OPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSES)
Property tax collections
Interest earned
Insurance proceeds
Gain on sale of assets
Sale of service area
Capacity fees
Bond administration expense
Miscellaneous non-operating rev(exp)
Interest expense
Non cash - state retirement
Non cash - post employment expense

Total non-operating revenue (expense)

Change in net position before capital

contributions and transfers
CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS, NET

TRANSFERS
Transfer LGIP
Transfer administrative fees

Change in net position

Net position, beginning of year
Prior period adjustment (Note 12)

Net position, beginning of year, restated

Net position, end of year

LAURENS COUNTY WATER AND SEWER COMMISSION

COMBINING STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
(with summarized comparative totals for the year ended June 30, 2020)

Clinton/Joanna Lake Rabon Water
Collection Wastewater Water Supply Distribution Administration
System Treatment System System Fund Eliminations 2021 2020
- 2,247 - 80 70,858 - 73,185 51,448
- - 4,150 24,733 84,434 - 113,317 65,523
- - - 10,150 28,350 - 38,500 32,590
- - - - 35,710 - 35,710 35,851
- - - - 62,467 - 62,467 82,198
- - - - 15,951 - 15,951 17,797
- - - 118,925 - - 118,925 104,845
8,101 5,210 3,387 3,023 345 - 20,066 (2,396)
754,333 1,494,108 334,686 6,543,159 1,767,845 (171,899) 10,722,232 9,994,994
33,552 341,984 183,101 2,841,142 (1,767,845) - 1,631,934 1,994,396
375,920 - - - - - 375,920 388,930
1,339 2,626 819 9,291 661 - 14,736 113,696
- - - - 42,113 - 42,113 -
942 942 - 7,676 - - 9,560 70,557
- - - 1,203,161 - - 1,203,161 -
2,200 21,675 - 411,500 - - 435,375 269,470
- (3,556) - (27,053) - - (30,609) (6,789)
- 16,673 - 26,410 - - 43,083 (223,752)
(36,927) (113,135) - (1,269,717) - - (1,419,779) (420,698)
(23,300) (26,632) (9,951) (106,440) (97,473) - (263,796) (187,430)
(58,108) (51,791) (20,444) (202,732) (183,915) - (516,990) (158,967)
262,066 (153,198) (29,576) 52,096 (238,614) - (107,226) (154,983)
295,618 188,786 153,525 2,893,238 (2,006,459) - 1,524,708 1,839,413
1,710,394 25,401 - 2,416,125 - - 4,151,920 4,399,965
- - (80,000) 80,000 - - - -
(171,694) (343,386) (128,770) (1,073,082) 1,716,932 - - -
1,834,318 (129,199) (55,245) 4,316,281 (289,527) - 5,676,628 6,239,378
8,130,599 10,116,947 3,842,578 32,085,632 (1,541,670) - 52,634,086 45,694,851
- - - - - - - 699,856
8,130,599 10,116,947 3,842,578 32,085,632 (1,541,670) - 52,634,086 46,394,707

9,964,917

S 9,987,748

S 3,787,333

S 36,401,913

$  (1,831,197)

- S 58,310,714

S 52,634,085
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CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers
Payments for supplies for goods and services
Payments for labor and related services
Payment for employee benefits

Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfers between funds

Net cash (used in) provided by
noncapital financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Property tax collections
Capital outlay
Capital contributions
Proceeds from sale of assets
Interest paid on bonds
Principal paid on bonds, net
Bond administration fees
Property lease fees
Sale of service area
Bond issuance savings
Capacity fees

Net cash provided by (used in) capital and related

financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Insurance proceeds
Interest income

Net cash flows provided by investing activities
Net (decrease) increase in cash
Cash, beginning of year

Cash, end of year

LAURENS COUNTY WATER AND SEWER COMMISSION

COMBINING STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
(with summarized comparative totals for the year ended June 30, 2020)

ENTERPRISE INTERNAL
Clinton/Joanna Lake Rabon Water
Collection Wastewater Water Supply Distribution Administration
System Treatment System System Fund 2021 2020

$ 780,716 $ 1,891,271 $ 514,391 $ 10,260,160 $ (2,038) $ 13,444,500 $ 11,126,918
(300,438) (654,994) (92,553) (4,359,195) (638,435) (6,045,615) (1,280,343)
(171,215) (153,422) (105,079) (985,908) (834,792) (2,250,416) (2,116,357)
(59,844) (61,212) (24,104) (381,298) (220,016) (746,474) (721,133)
249,219 1,021,643 292,655 4,533,759 (1,695,281) 4,401,995 7,009,085

(171,694) (343,386) (208,770) (993,082) 1,716,932 - -

(171,694) (343,386) (208,770) (993,082) 1,716,932 - -
375,920 - - - - 375,920 388,930
(102,639) (241,201) (13,921) (28,785,272) (53,750) (29,196,783) (20,569,759)
5,049 - - 2,416,125 - 2,421,174 4,015,693
(942) (942) - (7,676) - (9,560) (44,415)
(29,336) (113,135) (401) (1,269,717) - (1,412,589) (408,864)
(319,000) (81,987) - 37,571,152 - 37,170,165 41,302,736
- (3,556) - (27,053) - (30,609) (6,789)
- - - 81,792 - 81,792 86,400

- - - 1,203,161 - 1,203,161 -
- - - (55,382) - (55,382) (310,452)
2,200 21,675 - 411,500 - 435,375 269,470
(68,748) (419,146) (14,322) 11,538,630 (53,750) 10,982,664 24,722,950

- - - - 42,113 42,113 -
1,339 2,626 819 9,291 661 14,736 113,696
1,339 2,626 819 9,291 42,774 56,849 113,696
10,116 261,737 70,382 15,088,598 10,675 15,441,508 31,845,731
752,719 1,526,835 379,720 35,508,920 168,571 38,336,765 6,491,034
$ 762,835 $ 1,788,572 $ 450,102 $ 50,597,518 $ 179,246 $ 53,778,273 $ 38,336,765
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RECONCILIATION TO STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash - debt service funds
Restricted cash - capacity funds
Restricted cash - construction funds

Total cash and cash equivalents

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH
PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Operating (loss) income

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net
cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation
Gain on sale of assets

Changes in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable
(Increase) decrease in inventory
(Increase) decrease in prepaids
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable
Increase (decrease) in due to other governmental entities
Increase (decrease) in accrued expenses

Total adjustments

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

LAURENS COUNTY WATER AND SEWER COMMISSION

COMBINING STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
(with summarized comparative totals for the year ended June 30, 2020)

ENTERPRISE INTERNAL
Clinton/Joanna Lake Rabon Water
Collection Wastewater Water Supply Distribution Administration
System Treatment System System Fund 2021 2020
367,409 1,633,024 450,102 5,308,259 179,246 7,938,040 5,992,064
210,178 155,548 - 500,694 - 866,420 829,852
185,248 - - 1,974,827 - 2,160,075 1,788,599
- - - 42,813,738 - 42,813,738 29,726,250
S 762,835 S 1,788,572 S 450,102 S 50,597,518 S 179,246 S 53,778,273 S 38,336,765
$ 33,552 $ 341,984 $ 183,101 S 2,841,142 $ (1,767,845) S 1,631,934 $ 1,994,396
354,702 615,649 104,831 1,556,870 83,675 2,715,727 2,508,755
(942) (942) - (7,676) - (9,560) -
(5,285) 56,122 (3,396) 875,859 (2,038) 921,262 (935,422)
(240) (1,484) - (1,173) - (2,897) 2,439
1,250 1,250 - - (8,268) (5,768) (8,057)
(127,932) (651) 8,357 (779,087) 17,680 (881,633) 3,201,687
- - - 94,028 - 94,028 (153,008)
(5,886) 9,715 (238) (46,204) (18,485) (61,098) 398,295
215,667 679,659 109,554 1,692,617 72,564 2,770,061 5,014,689
S 249,219 S 1,021,643 S 292,655 S 4,533,759 S (1,695,281) S 4,401,995 S 7,009,085
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LAURENS COUNTY WATER AND SEWER COMMISSION
COLLECTION SYSTEM
STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2021
(with summarized comparative totals for June 30, 2020)

2021 2020
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents S 367,409 S 344,966
Restricted cash for general obligation bonds 210,178 184,389
Accounts receivable, net 53,209 45,098
Contributed capital receivable - 129,886
Inventories 8,925 8,685
Prepaids - 1,250
Total current assets 639,721 714,274
Non-Current Assets
Restricted cash - capacity funds 185,248 223,364
Capital assets, net 10,946,888 9,363,720
Total non-current assets 11,132,136 9,587,084
Total assets 11,771,857 10,301,358
DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES
Pensions 69,686 67,278
Loss on refunding of debt 7,863 15,454
Total deferred outflow of resources 77,549 82,732
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable 11,540 147,553
Accruals 12,246 16,338
Accrued interest 6,016 7,810
Current portion of bonds payable 334,000 329,000
Total current liabilities 363,802 500,701
Non-Current Liabilities
Bonds payable 735,000 1,059,000
Net pension liability 403,691 358,339
Accrued other post employment benefits 380,469 322,361
Total non-current liabilities 1,519,160 1,739,700
Total liabilities 1,882,962 2,240,401
DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES
Pensions 1,527 13,090
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 9,871,872 8,097,796
Restricted for debt service 210,178 184,389
Restricted for future capacity 185,248 223,364
Unrestricted (302,381) (374,950)
Total net position S 9,964,917 S 8,130,599
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LAURENS COUNTY WATER AND SEWER COMMISSION
COLLECTION SYSTEM
STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
BUDGET TO ACTUAL

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

(with summarized comparative totals for the year ended June 30, 2020)

OPERATING REVENUE
Collection revenue
Tap fees
Reinstate, reconnect and delinquent fees
Origination fees
Other operating revenue

Total revenue

OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries
Payroll taxes
Group insurance
State retirement
Worker's compensation
Employee health/safety expense
Employee memberships
Employee training, conferences and seminars
Uniform expense
Dues, subscriptions and licenses
Chemicals
System maintenance
Vehicle and equipment maintenance
Software and office equipment maintenance
Depreciation
Vehicle and equipment fuel
Utilities
Telephone and mobile communications
Tools and supplies
Right of way maintenance
Billing fees
Miscellaneous expense

Total operating expenses
Operating (loss) income

NON-OPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSES)
Property tax collections
Interest earned
Gain on sale of assets
Capacity fees
Interest expense
Non cash - state retirement
Non cash - post employment expense

Total non-operating revenue (expense)

Change in net position before capital
contributions and transfers

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS, NET

TRANSFERS
Transfer administrative fees to admin fund

Change in net position
Net position, beginning of year

Net position, end of year

2021 Budget Variance 2020
625,586 S 603,445 S 22,141 S 587,022
134,500 - 134,500 47,189

271 - 271 -
2,070 - 2,070 1,725
25,458 27,202 (1,744) 25,262
787,885 630,647 157,238 661,198
155,324 166,467 (11,143) 165,167
11,799 12,735 (936) 11,329
30,257 32,739 (2,482) 28,641
24,212 25,458 (1,246) 41,441
5,375 4,750 625 4,288
740 1,200 (460) 997
536 900 (364) 545
871 5,766 (4,895) 2,716
4,680 4,260 420 4,252
255 600 (345) 25
1,152 1,004 148 785
48,504 20,000 28,504 46,161
16,583 22,986 (6,403) 15,188
4,291 1,250 3,041 1,904
354,702 122,828 231,874 331,713
10,263 13,760 (3,497) 9,334
39,591 35,352 4,239 34,864
8,625 2,660 5,965 8,737
4,978 4,580 398 8,138
18,979 22,102 (3,123) 18,984
4,515 4,410 105 4,418
8,101 1,250 6,851 112
754,333 507,057 247,276 739,739
33,552 123,590 (90,038) (78,541)
375,920 - 375,920 388,930
1,339 - 1,339 8,249
942 10,000 (9,058) 10,571
2,200 - 2,200 470
(36,927) - (36,927) (46,563)

(23,300) - (23,300) -
(58,108) (7,873) (50,235) (14,037)
262,066 2,127 259,939 347,620
295,618 125,717 169,901 269,079
1,710,394 - 1,710,394 405,370
(171,694) (174,163) 2,469 (163,797)

1,834,318 (48,446) 1,882,764 510,652

8,130,599 8,130,599 - 7,619,947

9,964,917 S 8,082,153 S 1,882,764 S 8,130,599
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LAURENS COUNTY WATER AND SEWER COMMISSION

COLLECTION SYSTEM
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

(with summarized comparative totals for the year ended June 30, 2020)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers
Payments for supplies for goods and services
Payments for labor and related services
Payment for employee benefits

Net cash provided by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Transfer administrative fees to admin fund

Net cash used in noncapital financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Property tax collections
Capital outlay
Capital contributions
Gain on sale of assets
Interest paid on bonds
Principal paid on bonds
Capacity fees

Net cash used in capital and related
financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest income

Net cash flows provided by investing activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash
Cash, beginning of year

Cash, end of year

RECONCILIATION TO STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash - debt service funds
Restricted cash - capacity funds

Total cash and cash equivalents

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH

PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating loss

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net
cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation

Changes in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable
(Increase) decrease in inventory
(Increase) decrease in prepaids
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable
Increase (decrease) in accrued expenses

Total adjustments

Net cash provided by operating activities

2021 2020
$ 780,716  $ 602,556
(300,438) (84,694)
(171,215) (176,517)
(59,844) (74,370)
249,219 266,975
(171,694) (163,797)
(171,694) (163,797)
375,920 388,930
(102,639) (184,954)
5,049 21,098
(942) 10,571
(29,336) (34,328)
(319,000) (319,000)
2,200 470
(68,748) (117,213)
1,339 8,249
1,339 8,249
10,116 (5,786)
752,719 758,505
$ 762,835 $ 752,719
367,409 344,966
210,178 184,389
185,248 223,364
$ 762,835 $ 752,719
$ 33,552 § (78,541)
354,702 331,713
(6,227) 15,534
(240) 60
1,250 (1,250)
(127,932) 1,272
(5,886) (1,813)
215,667 345,516
$ 249,219 % 266,975
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LAURENS COUNTY WATER AND SEWER COMMISSION
CLINTON/JOANNA WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT
STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2021
(with summarized comparative totals for June 30, 2020)

2021 2020
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents S 1,633,024 S 1,372,922
Restricted cash for debt service funds 155,548 153,913
Accounts receivable, net 136,515 174,079
Inventories 49,356 47,872
Prepaids - 1,250
Total current assets 1,974,443 1,750,036
Non-Current Assets
Capital assets, net 12,847,501 13,205,606
Total non-current assets 12,847,501 13,205,606
Total assets 14,821,944 14,955,642
DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES
Pensions 79,654 73,017
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable 32,163 34,686
Accruals 11,439 16,110
Accrued interest 1,244 1,268
Current portion of bonds payable 84,246 81,963
Total current liabilities 129,092 134,027
Non-Current Liabilities
Bonds payable 3,982,473 4,066,719
Net pension liability 461,435 409,596
Accrued other post employment benefits 339,105 287,314
Total non-current liabilities 4,783,013 4,763,629
Total liabilities 4,912,105 4,897,656
DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES
Pensions 1,745 14,057
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 8,779,538 9,055,656
Restricted for debt service 155,548 153,913
Unrestricted 1,052,662 907,377
Total net position S 9,987,748 S 10,116,946
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LAURENS COUNTY WATER AND SEWER COMMISSION

CLINTON/JOANNA WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
BUDGET TO ACTUAL
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

OPERATING REVENUE
Wastewater treatment revenue
Reinstate, reconnect and delinquent fees
Other operating revenue

Total revenue

OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries
Payroll taxes
Group insurance
State retirement
Worker's compensation
Employee health/safety expense
Employee memberships

Employee training, conferences and seminars

Uniform expense

Dues, subscriptions and licenses
Contract plant operations

Sludge disposal

System maintenance

Vehicle and equipment maintenance
Building and grounds maintenance
Software and office equipment maintenance
Depreciation

Vehicle and equipment fuel

Office expense

Utilities

Telephone and mobile communications
DHEC licenses and fees

Sampling and testing

Chemicals

Tools and supplies

Professional fees

Engineering and consulting service
Right of way maintenance

Billing fees

Miscellaneous expense

Total operating expenses
Operating (loss) income

NON-OPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSES)
Interest earned
Gain on sale of assets
Santee Cooper credit
Capacity fees
Bond administration charge
Interest expense
Non cash - state retirement
Non cash - post employment expense

Total non-operating revenue (expense)

Change in net position before capital
contributions and transfers

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS, NET

TRANSFERS
Transfer administrative fees to admin func

Change in net position
Net position, beginning of year

Net position, end of year

(with totals for the year ended June 30, 2020)

2021 Budget Variance 2020

S 1,826,845 $ 1,658,704 S 168,141 $ 1,910,390
34 - 34 23
9,213 - 9,213 8,502
1,836,092 1,658,704 177,388 1,918,915
146,880 161,738 (14,858) 156,483
11,213 11,995 (782) 10,945
32,261 34,645 (2,384) 31,153
22,952 23,981 (1,029) 22,498
5,375 4,750 625 4,288
623 1,200 (577) 808
538 900 (362) 560
3,434 7,241 (3,807) 4,614
4,555 4,095 460 4,619
567 600 (33) 25
98,400 99,600 (1,200) 99,600
74,512 45,000 29,512 35,303
54,902 21,600 33,302 33,942
39,591 26,093 13,498 31,986
23,790 18,900 4,890 16,058
1,326 1,250 76 1,250
615,649 625,903 (10,254) 595,764
11,392 14,750 (3,358) 13,282
2,247 2,500 (253) 2,241
210,193 187,017 23,176 200,574
16,402 17,872 (1,470) 18,183
2,205 2,500 (295) 2,205
14,293 14,570 (277) 16,146
60,241 63,015 (2,774) 57,141
5,365 4,838 527 8,580

- 500 (500) -
- 5,000 (5,000) 800
25,477 18,600 6,877 13,723
4,515 4,410 105 4,418
5,210 3,000 2,210 40
1,494,108 1,428,063 66,045 1,387,229
341,984 230,641 111,343 531,686
2,626 - 2,626 12,472
942 10,000 (9,058) 10,571

16,673 - 16,673 -
21,675 - 21,675 14,600
(3,556) - (3,556) (3,556)
(113,135) - (113,135) (115,257)
(26,632) - (26,632) (20,756)
(51,791) (12,315) (39,476) (16,056)
(153,198) (2,315) (150,883) (117,982)
188,786 228,326 (39,540) 413,704

25,401 - 25,401 -
(343,386) (348,326) 4,940 (327,594)
(129,199) (120,000) (9,199) 86,110
10,116,947 10,116,947 - 10,030,837
S 9,987,748 S 9,996,947 S (9,199) $ 10,116,947
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LAURENS COUNTY WATER AND SEWER COMMISSION
CLINTON/JOANNA WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

(with summarized comparative totals for the year ended June 30, 2020)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers
Payments for treatment plant operations
Payments for labor and related services
Payment for employee benefits

Net cash provided by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfer administrative fees to admin fund

Net cash used in noncapital financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Capital outlay
Gain on sale of assets
Interest paid on bonds
Principal paid on bonds
Bond administration fees
Capacity fees
Net cash used in capital and related
financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest income

Net cash flows provided by investing activities
Net increase in cash
Cash, beginning of year

Cash, end of year

RECONCILIATION TO STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash - debt service funds

Total cash and cash equivalents

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH
PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Operating income

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net
cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation

Changes in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable
(Increase) decrease in inventory
(Increase) decrease in prepaids
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable
Increase (decrease) in accrued expenses

Total adjustments

Net cash provided by operating activities

2021 2020
$ 1,891,271 $ 1,919,554
(654,994) (582,029)
(153,422) (193,669)
(61,212) (58,747)
1,021,643 1,085,109
(343,386) (327,594)
(343,386) (327,594)
(241,201) (197,093)
(942) (10,571)
(113,135) (115,257)
(81,987) (79,766)
(3,556) (3,556)
21,675 14,600
(419,146) (391,643)
2,626 12,472

2,626 12,472
261,737 378,344
1,526,835 1,148,491
$ 1,788,572 $ 1,526,835
1,633,024 1,372,922
155,548 153,913

$ 1,788,572 $ 1,526,835
$ 341,984 $ 531,685
615,649 595,764
55,180 662
(1,484) (2,584)
1,250 (1,250)

(651) (50,445)

9,715 11,277
679,659 553,424

$ 1,021,643 $ 1,085,109
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LAURENS COUNTY WATER AND SEWER COMMISSION

LAKE RABON WATER SUPPLY SYSTEM
STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2021

(with summarized comparative totals for June 30, 2020)

ASSETS

Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable

Total current assets

Non-Current Assets
Capital assets, net

Total non-current assets

Total assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES
Pensions

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities
Accounts payable
Accruals

Total current liabilities

Non-Current Liabilities
Net pension liability
Accrued other post employment benefits

Total non-current liabilities

Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES
Pensions

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted

Total net position

2021 2020
$ 450,102 ¢ 379,720
43,108 39,712
493,210 419,432
3,592,308 3,683,218
3,592,308 3,683,218
4,085,518 4,102,650
29,762 26,289
11,808 3,451
9,218 11,433
21,026 14,884
172,409 153,040
133,860 113,416
306,269 266,456
327,295 281,340
652 5,021
3,592,308 3,683,218
195,025 159,360
$ 3,787,333 ¢ 3,842,578
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LAURENS COUNTY WATER AND SEWER COMMISSION
LAKE RABON WATER SUPPLY SYSTEM
STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
BUDGET TO ACTUAL
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
(totals for the year ended June 30, 2020)

2021 Budget Variance 2020
OPERATING REVENUE
Laurens Commission of Public Works
water sales S 322,678 S 321,606 S 1,072 S 317,664
Water Distribution sales 162,869 148,789 14,080 147,014
Recreation permits and shelter rentals 32,240 24,000 8,240 22,885
Total revenue 517,787 494,395 23,392 487,563
OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries 97,387 112,492 (15,105) 109,462
Payroll taxes 7,454 8,606 (1,152) 7,996
Group insurance 9,312 15,997 (6,685) 9,307
State retirement 11,337 13,715 (2,378) 10,169
Worker's compensation 3,455 3,250 205 2,756
Employee health/safety expense 338 310 28 130
Employee memberships 300 300 - 300
Uniform expense 840 1,890 (1,050) 1,288
Vehicle and equipment maintenance 12,216 6,100 6,116 9,258
Building and grounds maintenance 12,601 10,549 2,052 12,391
Trail maintenance 121 2,500 (2,379) 1,472
Software and office equipment maintenance 318 500 (182) 109
Destrat system maintenance 4,230 6,500 (2,270) 402
Vehicle and equipment fuel 6,733 7,500 (767) 6,148
Depreciation 104,831 160,416 (55,585) 98,578
Flow monitoring systems 18,900 12,600 6,300 2,700
Utilities 34,677 26,544 8,133 11,769
Telephone and mobile communications 1,657 1,704 (47) 1,736
Tools and supplies 442 1,300 (858) 831
Professional fees 4,150 5,000 (850) -
Permits 1,810 2,000 (190) 1,858
Miscellaneous expense 1,577 - 1,577 -
Total operating expenses 334,686 399,773 (65,087) 288,660
Operating income 183,101 94,622 88,479 198,903
NON-OPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSES)
Interest earned 819 - 819 3,405
Gain on sale of assets - - - 2,500
Non cash - state retirement (9,951) - (9,951) (7,755)
Non cash - post employment expense (20,444) (2,000) (18,444) (5,993)
Total non-operating revenue (expense) (29,576) (2,000) (27,576) (7,843)
Change in net position before transfers 153,525 92,622 60,903 191,060
TRANSFERS
Transfer LGIP funds to water distribution (80,000) - (80,000) (50,000)
Transfer administrative fees to admin fund (128,770) (130,622) 1,852 (163,797)
Total transfers (208,770) (130,622) (78,148) (213,797)
Change in net position (55,245) (38,000) (17,245) (22,737)
Net position, beginning of year 3,842,578 3,842,578 - 3,165,459
Prior period adjustment (Note 12) - - - 699,856
Net position, beginning of year, restated 3,842,578 3,842,578 - 3,865,315
Net position, end of year S 3,787,333 S 3,804,578 S (17,245) $ 3,842,578
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LAURENS COUNTY WATER AND SEWER COMMISSION
LAKE RABON WATER SUPPLY SYSTEM
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

(with summarized comparative totals for the year ended June 30, 2020)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers
Payments to suppliers for goods and services
Payments for labor and related services
Payment for employee benefits

Net cash provided by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfer LGIP funds to water distribution system
Transfer administrative fees to admin fund

Net cash used in noncapital financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Capital outlay
Proceeds from sale of assets
Interest paid on bonds

Net cash used in capital and related
financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest income

Net cash flows provided by investing activities
Net increase in cash
Cash, beginning of year

Cash, end of year

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH
PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Operating income

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net
cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation

Changes in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable
Increase (decrease) in accrued expenses

Total adjustments

Net cash provided by operating activities
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2021 2020
514,391 ¢ 515,358
(92,553) (50,392)

(105,079) (135,529)
(24,104) (8,483)
292,655 320,954
(80,000) (50,000)

(128,770) (163,797)

(208,770) (213,797)
(13,921) (68,074)

- 2,500
(401) (401)
(14,322) (65,975)
819 3,405

819 3,405
70,382 44,587
379,720 335,133
450,102 ¢ 379,720
183,101 S 198,903
104,831 98,578
(3,396) 27,795
8,357 (5,846)
(238) 1,524
109,554 122,051
292,655 S 320,954




LAURENS COUNTY WATER AND SEWER COMMISSION
WATER DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM
STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2021
(with summarized comparative totals for the year ended June 30, 2020)

2021 2020
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents S 5,308,259 S 3,725,885
Restricted cash for debt service funds 500,694 491,550
Accounts receivable, net 688,159 809,887
Contributed capital receivable 226,796 980,927
Inventories 13,838 12,665
Prepaids 4,530 -
Total current assets 6,742,276 6,020,914
Non-Current Assets
Restricted cash - capacity funds 1,974,827 1,565,235
Restricted cash - construction funds 42,813,738 29,726,250
Due from Gray Court 127,293 155,580
Capital assets, net 82,526,047 55,314,969
Total non-current assets 127,441,905 86,762,034
Total assets 134,184,181 92,782,948
DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES
Pensions 318,346 238,008
Total deferred outflow of resources 318,346 238,008
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable 2,683,703 3,482,354
Accruals 68,113 97,593
Due to other governmental entities 65,741 36,002
Accrued interest 293,729 275,236
Customer deposits 50,826 50,825
Deferred revenue 17,284 16,500
Current portion of bonds payable 44,538,102 960,000
Total current liabilities 47,717,498 4,918,510
Non-Current Liabilities
Bonds payable 47,204,552 53,211,502
Net pension liability 1,844,182 1,637,000
Accrued other post employment benefits 1,327,408 1,124,676
Total non-current liabilities 50,376,142 55,973,178
Total liabilities 98,093,640 60,891,688
DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES
Pensions 6,974 43,637
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 33,303,402 30,594,481
Restricted for debt service 500,694 491,550
Restricted for future capacity 1,974,827 1,565,235
Unrestricted 622,990 (565,635)
Total net position S 36,401,913 S 32,085,631
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LAURENS COUNTY WATER AND SEWER COMMISSION
WATER DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM
STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
BUDGET TO ACTUAL
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
(totals for the year ended June 30, 2020)

2021 Budget Variance 2020
OPERATING REVENUE
Water sales $ 8,305,190 S 8,257,146 S 48,044 S 8,229,715
Penalties 253,695 300,000 (46,305) 250,778
Tap fees 517,432 230,000 287,432 313,457
Reinstate, reconnect and delinquent fees 153,088 168,140 (15,052) 137,528
Origination fees 54,500 49,200 5,300 48,100
Testing, sampling and valve install fees 44,546 42,864 1,682 47,114
Other operating revenue 55,850 11,700 44,150 42,171
Total revenue 9,384,301 9,059,050 325,251 9,068,863
OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries 915,306 987,023 (71,717) 920,420
Payroll taxes 70,602 75,507 (4,905) 66,251
Group insurance 217,374 225,140 (7,766) 210,340
State retirement 143,194 151,054 (7,860) 138,800
Worker's compensation 20,730 19,000 1,730 16,539
Employee health/safety expense 4,626 4,300 326 3,007
Employee memberships 2,776 3,600 (824) 2,745
Employee training, conferences and seminars 5,859 6,567 (708) 13,135
Uniform expense 17,613 18,525 (912) 16,873
Dues, subscriptions and licenses 661 1,400 (739) 330
System maintenance 415,491 109,641 305,850 315,149
Vehicle and equipment maintenance 75,769 51,300 24,469 63,143
Building and grounds maintenance 23,897 36,499 (12,602) 28,095
Software and office equipment maintenance 18,469 29,524 (11,055) 25,381
Vehicle and equipment fuel 53,300 54,120 (820) 43,019
Water purchases 2,506,321 2,422,565 83,756 2,288,737
Depreciation 1,556,870 2,467,860 (910,990) 1,396,081
Utilities 109,651 99,533 10,118 101,446
Telephone and mobile communications 37,192 27,900 9,292 38,051
DHEC licenses and fees 31,074 29,006 2,068 28,588
Sampling and testing 35,511 32,890 2,621 35,009
Tools and supplies 25,342 23,650 1,692 37,433
Right of way maintenance 12,070 16,775 (4,705) 25,500
Professional fees 24,733 7,500 17,233 15,999
Engineering and consulting service 10,150 6,000 4,150 5,000
Billing fees 86,550 87,804 (1,254) 87,894
IVR and merchant service fees 118,925 106,500 12,425 104,845
Office expense 80 - 80 -
Miscellaneous expense 3,023 32,000 (28,977) 2,244
Total operating expenses 6,543,159 7,133,183 (590,024) 6,030,054
Operating income 2,841,142 1,925,867 915,275 3,038,809
NON-OPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSES)
Interest earned 9,291 3,313 5,978 87,278
Gain on sale of assets 7,676 - 7,676 46,915
Sale of service area 1,203,161 - 1,203,161 -
Capacity fees 411,500 276,000 135,500 254,400
Lease revenue 81,792 81,346 446 86,400
Bond administration expense (27,053) - (27,053) (3,233)
Bond issuance cost (55,382) - (55,382) (310,152)
Interest expense (1,269,717) - (1,269,717) (258,878)
Non cash - state retirement (106,440) (42,665) (63,775) (82,954)
Non cash - post employment expense (202,732) - (202,732) (64,143)
Total non-operating revenue (expense) 52,096 317,994 (265,898) (244,367)
Change in net position before transfers 2,893,238 2,243,861 649,377 2,794,442
CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS, NET 2,416,125 - 2,416,125 3,994,595
TRANSFERS
Transfer LGIP funds from Lake Rabon 80,000 - 80,000 50,000
Transfer administrative fees to admin fund (1,073,082) (1,088,520) 15,438 (982,781)
Total transfers (993,082) (1,088,520) 95,438 (932,781)
Change in net position 4,316,281 1,155,341 3,160,940 5,856,256
Net position, beginning of year 32,085,632 32,085,632 - 26,229,376
Net position, end of year S 36,401,913 S 33,240,973 S 3,160,940 S 32,085,632
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LAURENS COUNTY WATER AND SEWER COMMISSION
WATER DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

BUDGET TO ACTUAL
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
(with summarized comparative totals for June 30, 2020)

2021 2020
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers $ 10,260,160 S 8,089,451
Payments to suppliers for goods and services (4,359,195) 31,378
Payments for labor and related services (985,908) (818,072)
Payment for employee benefits (381,298) (365,679)
Net cash provided by operating activities 4,533,759 6,937,078
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfer LGIP funds from Lake Rabon 80,000 50,000
Transfer administrative fees to admin fund (1,073,082) (982,781)
Net cash used in noncapital financing activities (993,082) (932,781)
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Capital outlay (28,785,272) (20,095,850)
Capital contributions 2,416,125 3,994,595
Gain on sale of assets (7,676) (46,915)
Interest paid on bonds, note and capital leases (1,269,717) (258,878)
Principal paid on bonds, note and capital leases, net 37,571,152 41,701,502
Bond administration fees (27,053) (3,233)
Capacity fees 411,500 254,400
Bond reissuance cost (55,382) (310,152)
Property lease fees 81,792 86,400
Net cash provided by capital and related
financing activities 11,538,630 25,321,869
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest income 9,291 87,278
Net cash flows provided by investing activities 9,291 87,278
Net increase in cash 15,088,598 31,413,444
Cash, beginning of year 35,508,920 4,095,476
Cash, end of year $ 50,597,518 $ 35,508,920
RECONCILIATION TO STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
Cash and cash equivalents 5,308,259 3,725,885
Restricted cash - debt service funds 500,694 491,550
Restricted cash - capacity funds 1,974,827 1,565,235
Restricted cash - construction funds 42,813,738 29,726,250
Total cash and cash equivalents $ 50,597,518 $ 35,508,920
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH
PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating income S 2,841,142 S 3,038,809
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net
cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation 1,556,870 1,396,081
Gain on sale of assets (7,676) -
Changes in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable 121,728 1,515
(Increase) decrease in inventories (1,173) 4,963
(Increase) decrease in due to/from 754,131 (980,927)
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable (779,087) 3,254,118
Increase (decrease) in due to/from governmental entities 94,028 (153,008)
Increase (decrease) in accrued expenses (46,204) 375,528
Total adjustments 1,692,617 3,898,270
Net cash provided by operating activities S 4,533,759 S 6,937,079
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LAURENS COUNTY WATER AND SEWER COMMISSION

ADMINISTRATIVE FUND
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2021

(with summarized comparative totals for the year ended June 30, 2020)

ASSETS

Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable
Prepaids

Total current assets

Non-Current Assets
Capital assets, net

Total non-current assets

Total assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES
Pensions

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities
Accounts payable
Accruals

Total current liabilities

Non-Current Liabilities
Net pension liability
Accrued other post employment benefits

Total non-current liabilities

Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES
Pensions

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted

Total net position
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2021 2020
$ 179,246  $ 168,571
2,099 61

93,292 85,024
274,637 253,656
635,314 665,239
635,314 665,239
909,951 918,895
291,527 237,823
71,087 53,407

62,175 81,005
133,262 134,412
1,688,822 1,499,094
1,204,205 1,020,289
2,893,027 2,519,383
3,026,289 2,653,795
6,386 44,592

635,314 665,239
(2,466,511) (2,206,908)
$ (1,831,197) S (1,541,669)




LAURENS COUNTY WATER AND SEWER COMMISSION
ADMINISTRATIVE FUND
STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
BUDGET TO ACTUAL
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
(with summarized comparative totals for the year ended June 30, 2020)

2021 Budget Variance 2020
OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries S 759,182 S 759,610 S (428) S 750,063
Payroll taxes 56,780 61,186 (4,406) 54,286
Group insurance 95,740 97,837 (2,097) 94,910
State retirement 120,821 121,679 (858) 116,188
Worker's compensation 3,455 2,500 955 2,756
Employee health/safety expense 604 1,100 (496) 585
Employee memberships 2,775 3,600 (825) 1,950
Employee training, conferences and seminars 2,892 19,542 (16,650) 9,761
Uniform expense 2,369 3,660 (1,291) 2,875
Dues, subscriptions and licenses 14,387 14,500 (113) 14,352
Commissioners expense 37,276 38,500 (1,224) 34,348
Legislative expense 1,305 1,500 (195) 1,140
Entertainment expense 15,951 18,000 (2,049) 17,797
Building and grounds maintenance 26,251 19,465 6,786 18,562
Software and office equipment maintenance 132,452 102,995 29,457 107,339
Property and casualty insurance 93,505 92,753 752 87,856
Depreciation 83,675 83,000 675 86,619
Utilities 21,860 24,000 (2,140) 22,063
Telephone and mobile communications 14,401 16,260 (1,859) 15,665
Office expense 64,039 38,715 25,324 55,154
Postage and shipping 6,819 8,408 (1,589) 7,827
Professional fees 84,434 53,000 31,434 49,524
Engineering and consulting service 28,350 30,440 (2,090) 26,790
Economic development 35,710 39,600 (3,890) 35,851
Community outreach 62,467 71,100 (8,633) 82,199
Miscellaneous expense 345 - 345 -
Total operating expenses 1,767,845 1,722,950 44,895 1,696,460
Operating loss (1,767,845) (1,722,950) (44,895) (1,696,460)
NON-OPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSES)
Interest earned 661 - 661 2,292
Insurance proceeds 42,113 - 42,113 -
Non cash - state retirement (97,473) (657) (96,816) (75,965)
Non cash - post employment expense (183,915) (18,025) (165,890) (58,738)
Total non-operating revenue (expense) (238,614) (18,682) (219,932) (132,411)
Change in net position before transfers (2,006,459) (1,741,632) (264,827) (1,828,871)
TRANSFERS
Transfer administrative fees to admin fund 1,716,932 1,741,632 (24,700) 1,637,969
Change in net position (289,527) - (289,527) (190,902)
Net position, beginning of year (1,541,670) (1,541,670) - (1,350,768)
Net position, end of year S (1,831,197) $ (1,541,670) S (289,527) S (1,541,670)
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LAURENS COUNTY WATER AND SEWER COMMISSION
ADMINISTRATIVE FUND
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

(with summarized comparative totals for the year ended June 30, 2020)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Payments to suppliers for goods and services
Payments for labor and related services
Payment for employee benefits
Collected from (advances to) employees

Net cash used in operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfer in for administrative fees

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Capital outlay

Net cash used in capital and related
financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest income
Insurance proceeds

Net cash flows provided by investing activities
Net increase in cash
Cash, beginning of year

Cash, end of year

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH
USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Operating loss

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net
cash used in operating activities:

Depreciation

Changes in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable
Increase (decrease) in accrued expenses

Total adjustments

Net cash used in operating activities
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2021 2020
$  (638,435) (594,606)
(834,792) (792,570)
(220,016) (213,854)
(2,038) (1)
(1,695,281) (1,601,031)
1,716,932 1,637,969
1,716,932 1,637,969
(53,750) (23,788)
(53,750) (23,788)
661 2,292

42,113 -
42,774 2,292
10,675 15,442
168,571 153,129

$ 179,246 168,571
$ (1,767,845) (1,696,459)
83,675 86,619
(2,038) (1)
(8,268) (5,557)
17,680 2,588
(18,485) 11,779
72,564 95,428
$ (1,695,281) (1,601,031)
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LAURENS COUNTY WATER AND SEWER COMMISSION
REVENUE BOND DEBT COVERAGE RATIO
JUNE 30, 2021

Clinton/Joanna

Water Wastewater
Distribution Treatment
System Plant
Series 2016, 2017

Series 2020 Series 2013
Change in net position before transfers S 2,893,238 S 484,404
Less: Gain on sale of assets (7,676) (1,884)

Less: Sale of service area (1,203,161) -
Less: Allocated administrative loss (1,254,037) (601,938)
Less: Property tax collections - (375,920)

Plus: Capital contribution - -
Plus: GASB 75 noncash expenses 202,732 109,899
Plus: GASB 75 noncash expenses - administrative 114,947 55,175
Plus: GASB 68 noncash expenses 106,440 49,932
Plus: GASB 68 noncash expenses - administrative 60,921 29,242
Plus: Depreciation 1,556,870 970,351
Plus: Allocate administrative depreciation 52,297 25,103
Plus: Interest expense on bonds 1,269,717 150,062
Net earnings of the system (per bond resolution) S 3,792,288 S 894,426
Debt service requirement S 2,599,962 S 195,024
Debt service coverage ratio 1.46 4.59

At June 30, 2021, the Water Distribution System and Clinton/Joanna Wastewater Treatment Plant were in compliance
with the debt service ratio requirements.
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LOVE BAILEY

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE
AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Honorable Board of Commissioners
Laurens County Water and Sewer Commission
Laurens, South Carolina

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the business-type activities of the Laurens
County Water and Sewer Commission, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2021, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise the Laurens County Water and Sewer Commission’s basic
financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated December 13, 2021.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

in planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Laurens County Water and
Sewer Commission’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Laurens County Water
and Sewer Commission’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Laurens County Water and Sewer Commission’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or,
significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not
been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Laurens County Water and Sewer Commission’s
financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct
and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to
be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

218 W. Laurens Street  Laurens, SC 29360 Phone: 864.984.2698 Fax: 864.984.2874 lovebaileycpa.com



Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal contro! and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or
on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not
suitable for any other purpose.

Lﬁvb B I&7 A%fssoc«ﬂle’s, e

Love Bailey & Associates, LLC
Laurens, South Carolina
December 13, 2021



LOVE BAILEY

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Honorable Board of Commissioners
Laurens County Water and Sewer Commission
Laurens, South Carolina

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited the Laurens County Water and Sewer Commission’s compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on the
Laurens County Water and Sewer Commission’s major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2021.
Laurens County Water and Sewer Commission’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of
auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of
its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the Laurens County Water and Sewer
Commission’s major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to
above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S.
Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Laurens County Water and
Sewer Commission’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Laurens County Water and Sewer
Commission’s compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, the Laurens County Water and Sewer Commission, complied, in all material respects, with the
types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its
major federal program for the year ended June 30, 2021.

218 W. Laurens Street  Laurens, SC 29360 Phone: 864.984.2698 Fax: 864.984.2874 ovebaileycpa.com



Report on Internal Control over Compliance

Management of the Laurens County Water and Sewer Commission, is responsible for establishing and
maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to
above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered the Laurens County Water and Sewer
Commission’s internal contro! over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and
material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to
test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Laurens County Water and Sewer Commission’s internal
control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a
timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected
and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important
enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist
that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the regquirements of the Uniform
Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

[WL Ba. /z7 & /-}650&:"’#55, e

Love Bailey & Associates, LLC
Laurens, South Carolina
December 13, 2021



LAURENS COUNTY WATER AND SEWER COMMISSION
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Federal
CFDA Federal
Federal Grantor/Pass-through Grantor/Program or Cluster Title Number Expenditures
U.S. Department of Commerce
Economic Adjustment Assistance - Stagecoach 11.307 S 828,206
Economic Adjustment Assistance - Milam Road 11.307 796,288
Total U.S. Department of Commerce 1,624,494
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
Community Development Block Grant 14.228 497,370
U.S. Department of Agriculture and Rural Development
Water & Wastewater Disposal Systems for Rural Communities:
Waterworks System Revenue Bond, Series 2020 10.760 39,120,814
Total Federal Expenditures S 41,242,678

See accompanying notes to the schedule of expenditures of federal awards.
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LAURENS COUNTY WATER AND SEWER COMMISSION
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

NOTE 1 — BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the “Schedule”) includes the federal
award activity of the Commission under programs of the federal government for the year ended June
30, 2021. The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2
U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a
selected portion of the operations of the Commission, it is not intended to and does not present the
financial position, changes in net assets, or cash flows of the Commission

NOTE 2 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNT POLICIES

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such
expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein
certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.

NOTE 3 — INDIRECT COST RATE

The Commission has elected to use the 10% de minimis indirect cost rate as allowed under the Uniform
Guidance.

NOTE 4 — USDA BONDS OUTSTANDING

At June 30, 2021, the outstanding balances of USDA Bonds were as follows:

USDA Series 2020A $ 8,582,065
USDA Series 2020B 8,582,065
USDA Series 2020C 8,582,065
USDA Series 2020D 8,582,065
USDA Series 2020E 3,471,016
USDA Series 2020F 731,876

S 38,531,152
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LAURENS COUNTY WATER AND SEWER COMMISSION
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Section | - Summary of Auditor's Results

Financial statements

Type of report the auditor issued on whether the financial statements audited
were prepared in accordance with GAAP: Unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting:

- Material weakness(es) ldentified? Yes X No
None
- Significant deficiency(ies) Identified? Yes X  Noted
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? Yes X No

Federal awards

Internal control over major programs:

- Material Weakness(es) Identified? Yes X No
None
- Significant deficiency(ies) Identified? Yes X  Noted
Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major programs: Unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in accordance
with 2 CFR 200.516(a)? Yes X No

Identification of major programs:

Water and Waste Disposal System for Rural Communities 10.760
Economic Adjustment Program 11.307
$750,000

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and Type B programs:

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? X Yes No
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LAURENS COUNTY WATER AND SEWER COMMISSION
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

SECTION Il — FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS AND RESPONSES

None reported

SECTION 11l — FEDERAL AWARDS FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

None reported

SECTION IV — SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS

None reported
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